[T

MISSIONS FACING SHEET

FQ p
Wj@ @E E | MICROFICHE CONTROL LABEL

soxsTRANES vz %Lﬁﬂw&r Pl C/

CURRENT ADDRESS

**FORMER NAME

PROCESSED

*+NEW ADDRESS - M—ZBQIZ/
N .. THOMsON

FINANCIA]

:  FILE NO. 82~ ZEH 2!2,\ i 7 | 'FISCAL YEAR /j"‘uf/‘éé

* Com fhldabmiru?y * Please sote nome oxd address chang

12G3-¢B5  (INITIAL FILING)

I AR/S (ANNUAL REPORT) 24
12G32BR  (REINSTATEMENT) ! STPPL  (OTHER) ,;‘

| DEF 14A (FROXY) i
3
: QICF/BY: (™A A5
Do . _ _




NTCIIVED
MM -3 p ooy

TTICE OF INTEENATION
CCRPORATE FINAPJi%rE‘:hL

/

l‘

&”’r ‘{
'\ * \J’j
.[\ >}’/

FIBERWEB PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2006

|
|
i
i
|
|

Taillored nonwoven
~ fabric solutions



| FIBTRWER IS A LEADING INTERNATIONAL NONVOVEN MATERIALS i
|

- COMPANY WITTH 'WO PRIMARY BLSINESS ARFAS: INDUSTRIAL AND
- HYCIENE. FIBERWEB DEMERGED FROM BBA GROUP PLC AND WAS
- USTED CN THE LONDON STOCK DXCHANG: CN 17 MOVEMBER 2006.

FIBERWE S HAS SUFHERED SFVERAL YEARS OF DECINING FINANCAL
PERFORVANCE IN INCREASINGLY COMPETITIV: VARKETS,

"IN RESPONSE, NFW MANAGEMENT INJTIATED A MAJOR TURRARCUND
PROGRAVME [N 2006.
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This Annual Report includes statements that are forward-looking in nature. Forward-
looking statements involve known and unknown risks, assumptions, uncertainties and
other factors that may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of
Fiberweb and the Group to be materially different from any future results, performance
or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-fooking statements. Shareholders
are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements, which
speak only as of the date of this Annual Report. Except as required by the Listing Rules,
the Disclosure and Transparency Rules and applicable law, Fiberweb undertakes no
obligation to update or change any forward-looking statements to reflect events occurring
after the date of this document.
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Financial Performance

£ millions (unless stated otherwise) 2006 2005

Results from underlying operations:

Revenue 584.7 603.3
Underlying Operating Profit ¢ @ 215 479
Underlying profit before Tax @ 12.8 333
Adjusted Earnings per Share © 5.4p 19.3p

Results after restructuring and other non-recurring items:

Operating (Loss)/Profit from Continuing Operations Statutory (69.6) 348
Basic (Loss)/Eamings per share (56.5)p 12.5p
Proposed Final Dividend 3.95p -
Net Debt 165.3 2423

(1) Operating profit includes a one-off benefit of £2.7 million for costs not recharged by BBA Group plc.
(2) Underlying profit measures are before restructuring charges and non-recurring items, as set out in the Consolidated Inco ne Statement attached,
(3) Adjusted to exclude restructuring charges and non-recurring items as described in Note 9.

Operational Highlights

« Turnaround plan on track

» Results reflect significant restructuring achieved in 2006 with a charge of £97.1 million, including impairments
(cash £8.2 million)

« Industrial revenues grew by 5%. Successfully commissioned new capacity in USA, Brazil and Germany
« Successful integration of Blowitex, a German roofing business acquired in March 2006

«» Hygiene capacity reduced through closure of uncompetitive lines, particularly in USA

« Major hygiene investments in Mexico, Sweden and Italy on track for 2007 benefits

« Strengthened relationship with largest customer, Procter & Gamble, with new multi-year g obal agreements
for the supply of hygiene spunbond and airlaid products

REVENUE UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT
2006 2005 2006 2005
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Fiberweb is one of the world's largest and leading suppliers of high-performance, speciality nonwoven fabrics.
Nonwoven materials developed, manufactured and marketed by Fiberweb are used in a wide variety of
everyday products such as filters, wipes, baby diapers, fabric softener, construction products and protective
clothing to name only a few. With vast experience in its field and a strong international presence, Fiberweb
has long been regarded as a technological innovator with a strong portfolio of intellectual property, a
preferred partner for customers focused on high-quality and reliable supply and as a consistent investor in
a global network of competitive manufacturing assets.

Our Operations at a Glance

Industrial

Fiberweb manufactures a diverse range of nonwoven produds for
the highly fragmented industrial market We are one of the leading
suppliers globally for pool & spa filtration under the well known
Reemay™ bmnd. In the construction industry, our strong and
established Typar™/Tekton™ products are used in housewrap, roofing

and geotextile applications amongst others. Fiberweb continues to
provide supenor quality products for the more technically demanding
and niche areas in fabric softener sheets and graphic arts. Fiberweb's
sustained developmental efforts have paved the way for the launch
of several new products in print media and other segments.

Housewrap For residential and commercial
applications nothing is proven to perform
better than Fiberweb’s well known Typar™
Weather Protection Systems

Filtration Fiberweb manufactures
advanced filiration media under the
established Reemay™ brand for a variety
of applications in filtration, separation
and absarption

Roofing Typar™ roofwrap30 and
Tekton™ are light weight, water resistant,
polymeric roof underlayments that
: provide superior protection. Blowitex
d spedalises in laminates and compaosites
. for niche applications

Fabric softener sheets North American
consumers tend to use impregnated fabric
softener sheets in a tumble drier. Fiberweb
is a leading supplier for this technically
demanding application

Geosynthetics Specialist manufacturer of
geotextiles under leading brands such as
Terram™ and Bidim™ used in a vanety of
applications including drainage, fittration,
separation and other industrial uses

Industrial wipes Fiberweb makes a
multitude of top quality, high-performance
products for graphic arts and general wipes
application

Landscape Long term guaranteed
Biobarrier™ products are made of durable
geotextile fabric with permanently attached
nodules containing trifluralin that prevent
root tip cell division

Industrial specialities Fiberweb produces
& diverse range of other produdts in
packaging, shoes and home furnishing
applications. We also manufacture Keeta™ -
high-visibility clothing

Leading market positions
and technologies

Fiberweb's scale, global reach, range of technology and strong

market postticns in a broad range of specialised areas sets it apart
from many of 1ts competitors. Fiberweb continually improves and
expands the attributes of its products to increase their performance
for its custormers and ultimately the end user.




Hygiene

Fiberweb is a global leader in tailored nonwoven fabric solutions
for baby and adult care, feminine hygiene, consumer wipes,
medical and protective apparel segments.

We offer a wide range of nonwoven technologies tailored to meet
the specific needs of each and every customer. Today, we are
helping our customers develop products which are lighter, better
fitting more comforiable, more aesthetic and have superior
absorbent properties.

Each family of products offers a unique set of p-operties from softness,
strength, extensibility, absorbency, or repel ency which provides
function, feel and fit in every hygiene-nonwoven that we sroduce. Our
fabrics can be engineered to deliver added benefits such as texture,
colour, barrier protection, breathability and siability to sterilisation.

Fiberweb leads the advancement of 1yglene nonwovens
technologies using our global network and innovative research and
development capabilities to provide our customers with state-of-
the-art fabrics that ultimately fulfill the needs of the end user.

Baby diapers Fiberweb produces top sheet,
back sheet, barrier leg cuff and core caver

' Feminine hygiene Differentiated technology
to make acquisition distribution layer for
/ feminine hygiene products

Adult incontinence New generation products
Iike Softspan™, with its exceptional sofiness
and elongation properties, make it extremely
suitable for adult incontinence applications

Medical products Fibervieb offers nonwoven
fabrics for conversion into medical products.
Qur line of fabrics provide ; comfort, strength
and is engineered to deliver added benefits
such as protection and stability to sterilisation

Protective apparel Protective apparel fabrics
created to deliver comfort in use with high
barrier performance and breathability

g w7 Wipes With a wide range of available
. \é? technologies, Fiberweb ofters solutions in
k consumer, homecare, baby and industrial wipes

Long-term customer
relattonships

Fiberweb's emphasis on innovation, quality and

service has helped develop a strong long-standing
relationship with customers who, themselves are
leaders in their field,

Research and
Development

upsirear product and process develapmeni and Technical Services (“TS"),
focuses on incremental product and process improverent.




Our Global
Reach
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In the European hygiene market, we have a leading position as a
result of continuous investment across our manufacturing sites.

A new state-of-the-
art spunbond fine
in Sweden s due
to be completed in
early 2007,

A new airlaid line at
Korma, htaly is due
to be completed in
Q1 2007

A spunbond ling
relocated to Mexico
has now been fully
commissicnied and
orders are being
secured broadly in
line with plan.

A sixth production line
was comissioned at
Sao Paulo for shoe and
roofing applications.

o
Blowitex in Cermany was acguired in May 2006.
A spunbond line relocated 1o Berlin has been fully

commissioned and is now creating growth in
European roofing markets.
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at our Tianjin faciity
is expected to be
ccmmissiened in
2008,

24 sites, 12 countries



Chairman'’s Statement

WELCOME TO THE FIRST ANNUAL REPORT OF FIBERWEB PLC
FOLLOWING THE DEMERGER OF THE COMPANY FROM BBA
GROUP ON 17 NOVEMBER 2006.

This year has been one of profound change
for Fiberweb on many fronts. Fiberweb,

as part of BBA Group pl, started the year
as the subject of a public sale process.

No transaction was completed and as a
result BBA announced its intention to
separate Fiberweb through a demerger,
resulting in Fiberweb plc being floated

on the London Stock Exchange. The
combination of & lengthy sale process and
a very intensive demerger process created
huge challenges for the Fibenweb team,
compounded by the necessity to recruit a
new Board and Head Office team capable
of meeting the demands of good corporate
governance and of managing the business.

| am pleased to report that we overcame
these challenges and that the flotation
occurred smoothly. We have found a
supportive shareholder base and the senior
management of Fiberweb can now focus
exclusively on creating shareholder value
through improving our business.

Financial Results

The financial results for 2006 overall are less
than satisfactory, but in line with expectations
at the time of preparing for the demerger.
Sales reduced by £18.6 million (3%) to
£584.7 million and underlying operating
profit reduced by £20.4 million (43%) to
£27.5 million. Net cashflow from operating
activities was positive at £44.0 million, before

significant cash investment of £47.8 million
in the year and the post-demerger sale of
our 50% share of a Thai joint venture (CNC)
for £5.4 million. It is crucial to recognise that
these results reflect the continuation of
many years of steady margin dedline, lack of
investrment in some of the care businesses
of Fiberweb and an attempt to enter the
chalienging hygiene wipes market.

Turnaround

The new Fiberweb Board is determined o
create shareholder value by exploiting and
developing Fiberweb's strengths in
nonwaven fabrics and by aggressively
addressing its weaknesses. This will be
accomplished through implementing a clear
strategy to turnaround the disappainting
financial performance cf recent years by:

¢ Identifying our stronger businesses and
investing in them tor growth; and

» |dentifying our weaker businesses and
either closing, divesting them or defining
a rapid prograrnme for profit
improvement.

I am also pleased to report that we have
put in place actions to stem the rapid
decline in the business and have made
substantial progress with implementing a
turnaround programme in 2006, despite a
difficult external environment and the
heavy demands of the demerger process.

“The new Fiberweb Board is determined to create
shareholder value by exploiting and developing
Fiberweb's strengths in nonwoven fabrics and by
aggressively addressing its weaknesses!

MALCOLM COSTER, CHAIRMAN




Foundations were laid for
through a major shift of
cost reductions and the

implementation of important
Investment projects.

improvements in performance,

strategy, significant restructuring,

In particular, important foundations were laid
for improvemenis in performance, through a
major shift of strategy, significant restructuring,
cost reductions and the implementation of
important investment projects. We started

to see some of the benefits in the second
half with a modest %% increase in operating
margins, despite raw material prices that
were on average 2% higher than in the first
hatf, after adjusting for the one-off Old
Hickary power outage and for independent
listed company costs.

Further details of our turnaround programme
are set out in this Report.

Dividends

Subject to approval by shareholders at the
first Annual General Meeting to be held on
2 May 2007, the directors recommend a final
dividend of 3.95 pence per share. If approved,
the dividend will be payable on 29 May 2007
to shareholders on the register at 27 Apnl 2007,

The Board and Management

| joined Fiberweb as Chairman-designate in
June 2006 in preparation for the demerger
and became non executive Chairman with
effect from the demerger.

Since Daniel Dayan was appointed Chief
Executive on 1 June 2005, he has led
Fiberweb thiough the separation from BBA,
significant restructuring, and the creation of a
new Head Office in the UK capable of
perfarming the tasks required of a listed
company. Following my appointment, Daniel
and | recruited a new board of directors,
including the appointment of Simon Bowles
as Chief Finandal Officer in July 2006 and
three non executive directors - Peter
Hickman, Brian Taylorsen and Richard Stillwell.
Each director brings complementary skills and
experience to the Board. Your new Board is

rapidly familianising itself with the business,
meeting with operational management and
intends to embark on a number of site visits
in 2007,

We alsa have in place a strang new
executive team with an appetite for change
and success, who between them have
extensive experience in the nonwovens
sector and international manufacturing.

I had the opportunity of meeting the

Senicr Management Team (made up of the
100 top executives) at the first Fiberweb
Senicr Management Conference in
Septernber 2006. | was impressed by the
enthusiasm and dedication of everyone
that 1 met.

Prospects

Fiberweb faces many challenges in a fast-
moving industry. Most importantly, Fiberweb
needs to start producing financial resulis that
justify the further investments required to
develop the business and reverse the
declining trend that has been apparent for
many years. Two-thirds of our business is in
hygiene products and the remaining ane-
third is in a wide range of industrial
applications,

The Company has focused on developing its
hygiene business and growth in industrial has
not been as robust. Your Board believes that
Fibenweb's best prospects lie in exploiting its
strong, technical, brand and market positions
in important segments af the large and
expanding market for industrial nonwoven
fabrics particularty in filtration and speciality
construction segments. Cther attractive
market segments that offer good profit
potential but enjoy lower growth or
geographically limited markets, such as fabric
softener sheets in North America, will be
developed within the market constraints.

There are also attractive segments within the
hygiene market, where scale, manufacturing
excellence and innovation can produce
competitive advantage, in particular in
spunpond fabrics for baby diaper and
feminine care applications. We will continue
to explore growth in this area and the
actions taken in late 2005 and 2006 have
begun to enhance our competitive pasition
in this area.

BBA was a supportive shareholder
throughout the separztion process and we
wish our erstwhile col'eagues in BBA Aviaticn
plc the best of luck in developing their
business. However, the demerger has given
Fiberweb the opportunity to take greater
control of its destiny and | would like to
thank all of our custorners, suppliers,
shareholders and espacially our employees
who have helped to rake this possible.

| am proud to be part of the team defining
and creating a successtul new future for
Fiberweb, focused entirely on the nonwovens
business. We believe that the successful
implementaticn of the tumaround and the
strategy that | have outlined above is the right
one for the business end we have taken
decisive initial action. "he progress seen in
margin improvement n the second half of
2006 is a crucial first step. The challenges
ahead will be tough bt this is an exciting
opportunity to build a first-class business.

y b7

Malcolm Coster
Chairman

26 February 2007



Apat from minor restructuring, the
Eargpean business was more focused
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Asia

Premier airlaid facility at Tianjin,
China that manufactures feminine
hygiene producis performed well
and further investments are planned
to grow the business:

Non-core joint venture in Thailand
sold as part of the Asian strategy

Installation of the China airlaid
embaosser unit to be completed by
first quarter of 2007

A new airlaid line in China is under
construction and expected to be
commissioned in early 2008.




Chief Executive's Statement

| AM DELIGHTED TO REPORT FOR THE FIRST TIME AS CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OF AN INDEPENDENTLY LISTED FIBERWEB PLC AS
WE EMBARK ON OUR TURNAROUND PROGRAMME.

Financial Performance

2006 full year operating profits from
continuing operations befare restructuring
costs and non-recurning items at £27.5
million represents anather major decline.
However, the robust restructuring actions
initiated during the year have started to show
an impact. Operating margins improved in
the second half compared to the first half by
approximately 4% after adjusting for the
impact of a power outage at our Old Hickory
Site in Tennessee in August and the impact
of the additional head office costs required
to support the demerged entity.

Our industrial area accounted for £203.2
million in sales in 2006, representing an
increase of 5.0% compared to 2005
(2005: £193.5 million). Margins at 7.2%
represented a decline of 3.8 percentage
paints over 2005 as very high raw material
and utility prices coupled with difficult
markets In Furopean gectextiles and US
construction and pricing pressure in fabric
softener sheet impacted the business. In
hygiene, sales of £381.5 million declined
by £28.3 million (7%). Margins were 3.80,
a 3.2 percentage points reduction on 2005,
also affected by high input costs and
competitive pressures.

“Previously, focus had been on investing in higher-growth
hygiene areas, specifically consumer and baby wipes and

Turnaround

We have taken a number of steps to
turnaround the performance of the
business. These included the closure of
four uncompetitive spunbond lines in the
USA, the decommissioning and relocation
of two lines at the Toronto site and a
restructuring at our UK geotextile business.
We also grew organically, offsering some
of the effect of the hygiene closures.

Our hygiene spunbond capacity in

Mexico doubled with the relocation of ane
of our Toronto lines. There was major
expansion of industrial sites in Sao Paulo,
Brazil and Berlin, Germany and the
installation of a long-awaited polyester
recycling plant at our largest production site
at Old Hickory, Tennessee in the USA.

The world's largest hygiene spunbond line
for Fiberweb's Swedish site was also
authorised. Total investrment of around
£51.4 million during 2006 is creating the
capability for growth and increased
comnpetitiveness. We started to see some
of the benefits in the second half, despite
raw material prices which were on average
20 higher.

We recognise that further tough actions
are required.

limiting investment in the core spunbond business.
Going forward, focus will be on growing the industrial
business globally, improving the competitiveness of

attractive hygiene businesses and restructuring or exiting

unattractive hygiene businesses.”

DANIEL DAYAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE




Chief Executive’s Statement continued

"2007 WILL BE A CHALLENGING YEAR BUT WE BELIEVE THAT
OUR NEW STRATEGY AND TURNAROUND PROGRAMME WILL
DELIVER IMPROVED RESULTS FOR FIBERWEB!

2006 Overview

2006 was a very challenging and eventful
year for Fiberweb. Analysis carried out in
2006 indicates that our strongest
businesses include maost of our industrial
specialities area and certain parts of our
hygiene businesses. Our weaker businesses
include hygiene wipes in Europe and North
America, our cotton bleaching business in
the USA and our uncempetitive spunbond
fines.

In North America industrial, the first half of
2006 saw continued growth in housewrap
for residential construction but the
downturn in the US residential housing
market in the second half of 2006 had an
adverse impact on performance.
Notwithstanding this, our leading Typar™
brand continued to gain market share and
we accelerated our drive to increase our
presence in attractive regional markets such
as the south-east and south-west of the
USA where Typar™ has traditionally had only
a very small position,

Sales of filtration media under the Reemay™
brand for pool and spa applications were
strong, following significant improvements in
customer service at the Cld Hickory facility.
In other filtration applications, good sales
progress was made. The converston of a
redundant hygiene pilot line in Simpsonville,
South Carolina to produce spediality

melt-blown filtration medhia will enable us o
serve our customers with a broader range of
single-layer and composite products.

Other important areas of the Americas
industrial business performed well, with
sales of fabric softener sheet remaining
strong and the recovery in sales of graphic
arts products continuing with improved
sales focus.

In Eurcpe, sales grew in the rcofing area
both organically and through the acquisition
of Blowitexin Germany in April. The
acquisition has extended our product
range, brand portfclio and distribution
relationships. Other industrial fabric sales

in Europe, primarily for medica! and
agricultural applications, were stable.

In Brazil, Bidim™ continued to develop its
premier position, but the strength of the
Brazilian real against the US dollar reduced
shoe production volumes, making
competitive products from China more
attractive. In addition, our roofing business
suffered as a result of increased imports
from Europe, long-standing technical
weaknesses with our product and the
relative exchange rates. The technical issues
are being dealt with urgently, utilising global
technical resources from within Fiberweb.
At the end of 2006, the roofing business
looks well set up for the year to come.

2006 marked a watershed for our hygiene
business. Long-standing competitive
disadvantages in North America were
dealt with rcbustly through closures and a
major reinvestment programme was
initiated in Europe. Reinvestment plans for
North America are under consideration.
As mentioned above, the hygiene
business comprises both stronger and
weaker portions. The stronger part
comprises airlaid for feminine care
applications in panty liners, spunbond

for baby diapers and other similar products
and some speciality areas such as resin-
bonded nonwovens for certain baby
diaper components. Weaker hygiene
includes wipes, certain spunbond assets
that are not competitive in today'’s
demanding markets, a carded product
business in the USA and the cotton
bleaching business.

Margins remained relatively attractive in
the strong segments, especially in airlaid
where Fiberweb's premier position in the
Asian region, stable contracts and cost
savings protected pricing.

In the weaker segments, the cost increases
and the pricing impact of new competitor
capacity enterng the market drove several
spunbond lines into loss. These lines for the
most part have now been closed. In wipes,
growing over-capacity and continued




In Eurape, sales grew in the roofing area both organically and through the
acquisition of Blowitexin Germany in April. The acquisition has extended our
product range, brand portfolio and distribution relationships.

commeditisation in the market have led to
extreme pressure on pricing and this
business is operating at around break-even.
Various options to improve the cost base of
the business, to innovate products that can
earn an acceptable and sustainable return
or to find ways of reducing over-capacity in
the industry are being expiored urgently.

Our target is to achieve double-digit margins
in the medium-term. We believe that the
investments that will be coming on-stream in
2007 will move us further in this direction.

Ouwr Business Review on pages 12 10 29
sets out In more detail how we have
performed in 2006.

tocking Ahead

Fiberweb’s strategy has been under
continuous review during the second half of
2005 and most of 2006, as a response to
poor financial results and the separation
process from BBA, Previously, focus had
been on investing in higher-growth hygiene
areas, specifically consumer and baby
wipes, limiting investment in the hygiene
and industriat spunbond businesses. Going
forward, focus will be on growing the
industnai business globally, improving the
competitiveness of attractive hygiene
businesses and restructuring or exiting
unattractive hygiene businesses. In industrial,

we believe that there is a good opportunity
to differentiate our offering to our
custormers through superior technclogy,
innovation, branding and customer servica.
In hygiene, we intend to improve our cost
position, especially in the area of spunbond
products, primarily for baby diaper
applications. We also intend 1o build on
our strong market position in airlaid in the
Asian market.

Our People

Every employee at Fiberweb is vaiued

and has a key role o play. We are working
hard on intreducing meaningfui
assessment, development and incentive
programmes tailored to the needs of our
people and businesses and recognise that
we have many areas to improve. However,
| have been very impressed by the
professionalism and commitment of

s0 many Fiberweb people and by their
enthusiasm to play their part in our
recovery. We are a very international
business and enjoy and benefit from a
wide variety of cultures, backgrounds,
skills and experiences.

Appreciation

| would like 1o express thanks to all of
Fiberweb’s customers and suppliers for their
support as we begin our independent

existence. | would espedially like to thank all
Fiberweb employees for their commitment,
loyalty and unstinting efforts to serve
custamers better as we have gone through a
lengthy periad of immense uncertainty for ail
and significant redundz ncies on various sites.

I would also like to thank Michael Harper
and Andrew Wood, respectively Executive
Chairrnan and Finance Director of BBA
Aviation plc, who were highly supportive
during the demerger crocess, despite the
performance issues we were facing. In
particular, they were instrumental in
securing the authorisalion of the crucial and
substantial restructuring and investment
projects Fiberweb initiated during 2006.

2007 will be a challenging year but we
believe that our new st-ategy and turnaround
programme will delivel improved results

for Fiberweb,

Daniel Dayan
Chief Executive

26 February 2007



Business Review

Review of Results

Revenue from continuing operations fell by
3% to £584.7 million (2005: £603.3
milfion). This was mainly due to the
restructuring of our American hygiene
business in which we dosed uncompetitive
lines to address changed market conditions.
Underlying operating profit fell to £27.5
million {operating margin of 4.7%)

(2005: £47.9 million — 7.9%) due primarily
10 price pressure, increased raw material
and utility costs, the power outage at the
important Old Hickory, Tennessee plant

and the costs of operating as a standalone
listed company. After allowing for the power
outage and PLC costs, operating margins
improved by %% in the second half of

the year.

After interest costs of £14.7 million (2005:
E14.6 million), Fiberweb produced underlying
prafit before tax for continuing cperations

of £12.8 million {2005: £33.3 million).
Adjusted eamnings per share were 5.4 pence,
adjusted to exclude restructuring costs and
non-recurning items (2005 19.3 pence).
Exchange rates had fittle impact on the profit
comparison with the previous period with the
average US dollar rate at $1.83 to the pound
(2005: $1.82) and the euro unchanged at
€1.46.

Restructuring actions incurred costs of

£97.1 million, induding asset impairments of
£69.2 million and goodwill write-offs of
£14.6 mitlion, resulting in operating losses
from continuing operations of £69.6 million
{2005: profit £34.8 million).

Capital expenditure of £53.7 million marked
a substaniial increase over recent years.
Major new lines in Germany, Brazil and
Mexico have been successfully brought on-
strearn while new lines in Sweden and ltaly
are being commissioned at present.

We invested £2.8 million (€4.5 million) in
acquining Blowitex during the year to expand
our European industrial business.

Vision and Strategy

Fiberweb is the fourth largest nonwovens
fabric producer in the world and the
largest third-party producer of hygiene
produdts, enjoying a global presence, with
facilities in most major regions. Nonwoven
materials developed, manufactured and
marketed by Fiberweb are used in a wide
variety of products such as filters, wipes,
baby diapers, fabric softener, construction
preducts and protective clothing. With

vast experience in its field, Fiberweb is
regarded as a technological innovator

with a strong portfolio of intellectual
property, a preferred partner for customers
focused cn high-quality and reliable supply
and as a consistent investor in a global
network of competitive manufacturing
assets.

Fiberweb's strategic intent is to create and
sustain value for shareholders by exploiting
and developing its strengths in nonwoven
fabrics and by aggressively addressing its
weaknesses, The Group's overall objective is
to strengthen and broaden its leading
positions in selected industrial speciality
markets and to maintain our leadership of
attractive segments in the hygiene sector.

Qur vision is to become the leading global
source of spediality nonwoven fabnc
solutions, partnering with customers,
suppliers and other associates to create and
implement products and solutions that offer
outstanding value.

We intend to achieve our goal by continuing to
drive forward the strategy being implemented
to tumaround the disappointing financial
performance of recent years.

Our strategies to tumaround the business
are:

s Closing or divesting weak businesses that
cannot eam sustainable retums or
defining a rapid programme for profit
improverments;

» Investing in strong businesses with the
potential for sustainable differentiation
and good growth prospects; and

e Focusing resources on fewer areas to
ensure that development of the retained
business can be accelerated.

We seek to drive profitable growth and
enhance our competitive position by:

» Focusing on new product and process
innovation that will drive value for
customers;

s Enhancing our reputation for autstanding
global service for customers;

¢ Improving cost competitiveness and
operational efficiency on a global scale;

s [nvesting in new production technology
that is cost leading and performance
orientated; and

» Working with our suppliers to manage
cost and risk in the supply base.

Historically, Fiberweb focused primarily on
developing its hygiene business and has not
grown its industrial business significantly.
Our belief is that Fiberweb's best prospects
lie in exploiting its strong technical, brand
and market share positions in important
segments of the large and growing market
for industrial nonwoven fabnics, particulary in
filiration and speciality construction segments
that reward technical differentiation, close
customer contact, branding and innovation.
There are further industrial segments that
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Business Review continued

offer good profit potential but enjoy lower
growth or geographically-limited markets,
such as fabric softener sheets in North
America, that are also attractive and will be
developed within the market constraints.

In addition, there are attractive segmenis
for Fiberweb within the hygiene market,
where scale, manufacturing excellence and
innovation can produce competitive
advantage. In particular, Fiberweb's traditional
strength in hygiene spunbond fabrics for
baby diaper and feminine care applications
indicates a key market area where
reasonable retums are available to the best
competitors. Fiberweb has been a cost

and innovation leader in this area, but over
the last few years has lost momentum. The
corrective steps taken in the second half of
2005 and in 2006 have begun to rebuild
Fiberweb’s competitive position in this
important area.

Airlaid is a much newer business area for
Fiberweb and the one area in which we enjoy
a premier position in Asia with the largest
production line in the region at our site in
Tianjin, China. We are expanding this position
through investment in a second line in
Tianjin to improve our economies of scale.
Simultaneously, we are cormpleting our

first line in Kaly, replicating the successful
Chinese business model.

Qur Markets and
External Environment

The nonwovens market is diverse with a
wide range of end applications. Regional
penetration, competition and patential
growth can vary widely dependent on
different product areas. The nonwovens
industry has grown steadily over the last

three decades as these materials are
increasingly used as a substitute for textiles
or completely new applications developed.
Technological advancernents allow
nonwovens to be used in new applications
by improvements in properties such as
comfort, strength, flexibility, durability and
permeability. Fiberweb operates in two
main markets; hygiene and industrial in
which key applications include components
for baby diapers, sanitary towels, adult
incontinence products, baby and cosmetic
wipes, filter media, gectextiles, carpet
backing, construction weatherisation
products and many others.

Hygiene markets continued to demonstrate
fairly stable volume growth in most areas, the
response of customers to higher input costs
was to demand lighter-weight fabrics that can
only be manufactured effectively on the most
moderm technolagy. This led to a mismatch
in our supply/demand balance which we
addressed through the restructuring initiatives
described in this Report.

In industrial markets, most areas developed
as expected, but two areas were difficult
The rapid downturn in the US residential
housing industry, which became apparent
from the eary summer, adversely affected
sales of house wrap, rocfing products and
other construction-related products. In
Europe, significant over-capacity in geotextiles
led to significant price pressure in most of
Terram's export markets. This led us to take
the restructuring actions, reducing capacity
by 40% and focusing on well-differentiated,
innovative speciality products.

External Factors

The external environment continued to be
extremely difficult during 2006, as it had been

for the previous twa to three years. Rapid

and unprecedented increases in raw material
and energy prices put pressure on margins.

As the year started, the aftermath of the dual
hurricanes to hit the USA during autumn 2005
— Katrina and Rita — contributed to record raw
material prices. Subsequently, global il prices
rase strongly, adding further to Fiberweb's cost
base in the areas of raw materials and energy,
both of which are fundamental to the cost
base of nonwoven fabric producers. The fall

in cil prices in late 2006 was not reflected

in a reduction in the cost of our cil-derived
polymeric raw matenals during the year.

Competitive environrment

The competitive landscape of the
nonwoven industry is constantly changing
with technological innovations and the
development of new markets and
applications. Although Fiberweb is unique
with its broad product portfolio and global
presence, it faces competition at various
levels depending on the application,

The hygiene business is characterised by a
concentrated and sophisticated customer
base. Big multinational customers maintain
very high standards of product quality and
performance and expect nothing less from
their suppliers. Fiberweb believes in this
philosophy and strives to innovate and
manufacture world dass nonwoven products
and deliver word-dass levels of value and
service. The industrial market is not only
fragmented but the level of technical
expertise and competition varies depending
on the application. Key to success in the
industrial business is the ability to respond
rapidly and effectively to customer needs
for improving value and performance often
at short notice.




KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

(“KPIs™)

We measure the achievement of our
objectives through the use of qualitative
assessments and through the monitoring of
quantitative indicators, termed as key
perfcrmance indicators. The six KPIs listed

Financial KPis

Definition/Description

below are some of the factors by reference
to which the developrent, performance or
position of the business can be measured
effectively.

There is primarily a focus on financal KPIs to
rmeasure the progress in achieving a financial
turnarcund.

Purpose

Each of the financial ta-gets is discussed cn
the pages indicated in the table below.
Further discussion of oar non-finandcal KPI is
set out in Carporate ard Social Responsibility
section of this review cn pages 27 to 29,

2006 Performance

2005 Performance

Operating margins  Underlying operating Measure progress in 4.7% 7.9%
profit from continuing improving returns in an
businesses + sales from underperforming See page 24
continuing businesses business
Earnings growth Increase in underlying earmnings  Measure success in improving  (72%) N/A
(adjusted EPS) shareholder returns See page 24
Return oninvested  Underlying operating profit Measure success in improving  4.7% 7.3%
capital % from continuing operations returns on our assets
~+ total net assets priar 10 See page 24
impairment, excluding cash and
non interest-bearing liabilities
Revenue growth Third party sales growth Measure growth in strategically 5% 71%
in industrial in industriai irmportant business See page 24
Operating cash flow  Net cash flows from operating  Generating cash available for ~ £44.0 million £74.0 millian
activities, before investing and  reinvestment or distribution See page 24
financing activities
Non-financial KPIs
Recordable Number of recordable Measure our success in 13 12
injury rates (RIR} injuries -+ number of hours ensuring a safe working

worked x 200,000

environment

See page 28
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Operations
INDUSTRIAL

Description of Business

In North America, Fiberweb operates in a
number of areas in construction, filtration,
landscape, furniture and bedding, and
specialities with manufacturing sites based
in Simpsonville, Old Hickory, Bethune and
in Brazil. In construction our major products,
are in housewrap, landscape and geotextile
markets. In Brazil, we produce Bidim™
branded fabric, which is used in roofing,
shoe components and geotextiles in South
America.

We are the market leader in pool and spa
filwation under our strong brand Reemay™.
We also operate in the air filtration market
focusing on cabin air and dean room air
filtration. In the fabnc softener sheet

market we have market-leading technology
and we also manufacture high-performance
products for use in the graphic arts
industry, such as nil-scratch wipes and
dampener covers.

We continue Lo invest resources to maintain
and grow our position in this business.

In the construction industry, Fiberweb's
Typar™ is a strong and well-established
brand for housewrap in North America with
market leading performance. However,
there is a growing number of competitors.

Reemay™ is recognised by many as an
industry standard in filtration markets,
espedially for pool and spa filtration and
Fibenwveb continues to work and improve
the performance of these products to stay
ahead of competition, Reermay™ is also
used ta make fabric softener sheets for
the North American consumer market,

an attractive niche area of application.

Qur industrial specialities business in
Europe is less developed than in North
America. It falls into three main segments:
construction, filtration and agriculture.
During the year, we acquired Blowitex, a
small German roofing business. The
business will increase our presence in the
European roofing market. In South Wales,
UK, our Terram™ business produces
branded geotextiles and geosynthetics
which have a strong market position in the
UX and in some parts of Eurcpe.

In Asia, the Group mainly sells small volumes
of specialist Reernay™ filtration fabrics and
Typar™ for varicus construction applications,
particularly in China. There are intentions to
expand the industrial business in China.

Performance in 2006

industrial sales grew by 5% to £203.2 million
(2005: £193.5 million) with undertying
operating profit of £14.7 million (2005:
£21.2 miltion).

Profits fell due to the effect of the Old
Hickory power outage, raw material cost
increases and softness in landscape sales
and construction margins as well as losses
in the now restructured UK geotextiles
business.

In North America, we believe that we
continue to gain market share in housewrap
despite a dedline in demand for construction
products as a whole due to the downtum in
the US housing market in the second half of
the year. Revenue fell in the landscape
business as a result of increased competition
in traditional channels. Alternative routes to
the market are being explored. A review of
manufacturing assets serving landscape
markets led to the book value of a
production line in the US being writtens down
by £6.1 million. Due o capadty constraints,

revenue in fumiture and bedding was also
down. Sales and margins improved in
filtration compared to the prior year due to
greater seasonal demand in the pool and spa
market and an extended product range.

Sales performance in the spedialties sector,
that includes fabric scftener sheet, was
satisfactory despite price pressures which
restricted margins.

Cur focus on improving customer service
has begun to deliver rewards, stabilising
operational perfarmance and starting the
turmnaround in revenue and profit. The
introduction of a more accurate and
autornated product pricing systern is making
it easier for customers to place orders.

We have also successfully reduced the
defect rate in our Reemay™ products,
which peaked in 2005, again positioning
Reemay™ at the top of the quality
performance ladder and increasing the
capacity to grow that brand further.

We are pasitioring ourselves for top line
growth in the filtration market, with
customers looking for increasing standards
of air and water purity. In construction, we
will focus on extending our product range
into commercial construction as well as
improving our product and service offerings
in residential construction markets to gain
share, in order to be well positioned when
the market recovers. Investrment in 2007
will focus on earnings improvements from
increased capacdity, improved yields, improved
productivity and converting existing assets to
access more attractive markets,

We have reorganised responsibility for
product development within the business
units, ensuring increased market and
customer-focused development. Combined
with a renewed innovation process on




A strong portfolio of products and brands

Fiberweb has launched a number of successful new products in the past
including Typar™ housewrap, Agryl™ crop cover, resciution pint media
and digital printer wipes.

|

IN EUROPE, WE HOLD A MARKET-
LLEADING POSITION IN SPUNBOND

AS A RESULT OF CONTINUOUS
INVESTMENT ACROSS .
MANUFACTURING SITES IN SWEDEN,
FRANCE, GERMANY AND I[TALY. :




Business Review continued

stage-gate and project management
principles, innovation will be accelerated
in 2007,

With growth in the filtration market expected
but some uncertainty as to whether the
construction market will rebound in the
second half of 2007, we will focus on
praviding capacity for products and markets
that are growing and attractive for Fiberweb.

At Bidim™, we have made some progress
despite adverse exchange rates. A new state
of the art carded line started up during the
year, which will increase cutput by 400%.

In Eurcpe, revenue in industrial increased
significantly in 2006 due to the acquisition
of Blowitex for €4.5 million and the
additional sales gained at Line 4 in Bedin
during the second half of the year.

While Berlin had start up costs and initial
operational difficulties, significant
improvemients in yields and quality have
since been made.

We are pleased with the integration of the
Blowitex business with Berlin and Linotec™
and with the growth of sales of Linopore™
our breathable film for roofing membrane
applications. These businesses together
provide a complete solution for flexible
roofing membrane construction materials and
this is helping to sell new capacity in Berin.

Our UK geotextiles and geosynthetics
business has expenenced a difficult year, with
the increase in energy costs, raw maternials
and unfavourable currency movements

which, combined with new capacity
commissioned by competitors, made the
majerity of export sales unprofitable, The
business also suffered as a result of
increased price competition from
manufacturers based in countries with lower
energy and labour costs and the introduction
of additional manufacturing capacity in
Eastern Europe. Restructuring actions at the
end of 2006 reduced manufacturing capacity
by 35%, along with a reduction in headcount
and a leaner management structure
introduced to focus on delivering improved
financial performance at an eventual cash
cost of £1.0 mitlion and impaimment charges
of £7.8 million. Against this difficult
background, gross yield was up from 84% in
the first half of the year to 88% in the
second half. Good progress has been made
in developing new high margin products
induding an innovative fortification and
barrier product with military and
petrochemical applications and a novel
product to accelerate rail rack bed
maintenance.

HYGIENE

Description of the Business

Fiberweb's hygiene business provides
nonwoven fabrics to major consumer
goods companies around the world for
applications in diapers, feminine hygiene,
cosmetic and baby wipes. These are
produced using three principal methods:
spunbond, aifaid and spunlace.

In North America, Fiberweb produces
carded thermal bond material which is used
principally for extensible applications such
as ears and side panels in baby diapers and
spunbond and spunmelt materials as
components for diapers and feminine care
products. Qur manufacturing sites are
located in the USA in Simpsonville,
Bethune, Washougal, Green Bay and
Griswoldvitle as well as in Mexico. Qur
Toronto, Canada site was dosed during the
year and the two lines relocated to Mexico
and Berlin. In Europe, we hold a market
leading posttion as a result of continuous
investment across manufacturing sites in
France, Germany, Italy and Spain. Our
proprietary S-Tex™ spunbond technology is
also used for certain hygiene as well as
industrial applications. Fiberweb has three
spunlace fines serving the wipes market
based at Technofibra and Tenotex in Spain.

At our Chinese fadility based in Tianjin, we
produce advanced airlaid rmatenial for
absorption and/or distribution of liquid for
use in the manufacture of disposable
feminine hygiene praducts.

Performance in 2006

Hygiene has suffered years of declining
performance which was exacerbated during
the year with the impact of the loss of a
major piece of medical fabric business. in
early 2006 it became apparent that a
number of our hygiene lines had become
uncompetitive due to changing technical
requirements and increasing raw material




A global provider for the hygi€ge

Fibenweb's hygiane business provides nonwoven fabricsheligajogeopstiged
goods companies around the world for applications in diapEraie izl eey
cosmetic and baby wipes.




“In Europe the new Korma airlaid line is now
being commissioned. Dedicated to feminine
hygiene products, a significant proportion of

its output is now contracted.”

Business Review continued

prices. As a result, management initiated a
major restructuring which included the
closure of four operating lines in the USA in
addition to the closure of the two Toronte
lines, with a 23% reduction in headcount,
resulting in a reduction in £16.0 million of
sales. This process announced in 2005 was
continued at the end of 2006 by a review
of capacity in the European hygiene
business which resulted in a further
impairment charge of £5.0 million. As a
result of management's actions overall sales
reduced in hygiene to £381.5 million
(2005: £409.8 million). Underlying
operating profit of £14.5 millicn (2005:
£28.9 million} was affected by increases in
raw material and utility costs coupled with
line closures in preparation

for investment in more competitive
capacity. Price concessions to major
customers during the year have also

had an impact on revenue, a continuing
feature of this market.

The mast complex part of the restructuring
has been implemented. The Division is poised
to improve operating effectiveness, invest
strategically for growth and return to
profitability. The outlook for 2007 is promising;
the new Practer & Gamble global spunbond
agreement will provide stable vaiumes in
2007 and beyend. At Simpsonvilie, a new

agreement for carded products will provide
stable volumes but at slim margins.

Spunbond

We have extended and developed our high-
quality blue chip customer base by winning
additional volumes that should provide a
stable platform for the future in both North
America and Europe.

In North America our Washougal site, that
produces specialist fabrics predorminanty for
diaper use, we closed two older and less
efficient lines resulting in a reduction of staff
by about 50%. We have installed a new
calendering system to launch new speciality
hygiene products for a major customer and
successfully transferred a key spedality
preduct from Simpsenwville to this site. The
reorganisation at Simpsonville has resulted in
two lines being closed, the organisational and
managerment structure being strearnlined
and our excess land and buildings being put
up for sale. The former Toronto line has been
successfully installed in Mexico and is
benefiting from increased cutput at this high-
performing site.

In Evrope, revenue fell as a result of a
number of factors. Producticn ceased on
Sweden Line 3 to allow the installation of a
new technology 5.2 metre wide production

Fiberweb is regarded as a technological
innovator with a strong portfolio of
intellectual property.
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line which will be completed in the first
quarter of 2007, when increased capacity is
expected to be in the region of 15%. The
installation of the new R4 technology line in
Sweden has established the appropriate cost
base to compete in the volume hygiene
market.

In Asia, Fiberweb disposed of its 50%
interest in the Thai joint venture CNC in
November 2006, streamlining its presence in
the region. In the Asian hygiene market,
capacity growth for spunbond polypropylene
preducts cutweighed market grawth, resulting
in product price erosion.

Alrlaid

At our Chinese facility in Tianjin, a second
airlaid fine is curently under construction
and is expected 1o be completed in the first
quarter of 2008. This will result in additional
capacity of around 10,000 tonnes.

In Europe, a new airlaid line is now being
commissioned at the Korma site. Dedicated
to ferninine hygiene products, a significant
proportion of its output is now contracted. It
is expected that the investment in the Korma
line will provide around 10,000 tonnes of
airlaid capadity per annum for supplies to
teading hygiene customers. Sales of Korma
laminate products have gradually decreased
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Business Review continued

during the year and we are actively seeking
to replace the lost capacity on the Korma
line with new business. Reflecting these
losses, we took an impairment charge in the
second half of £5.0 million for this and other
now uncompetitive European fines.

Wipes (Spuniace)

Conditions in the wipes market continue to
be difficult although we have halted the
previous decline in volumes and have hed
success in winning additional volume from
private label customers.

In Bethune, South Carolina, we reorganised
the plant structure to reduce headcount by
approximately one-third. This was in
response to poor market conditions in the
first half of the year, which resulted in
Bethune going from being profitable in 2005
to making a loss in 2006. Factors that
affected its performance include the loss of
major velumes of wound care products to a

competitor, considerable price pressures
on hygiene wipes due to over-capacity in
the market and failure by a major customer
to increase its market share, resulting in
lower than expected volumes. The resulting
excess capacity is planned to be filled

with private label wipes business from
mid-2007.

At the time of the demerger we said we
would conclude our strategic review of the
wipes business during 2007. We are making
solid progress in that review. In the meantime,
managerment is focused on delivering
ongoing operational improvements in this
business that will produce further benefits in
the future. The utilisation of capacity has
improved with a sizeable win of additional
private label business. We have made
significant pragress in further differentiating
our manufacturing as well as our range of
wipes products. We expect both of these
developments to improve the profitability of

the business in future. It is expected that the
investment in new canverting equipment
will yield improvernents in margins for
industrial converted products.

Other

The Green Bay site, which praduces
feminine hygiene products, performed
ahead of expectations and the new
warehouse commissioned in the second
half of the year will improve workflow
efficiency. At Bethune, the closure of two
thermal bond machines by the end of
2007 has been announced, with an
impairment charge of £3.4 million.

Sales for the year at our cotton bleaching
business based at Griswoldville was below
expectation and performance in 2005.
The Board and management have
determined that this business is outside
Fiberweb's strategic core and its position in
the Group is under review.

2006 sales —
£584.7 million
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2006 EBIT™ —
£27.5 million
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2006 EBITDA® —
£65.9 million
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(1) Defined as operating profit before restructuring costs, non-recurring items, interest and tax as set out in the audited accounts for the financial year ended 31 December 2006.
(2) Defined as operating profit before restructuring costs, non-recurring ifems, interest, tax, deprediation and amostisation {unaudited.)
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EQ@USING ON NEW PRODUCT AND
BROEESS INNOVATION THAT WILL DRIVE
VALUE FOR CUSTOMERS

Research & Development

Fiberweb's Research ard Development division has research centres
in Europe and the US, where highly experienced scientists and
technicians benefit from a number of pilot lines and sophisticated
analytical laboratories.

Research and Development (R&D) focuses on upsiream product
and process development, while Technica! Services (TS) foduses on
incremental improvernent. Responsibility for both these aspcts of
praduct and process development is co-ordinated between jthe R&D
and TS departments in the US and Europe.
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REVENUE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

2002 - 2006
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2002* 003 2004 2005 2006
. . “unzudied B INDUSTRIAL i HYGIERE j
Business Review continued
2006 2005
Restructuring Restructuring

costs and Underlying casts and Underlying

Operating non-recurring operating Operating NON-TECUrTing operating

Sales loss/profit items profit Sales profit items profit

£ million £ million E million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million

Industrial 2032 04 14.3 147 1935 207 0.5 212

Hygiene 381.5 (68.3) 828 14.5 409.8 16.3 126 289

Unallocated corporate - (.7 - (7 - 2.2) - (2.2)

Total 584.7 {69.6) 97.1 215 603.3 34.8 13.1 479

Overview of performance

Fiberweb has suffered falling profitability for
the last few years. As a result, it has
undergone significant restructuring, which is
reflected in restructuring charges and non-
recurring items charges of £97.1 million
during the year. These include cash costs of
£8.2 million and asset impairments of
£83.8 million (including £14.6 million
goodwill impairment). This restructuring
started to benefit the business in the
second half of 2006 and we expect to see
further benefits in 2007,

Financial KPIs

Underlying operating margins in 2006
were 4.7% (2005: 7.9%) as a result of the
trading and structural factors described
earfier that severely reduced our profits. Our
tumaround plan is aimed at growing
operating margins across our businesses.
Operating margins grew slightly in the
second half of the year after taking account
of the power cutage at Old Hickory and the
new PLC costs,

We saw similar movements in two profit-
driven KPls: Earmings growth was also
affected, with adjusted EPS of 5.4 pence
(2005: 19.3 pence) due to reduced profits.
Return on Invested Capital (ROIC), is a
key measure of success in improving
performance in an asset-intensive business
such as Fiberweb. ROIC fell from 7.3% to
4.7%, reflecting reduced profitability and the
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early stages of reinvestment. It is crucial that
we reverse this trend.

Revenue Growth in Industrial was 5%
on 2005, an important indicator of success
in maintaining momentum in these
businesses despite challenging external
conditions, notably in North America.
Operating Cash Flow (Net Cash from
Operating activities} was positive at £44.0
million {£74.0 million), the reduction
reflecting fower profits and the cash cost of

executing management's restructuring plans.

Basis of reporting

The Fiberweb Group demerged from BBA
Group plc on 17 Novernber 2006. The
results of Group for 2006 and comparative
information for 2005 are presented here as
if the Group had existed throughout 2005
and 2006, with the following notable
features:

i) for the period up to demerger, the profit
and loss account {and in particular the
interest charge and taxation charge) reflects
the capital structure then in place which
included financing through intercompany
indebtedness to BBA and the surrender of
taxation losses to BBA without payment;

i) the 2006 incorne statement does not
reflect amounts incurred on behalf of
Fiberweb by BBA but not charged to it,
amounting to £2.7 million for the year, of
which £2.1 million was in the first half.

As a consequence the results for 2006 are
not representative of future periods since
they exclude a number of ongoing costs of
Fiberweb Group as a standalone public
comparny.

Treasury policy

Treasury activities are governed by written
policies approved by the Board. The Group
operates a central Treasury function that
manages and monitors extemal and intemal
funding and Treasury risks, including interest
rate and currency management. The Group's
policy is to borrow in the currency of its majer
operating investments, mainly under the
USD440 millicn five year multi-currency
Revolving Credit Facility (RCF") and to bormow
a significant proportion at fixed rates, or to fix
interest rates by using interest rate swaps or
other derivatives. This is in order to manage
interest rate risk. Interest rates have been
fixed up to 2011 for a principal amount of
SD100 million at a blended average rate of
4.8% plus margin. In addition to the main
RCF, the Group consicers local borrowings
where this appears to be advantageous.

Interest charge and borrowings

The published net interest charge of £14.7
million (2005: £14.6 million} is little changed
and reflects the debt level in the BBA-owned
capital structure for the 10% manth period up
to dermerger, when £90 million of
intercompany debt was forgiven by BBA.
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Therefore the full-year interest charge is
not representative of the likely level of
interest cost in future years. The interest
charge is based primanly on US dollar
interest rates, with the balance in euro
and Swedish krona.

Net debt fell dunng the year as a result of the
intercompany debt forgiveness, with the
balance of the intercompany funding being
replaced by the RCF

Greup borowing ratios are monitored
closely, in particular the ratio of net debt to
ERITDA and EBITDA to interest, both of
which are covenants in the RCF. At 31
December 2006, these ratios were 2.5
{covenant 3.5 times) and 5.3 {covenant
5.0 times) respectively.

Taxation

The reported underlying taxation charge of
£6.2 million is at an effective rate significantly
higher than that expected to prevail in future
periods, at around 48%. This is because of
1ax lesses that have not been fully valued as
their recoverability is not well assured.

The Group's rate of taxation is highest in the
US and Germany, while it benefits from low
rates of taxation in China, where it has a tax
holiday.

Restructuring costs and

nan-recurring items

These charges total £97.1 million and
reflect the costs of restructuring significantly
the North American hygiene business

and certain assets in the Eurcpean
businesses, including Terram, the UK-based
geo-lextiles business. The cash element of
these charges is £8.2 million. A charge of
£1.6 millicn relates to the non-cash cost

of the disposal of the Thai nonwovens
business, CNC.

Cash flow, net debt and liquidity

The Group generated net cash flow from
operating activines of £44.0 million, before the
£8.2 million cash restructunng. A further £47.8
million was invested in capital expenditure,
discussed below.

The Croup manages liquidity risk by
maintaining committed credit facilities,

which are described above. At vear end
2006, the Group had higher liquidity, in the
form of cash deposits, than the normal levels
before demerger. This s because, cash
pooling struciures of B3A, the former paient,
were no longer availab e. It is Fiberweb's
intention to replace these cash management
structures and money market facilities, so that
the businesses reduce cushions of liquidity to
manage cash flow volatility,

Foreign currency risk

Fiberweb operates globally, with the bulk of
its profits earned outsice the UK. The Group
has significant investments around the world,
with the largest proporion in the United
States. As a result the Group is subject to
translation risk due to movernents between
various currendies (ma nly the US dollar

and the euro) and its raporting currency,
sterling. In order to mit gate the effect of
foreign exchange movements on its
reported earnings, the Sroup borrows in

the currencies of its operations, thus creating
a natural hedge for a proportion of its
balance sheet.

The Group can consider hedging a
proportion of the translation risk relating to
earnings when this app-ears to be
advantageous. There is limited transactional
exposure as there is little trading across
currency borders. The bulk of raw material
sourcing and other prozurements is in the
currency of operation, and the total volume
of Fiberweb's business which is affected by
currencies is less than 10% of its turmover.
It is the Group's palicy to hedge those
exposures which are rraterial for a period of
up to 12 months, using a specified range of
financial instruments.

Table of FX rates

2006 2005

UsD Average 1.83 1.82
Year end 1.96 1.72

ewro Average 1.47 1.46
Year end 1.48 1.46
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Business Review continued

The nature of our industry, which involves
large and complex manufacturing
equipment, means that the safety and well-
being of our people is paramount. Post
demerger, this has been a key area of focus
and matters relating to health and safety are
discussed at each Board meeting. As
discussed below, we measure and track how
we do in keeping our people safe at work.

Our businesses support the local
communities in which they operate.
Examples of some of the initiatives our
people have been involved in during the
year are discussed in more detail below.

Health, safety and the environment

We are committed to continual
improvement in our Health, Safety and
Environmental ("HS&E") performance. We
recognise that delivering a successful HS&E
management programme depends on the
total commitment of all our employees.

Such cammitment and leadership will be
visible throughout Fiberweb, with
accountability demonstrated at every
functional level of the organisation. Following
the demerger, we are establishing systems to
support our goal of continuous improvernent
in all aspects of corporate social responsibifity.

Our Health and Safety programme is made
up of the following elements:

1. Safety performance metrics

Ensuning the health and safety of all Fiberweb
employees is our highest priority and a core
business value. To support this, we have
committed personnel and capital resources at
every Fiberweb facility to promote a safe and
healthy working environment for all employees.
In addition to initiatives and policies and
procedures to prevent the occurence of
incidents and injuries, our efforts o alleviate
unsafe conditions and prevent the potential
for incidents and injuries include the close
tracking, evaluation and analysis of incidents
that rmay oceur.

We closely track and evaluate our facilities’
Recordable Incident Rates (RIR) trends and
setting improvernent targets helps to
eliminate unsafe practices and conditions
and to prevent injuries. Fiberweb uses RIR as
a primary health and safety performance
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metric to create global consistency, Fiberweb
employs a more stringent criteria for defining
a recordable incident than that used by the
U.S. Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (OSHA) and the UK Health
and Safety Executive (HSE), induding injuries
where more than one day is lost as well as
incidents that require medical treatment even
if no work days are fost

Although Fiberweb's RIR performance was
relatively constant from 2005 to 2006 (1.3
in 2006 versus 1.2 in 2005), its RIR has
improved by more than 64% from 2001 to
2006 (3.6 in 2001 versus 1.3 in 2006).
Fiberweb's 2006 RIR of 1.3 autperformed the
representative nonwovens industry average of
4.9 by 73%. In addition, six Fiberweb facilities
completed the whole of 2006 without a
single recordable injury. Initiatives are in place
to continue Fibenweb's safety performance
improvement in 2007 and beyond.

Fiberweb plc Recordable Incident Rate
10
= Fiberweb RIR
8 m— Industry Average
/\ -
[} __f-\
4 r—
2 I— — ﬁ
o W
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2. Initiatives

Our training and development opportunities
and initiatives provide employees with the
skills, resources and knowledge they need,
both to thrive as individuals and to improve
our business performance in this area,

HS&E Forums — Fiberweb holds HS&E
forums to ensure the continued development
of our people and to further increase the
Group-wide focus on integrating HS&E issues
inte the broader CSR context. These forums
provide the opportunity to discuss a variety of
topics that directly impact our facilities,

Behavioural Based Safety — Following on
the success that we have had in developing
and implementing behavioural-based safety
(BBS) systems at a number of our facilities

in the Americas, we have taken steps to
enhance and expand the programime by
developing an online BBS tool box.
Accessible via the Fibenweb HS&E intranet
site, this tool box includes information
focused on assisting facilities with
implementing BBS systems that function
within their various facility-specific cultures.

Incident Investigation — Our incident
investigation process has been streamlined,
moving away from the traditional “checklist
investigation” towards a more “free form”
appraach that will still capture essential
incident data required for tracking and
trending anafysis, while still getting to the
root cause of incidents. Steps wilt be taken
during 2007 to ensure this streamlined
approach is uniformly and successfully
implemented globally.

Process Safety — While Fiberweb facilities are
not regulated under OSHA's process safety
standard, our manufacturing facilities apply
process safety prindples to aid in
understanding and effectively cantrolling
process safety risks. In support of these
efforts, process safety traiming was conducted
to provide a working knowledge of process
safety concepts principles and tools to those
Fiberweb employees who design, operate,
review, and maintain hazardous systerns.
Additionally, a standardised, formal Process
Safety Review/HAZOP process has been
developed and is being implemented
uniformly throughout the businesses.

A number of process salety reviews and
HAZOPS were conducted throughout the
business during 2006.

3. External Recognition

Many Fiberweb facilities, employees and
activities have won recognition for their
outstanding HS&E performance. We
recognise those who have earned this
distinction as models for our entire
organisation, The following are some recent
examples of external recognition:

Griswoldville Re-certified for OSHA's VPP
“Star” Safety Performance — In 2006, the
Griswoldville, Massachusetts (USA) facility
continued its excellent safety tradition as it
was re-certified as & Star Status facility under
Occupational Safety and Mealth
Administration’s (OSHA's) Voluntary Protection




Fiberweb has begun a small volume business
based on biopolymers from renewable sources,

which is growing rapidly.

Programme (VPP). Griswoldville was first
awarded QSHA's Star status in May 2003.

The purpose of VPP is to encourage worker
safety and health protection. There are
approximately only 130G VPP certified sites
in the US, ranging from petrachermical o
plastic to construction.

Green Bay, WI (USA) Star Status and
Exemplary Safety Recognition - The Green
Bay, Wisconsin {USA), fadlity has been
recognised at both the national and state levels
for safety and health excellence. The company
has worked more than four years without a
recordable incident and is approaching ten
years without a |ost-time accident.

The Green Bay facility was the first company
in Wisconsin to receive Star status in OSHA's
Voluntary Protection Programme (VPP),
which it has maintained since 1994. The
Green Bay facility was also recognised for its
outstanding safety commitment with a
Wisconsin Corporate Safety Grand Award.
Sponsored by the Wisconsin Coundil of
Safety and the State Department of
Worklorce Development, the programme
honours businesses for exemplary safety
records and excellence in health and safety
rmanagement.

Mexico Facility Recognised for Qutstanding
Safety Programmes — In 2005, the Labour
Ministry of Mexico {STPS} gave health and
safety awards to companies in the
Guanajuato region that participated
successfully in voluntary programmes of
health and safety self-assessment and
continuous improvement. The Fiberweb
Mexico facility recewved a Certificate of
Acknowledgement for their achievements
in work safety and hygiene management.
This certification is Level 3, the highest level
for a company which has completed all
stages of these voluntary programmes.

Fiberweb Mexico has participated in
voluntary programmes since 2000 and this
is the second time that the facility has
received this kind of acknowledgment.

The Environment

We encourage each of our facilities to work
toward reducing our emvironmental footprint.
For a number of years, we have focused on
identifying and improving performance on

Useng annasl reneureble resowrces,

Using renewable and bicdegradable resources

key areas of envirenmental impact, which
include waste creation, energy consumption,
and water consumption.

Though businesses are encouraged to report
all environmental impacts, key performance
information is collecled twice a year through
the Environmental Index, an electronic data
collection system, and reported annually.
Data on the global business environmental
impacts for 2006 will be available in the
second hall of 2007 and reported on our
website.

Supply Chain

Fiberweb continues to actively work with
suppliers and customers to design and
develop products that do not adversely
impact the environrment, heaith or safety of
our broader communities. For example,
Fiberweb's launch of products capable of
protecting property by withstanding hurricane-
force winds has generated significant interest
In coastal areas of the U.S. In pool and spa
filtration, the launch of a biocide-impregnated
filter resulted from a real focus on the needs
and concemns of the consumer.

Here we highlight some of our products and
services that are positively impacting the
environment, health or safety of our
communities.

Taking Care of the Animals — Sodaf is a
French company that specialises in drainage
and land improvements. To help protect the
animals inhabiting the areas where Sodal
works, Terram™ supplies Sodaf with geonets,
a spedialised plastic mesh product. These
geonets are helping Sodaf to sustain animal
welfare in locations where water courses
exist. The plastic mesh is used as a "ladder”
to facllitate animaal escapes from water
courses and keep the natural ecosystern
unharmed.

A Fibre that Sustains the Environment —
With the help of NatureWorks* Ingeo* fibres,
the Fiberweb Tenotex SpA. facility in Raly is
delivering on the Graup’s promise to use,
were passible, environmentally friendly
materials in product development The
composition of Ingeo fibres is polylactic acid
(PLA). These fibres are derived from corn, an
annually renewable and biodegradable raw
material. The fibres are compostable in

standard compasting facilities. In addition, the
nonwoven material manufactured from these
fibres reduces fossil fuel consumption and
generates fewer greenhouse gases than the
alternatives. Using the Irgeo fibres has
allowed the Tenotex faciity to develop
compostable and recyclable nonwovens
without compromising ¢ erformance. The
nonwavens are sold to & third-party
manufacturer of feminine hygiene preducts
and marketed under the brand name LOVE'N.

Recycling — At Bidim, we use bottle flakes
from recycled soft diink bottles 1o produce
pclyester nonwovens for use in our products.
The amount of flakes used is equivalent to
ning million two lire boitles a year.

The Wider Communily

Qur businesses are committed to their
communities through support across a
range of orgamisations and charities.
Some exarmples of initigtives in 2006 are:

s Working with Habitat for Humanity,
Fiberweb North America Industrial
sponsored the building of a house in
Nashville, Tennessee. The house was
built by Fiberweb emiployees using our
products. We alsc perticpated in the
“Building Blocks” habitat home build
programme in the atumn of 2006.
This programme built 10 houses in five
days with Fiberweb employees giving
their time. Our Typar * housewrap was
also used in the construction process,

¢ Fiberweb North America Industrial has
held fund-raising drives and made
donations to the Percil Foundation, a
local charity that aims o provide school
supplies to underprivileged school
children in the local Nashville area.

* Our employees in Simpsenville and
Gray Court led successful fundraising
campaigns for The United Way, a
nationally recognised, community-based
organisation that provides local funding to
local non-profit orgar isations.

¢ Through the Alessi Foundation, cur
businesses in Italy help to support
15 Indian boys.

e fiberweb China madz donations to
support local disabled people in 2006.
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Board of Directors

THE BOARD CONSISTS OF THE CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE, FINANCE DIRECTOR
AND THREE INDEPENDENT NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS.

1. Malcolm Coster (62)

Non executive Chairman,
Chairman, Nomination Committee

He joined Fiberweb as Chairman-designate
in June 2006, was appointed to the Board
on 30 August 2006 and was appointed
Chairman with effect from the Demerger.
He is Chairman of MTL Instruments Group
Plc and DMW Group and a non executive
director of the Performing Right Society.
He is also a member of the International
Advisary Board of Moore, Clayton & Co,,
an international financial advisory group.
He was a non executive director of

British Technology Group until July 2006.
An engineer by training, he was President
of Europe, Middle East and Africa for
UNISYS Corporation between 1994 and
1997 and Chairman of UNISYS Limited
and a member of the board, as an
executive partner, at Coopers & Lybrand
between 1986 and 1994.

2. Daniel Dayan (43)
Chief Executive Officer

He joined Fiberweb in June 2005 as its
Chief Executive Officer and was appointed 1o
the Board on 21 July 2006. Between 1994
and 2005 he was employed by Novar PLC,
in a variety of general management and
functional positions, including Head of
Corporate Development and Chief Executive
Officer of Novar's largest division, Intelligent
Building Systems. He was a director of
Novar PLC from January 2004 until its
acquisition by Honeywell in March 2005,
Earlier in his career, he worked in
manufacturing management with ICI plc and
as a management consultant for Arthur D,
Little. He is a chartered mechanical engineer.
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3. Simon Bowles (49)
Chief Financial Officer

He joined Fiberweb in July 2006 as its
Chief Financial Officer and was appointed
to the Board on 21 July 2006. Prior io
joining Fiberweb, he was Deputy Group
Finance Director of RAC plc from 2002 to
2005. Previously to this, he held a number
of senior financial rales at The BOC Group
pic. He is a qualified Chartered Accountant
and Corporate Treasurer.

4. Peter Hickman (43)

Non executive director
Chairman, Audit Committee

He was appointed to the Board an

31 August 20056 and is Chairman of the
Audit Committee. He is the director, group
finance for HBOS plc and is responsible
for the group’s financial reporting, strategic
planning and tax affairs. Prior to joining
HBOS plc, he was a partner at Emst &
Young, having worked there since 1985.
He is a qualified Chartered Accountant
and has an MA in engineering.

5. Richard Stillwell (57)

Non executive director,
Senior Independent Director
Chairman, Remuneration Committee

He was appointed to the Board on

30 August 2006 and is the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and the
Senior Independent Director. A practising
barmister, he was a non executive director
of BBA Group plc from 1998 until 2006
and Chairman of its Rermuneration
Committee. He is also a non executive
director of St Ives plc and Penna Consulting
Ple. Untit August 2000, he was Executive
Vice-President Industrial Spedialities at
Imperial Chernical Industries plc, where
he had held various posts since 1974.

6. Brian Taylorson (51}
Non executive director

He was appointed to the Board on

25 September 2006. He is currently
Finance Director of Elementis plc, a global
speciality chemicals company, a position
he has held since April 2003. Prior to
joining Elementis in 2002, he was Head
of European Chemicals M&A at KPMG
Corparate Finance. From 1983 ta 2000
he held a number of finance positions at
Dow Chemical Company. He is a qualified
Chartered Accountant and a member of
the Association of Corporate Treasurers.




A Strong Board — Complementary mix of skills and experience

Historic
knowledge
Relevant and familiarity  Business and
Manufacturing Turmaround Financial industry  with Fiberweb commercial
experience experience  qualifications expedqience businesses experience
Executive directors
Daniel Dayan
Chief Executive Officer v v v v v
Simon Bowles
Chief Financial Officer v v v v
Non executive directors
Malcolm Coster
Chairman v v v v
Peter Hickman v v v
Richard Stillwell v v v v

Brian Taylorson v v v v v




WHO BETWEEN THEM HAVE EXTENSIVE EXPERIENCE IN THE\_
NONWOVENS SECTOR AND INTERNATIONAL MANUFACTURING.™
THEY LEAD A PROGRAMME OF CHANGE AND DRIVE FOR \
CONTINUQUS IMPROVEMENT IN RESULTS THROUGH GLOBAL }
TEAMS AND LOCAL BUSINESS UNITS.
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Daniel Dayan Simon Bowles David Rousse Derek Anderson
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer President, Americas Hygiene President, Armericas Industnal

\
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WE HAVE IN PLACE A STRONG, MULTINATIONAL EXECUTIVETEAM
|
|

Gianluigi Fomoni Derek Chan Carsten Heldmann Bridget Bradshaw
President, Europe President, Asia Head of Research and Development  Head of HR and Change
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their annual report together with the finandial staternents
and auditor’s report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2006.

Principal Activities and Business Review

Fiberweb is an international group of businesses dedicated to the
developrent, manufacturing and supply of specialist norwovens fabrics.
The principal activity of the Company is that of a holding company, co-
ordinating and managing the activities of several subsidiaries around the
world 1¢ serve customers, develop products and services, optimise
manufacturing and supply chain functions, invest in assets and acquisitions
and thereby create shareholder value.

The subsidiary and associated undertakings principally affecting the profits
or net assets of the Group in the year are listed on page 84,

A review of the Group's principal activities are set out in the Business
Review on pages 12 to 29 which is included as part of this report.

The Company is required to set out in this report a fair review of the business
of the Group during the finandial year ended 31 December 2006, the
position of the group at the end of the financial year and a description of
the prindpal sisks and uncertainties fadng the group known as a ‘Business
Review’. The infarmation that fulfils the requirements of the Business Review
can be found in the pages listed below, which are incorporated in this report
by reference.

Pages
Review of Resuits 12
Key Performance Indicators 15
Operations 16 to 22
Financial Review 241027
Risks and Uncertainties 26 and 27
Corporate Social Responsibility 271029

A descrption of the objectives and strategies of the Company can be
found in the following sections of this Annual Report:

Pages
Chairman’s Staternent 6and 7
Chief Executive’s Statement 3to 11
Business Review 12 to 29

Information on disabled ermployees and employee consultation is also
set out in the following section of the Business Review:

Page
Employees 27

Results and Dividends

The results for the year, which were approved by the Board of Directors
on 26 February 2007, are set out in the accompanying finandal statements
on pages 49 to €7

The Board recommends the payment of a final ordinary share dividend for
2006 of 3.95 pence net per share. Subject to shareholder approval, the
dividend will be payable on 29 May 2007 to shareholders on the register
at the close of business on 27 April 2007,

A dnidend reirvestment plan is in place that allows shareholders to purchase
additional shares in the Company using their cash dividend. Further
information regarding the plan is set out on page 88 of this report

Acquisitions and Disposals

Acquisitions

On 5 May 2006, the Group acquired Blowitex for a consideration of £2.3
million, & patential eam-out consideration of up to £0.5million and the
purchase of 1eal estate for a consideration of £0.8 million.

Disposals
On 24 November 2006, the Group disposed of its 50% interest in CNC
International Limited for a consideration of £5.4 rillion in cash.

Share Capital and Authority to Purchase Ovimn Shares
Details of the authorised and issued share capital of the Company are
shown in note 25 of the financial statements.

The Company was given authority to make market purchases of up to
approximately 10 per cent of its existing ordinary sha ‘e capital by a resolution
passed on 26 October 2006. This authority will expire at the condusion of
the Company's first Annual General Meeting to be: held on 2 May 2007
uniess renewed. Accordingly, a spedal resolution to renew the authority will
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Veeting. Details of the
resolution renewing the authority to purchase ordinary shares are set out in
the Notice of Annual General Meeting enclosed with this report

The Company did not purchase any of its issued ordinary shares during
the year under the authority mentioned above.

Substantial Shareholdings and Voting Rights

At close of business on 26 February 2007, the Company has been notified
under section 198 of the Companies Act 1985 (as amended) of the
following interests, which represenied three pe- cent or more of the
existing issued ordinary share capital of the Company.

% of issued

Numter of ordinary

Name of Holder shares share capital

F&C Asset Management 13,954,779 11.40%
FMR Cormp. and

Fidelity Intemational Limited 11,252,808 9.19%

Franklin Resources, Inc. 6,451,600 5.27%

Standard Life Investments 4,086 017 3.34%

One East Partners Master, LLP 3,876725 3.17%

At the close of business on 26 February 2007, the Company has been
notified of the following interests in voting rights attached to shares under
Disclosure and Transparency Rule 5.

% of total

Number of number of

Name of Holder voling 1 ghis voting rights
The Goldman Sachs Group Inc. 12,582,619 10.28%
Schroders ple 12,225,386 9.99%
Aviva plc 9,953,116 8.13%
Barclays Plc 9,851,180 8.05%
Prudential pic 6,265,283 5.11%
Legal & General Group Plc 4,225,741 3.45%
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Directors’ Report continued

Property Values

The directors are of the opinion that the market values of the Group's
properties are not substantially different from the values included in the
Group's financial statements.

Charitable and Political Donations

The Company made no political donations during the year. Group donations
to charities worldwide were £75,000 (2005: £40,000), with UK charities
receiving €nil (2005: nil).

Supplier Payment Policy .

It is the Company's and Group's palicy to settle terms of payment with
suppliers when agreeing the terms of each transaction, to ensure that suppliers
are aware of the terms of payment and to abide by terms of payment.
Trade creditors of the Group at 31 December 2006 were equivalent to 43
days’ purchases, based on the average daily amount invoiced by suppliers
during the year.

Board of Directors

The names of the directors of the Company as at the date of this report,
together with their dates of appointrnent, their biographical details and
details of their skills and experience are shown on pages 30 and 31.

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, all the directors
will retire at the first Annual Generat Meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for election by shareholders,

Directors’ Interests

Details of the directors’ service contracts, remuneration and interests in the
shares of the Company are set aut in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on pages 41 to 46.

Other than their service contracts, no director had any interest in any
material contract with any group comparyy at any time during the year,

Directors’ Indemnities
The Company entered into a Deed of Indemnity with each of the directors

* of the Company on 19 October 2006 and each Deed of Indemnity remains

in force at the date of this report. The terms of each of these deeds are
identical and reflect the statutory provisions on indemnnities introduced by
the Companies (Audit, Investigations and Community Enterprise) Act 2004.
Under the terms of each deed, the Company undertakes to indemnify the
relevant director, to the fullest extent permitted by law, against any and all
fiability, howsoever caused (induding by that director's own negligence),
suffered or incurred by that director in the course of acting as a director or
employee of the Company or any rember of the Group.
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Similarly, the Company entered into a Deed Poll of indemnity in favour of
the Company Secretary and other persons discharging managerial
responsibility on 30 October 2008, The terms of the deed poll are similar
to the terms of the Deed of Indemnity entered into with the directors,

The Deeds of Indemnities, Deed Poll of Indemnity and the Company's
Articles of Association are available for inspection during normal business
hours at the Company's registered office and will also be available for
inspection at the Annual General Meeting.

Annual General Meeting

The Company's first Annual General Meeting will be held at Baker &
McKenzie LLP, 100 New Bridge Street, London EC4V BIA on Wednesday,
2 May 2007 at 11.30am. Endosed with this report is the Notice of Annual
General Meeting, which sets out the resolutions to be considered and
approved at the meeting. These are explained in a letter from the
Chairman, which-accompanies the Notice.

Disclosure of Information to Auditors
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of the approval of this
annual report confirms that:

e Sofar as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the Company's Auditors are unaware; and

o  The director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a
director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's Auditors are aware of
that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with
the provisions of Section 234ZA of the Companies Act 1985 (as amended).

Auditors
A resolution to re-eppoint Deloitte & Touche LLP as auditars of the Company
will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

This repart was approved by the Board on 26 February 2007 and is signed
on its behalf by:

Lucille Dolor
Company Secretary

Registered Office:

1 Victoria Villas
Richmand on Thames
TWG 20W




Corporate Governance

Fiberweb plc is committed to complying with the best practice principles
of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance adopted by the Financial
Reporting Coundil in July 2003 (“the Code™).

Prior to listing the Board carried out a review of the Code and took steps
to evaluate the Company's compliance with its provisions and discussed and
agreed steps 10 achieve compliance. Between listing and 31 December
2006, the Company has been in compliance with the Code provisions set
outin Section 1 of the Code except in respect of the following matters:

Code Provision

A3 The Chairman did not meet with the non executive directors
without the executives present.

Al3 The Senior Independent Director did not meet with the non
executive directors without the Chairman present.

AB.1 No Board Performance Evaluation was carried out during
the year.

C34 The Audit Committee did not review arrangements by which
staff of the Company may, in confidence, raise concems about
possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other
matters,

C.35 The Audit Commitiee did not review the effectiveness of the
internal audit activities.

b The Senior Independent Director did not meet with major

shareholders during the year,

The reasons for non-compliance with the provisions of the Code as
detailed above are set out in this report, together with the steps being
taken to achieve compliance during 2007.

The Role of the Board

The Board as a whole has respansibility for the success of the Company. The
Board meets regularly 1o determine the strategic direction of the Group and
to review operating, financial and risk performance and intends to hold
eight scheduled Board meetings in each financial year with additional
meetings being called as and when required. Specific responsibiliies are
delegated to Board Committees as described later in this report.

There 15 a formal schedule of matters reserved to the Board that includes
the following:

»  approval of the Group's strategy;

®  acquisitions, disposals and capital expenditure projects above certain
thresholds;

o all guarantees and treasury policies;

+ the finandal staternents and assessment of financial performance;
e the Company's dividend policy;

®  transactions involving the issue or purchase of Company shares;

e borrowing powers;

e  appointments to the Board and the appoir tment of the Company
Secretary;

e legal actions brought by or against the Group above certain
thresholds; and

¢ the scope of delegations to Board Committees and executive
management of the Group.

The full schedule of matters reserved for Board aporoval can be viewed on
the Company's website at wwwifiberweb.com. The schedule of matters will
be reviewed on an annuai basis. Matters outside the scope of the formal
schedule of matters are decided by managemen: in accordance with the
delegated authority limits within the Group Autherity Limits Policy.

in order to ensure that all matiers are given due <onsideration, the Board
has adopted an annual schedule of agenda items, which will be reviewed
yearly.

Some of the matters that will be considered by *he Board on an ennual
basis include:

s annual strategy review;

» divisional updates and business plans;
o annual budget setting and approval;

o review of group policies; and

e patent portfolio review.

At each meeting, the Board is provided with an update from the Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer on current trading and outlook,
financial performance and updated on any othe: significant matiers, The
Divisional Presidents and the Global Head of Research and Development
will present to the Board at least once a year, 11 addition, other senior
managers such as the Head of Corporate Development, Head of Treasury,
Head of HR and Change and Head of Legel regularly update the Board
on developments in their area of responsibility.

During 2006, the full Board met on four occasiors, These meetings were
supplemented by a further number of routine Boaid and Board Committee
meetings which were called to deal with specific matters including the
demerger process. Details of attendance at the pincipal Board and Board
Committee meetings are set out in the table below:

The directors are usualty supplied with detailed and comprehensive papers
covering each agenda item in advance of every Board meeting. The agenda
is set by the Chairman in conjunction with the Chief Executive, the Chief
Financial Cfficer and the Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for the timeliness and
quality of information and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matiers and Board procedures. All directors have access to
the advice and the services of the Company Secratary.

The directors can obtain independent professional advice at the Company's
expense in performance of their duties as directo's. None of the directors
obtained independent prafessional advice in the period under review.
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Details of attendance at the principal Board and Board Committee meetings during 2006 are set out below:

Remuneration Nomination

Committee

Audit
Committee

Full Board

T
Attendance:

Malcolm Coster Chairman
Daniel Dayan CEO
Simon Bowles CFO

Non executive director
Non executive director
MNon executive director

Peter Hickman
Richard Stillwell
Brian Taylorson

Notes

Committee

W B Wk b
_
I

1. Fiberweb was incorporated on 22 January 2006 and was listed an 17 November 2006. The prindpal Board meetings referred to in the table abave were held on
31 August 2006, 25 Septerber 2006, 31 Octaber 2006 and 8 December 2006.
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The Board, Board Balance and Independence

The Board comprises two exeautive directors and four non executive directors
who contribute a wide range of complementary skills and expefience. Details
of each director's skills and experience are set out on pages 30 to 31.

The Chairman of the Board is Malcolm Coster, who was appointed
Chairman-designate in June 2006 and became Chairman with effect from
the demerger from BBA CGroup. The Chairman's other significant
commitments are set out on page 30. There have been no changes to his
significant commitments since his appointment.

The Chief Executive Officer is Daniel Dayan. Richard Stilhwell is the Senior
Independent Director. He is availzble to shareholders if they have concems
that the normal channels of contact with the Chaiman or Chief Executive
would not resolve.

The Board believes that there is an appropriate balance of executive and non
executive directors on the Board, without one individua! or group dominating
the Board's dedsior-making process.

The Board has determined all its non executive directors to be independent
in character and judgement. The non executive Chairman, Malcolm Coster,
was considered independent in character and judgernent on appointment.
While the assessment of independence is not required for a senving Chairman
under the Code, the Board considers that its Chairman's independence is not
compromised despite his fee structure, which allows for the payment of his
fees in cash and shares. Further details of the Chairman's fee amangement
are set out in the Remuneration Repost on pages 41 to 46.

The Board will assess the independence of its non executive directors on 2
continuous basis.
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Peter Hickman was appointed to the Board on 31 August 2006. Peter Hickman did not attend the August meeting.

Brian Taylorson was appointed to the Board on 25 September 2006 and attended all meetings heid from his date of appointment

At the invitation of the Remuneration Committee Chairman, Malcalm Coster attended the Remuneration Committee meeting hetd on 24 November 2006.
At the invitation of the Audit Commiittee Chairman, Daniel Dayan and Simon Bowles attended the Audit Cormmittee meeting held on 8 December 2006.

Role of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and there
is a clear division of responsibilities between these roles. In accordance
with the Code, the Board has adopted a format written staternent of the
division of respansibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

The Chairman leads the Board and ensures the effective engagement
and contnbution of all non executive and exeautive directors. In conjunction
with the Company Secretary, he is respansible for ensuring that directors
receive information in an accurate, clear and timely manner. He is
respansible for promoting effective dedsion making and ensunng that
the performance of the Board, its committees and individual directors are
evaluated on an annual basis. He is also responsible for ensuring that
appropriate training, strengthening and developrment occurs. The Chairman
has active contact and involvemnent with the executive directors and the
affairs of the Company. This serves to keep him abreast of current business
issues but also provides the executive directors with access to an
independent opinion on day-to-day business decisions.

The Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for the day-to-day
managerment of the Group's businesses and acts in accordance with the
authority delegated by the Board. He is responsible for developing and
proposing a strategy for consideration and adoption by the Board and for
implementing the Board's strategies, dedisions and policies. He is also
responsible for ensuring that the business strategy and activities are
effectively communicated and promaoted within and outside the business,
building positive relationships with the Company’s stakeholders and for
creating and developing the Company's culture.




Board Appointments

Primary responsibility for planned and progressive refreshing of the Board
lies with the Board. The Board, through the work of the Nomination
Committee ensures that there is a formal, rigorous and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new directors. Further details of the
waork of the Nomination Committee are set out below.

Appointments of non executive directors are made by the Board fer an
initial term of three years, which is subject to the usual regulatory provisions
and continued satisfactory performance of their duties following the Board's
annual performance evaluation. Re-appointment for a further term is not
automatic but may be made by mutual agreement.

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, all directors are
subject to re-election at least every three years.

The fees of the non executive directors are determined by the Board as a
whole on the recomimendation of the Chairman and the executive direciors.
The Chairman’s fees are determined by the Board on the recommendation
of the Chief Executive Officer. No director is invalved in deciding his
remuneration or fees.

On appointment, al! non executive directors are advised of the time
commitment expected of them to fulfil their duties.

Letters of appointment for the non executive directors are available for
inspection on request.

Board Induction, Development and Training

The Board has adogied a formal written programme for the induction of new
directors to familianse themselves with the Group's businesses, undersiand
the goals, objectives and mission of the Company and develop an
awareness and understanding of the views of the Company's major
shareholders. The programeme is also structured 10 enable the new director
to gain an understanding of his or her own specific duties and
responsibiliies. The programme, developed in accordance with the: Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators guidelines on Board induction,
is made up of a combiration of selected written corporate information,
meetings with key senicr management and site visits anci can be tailored
to meet each new director's specific needs, skills and experience. Where a
non executive director is also being appeinted a member of one of the
Board Committees, his or her induction will cover matters such as the role
of and terms of reference of the relevant Committee.

As mentioned above, the Chairman is responsible for ensuring that Board
developrment and strengthening occurs. The Board and its Committees are
updated and briefed on corporate governance and regulatory
developments as they arise. The Audit Committee is briefed on technical
and accounting matters as a matter of routine at each meeting by senior
management and the external auditors, Prior to listing, the directors
received comprehensive training in respect of their duties, the disclosure
obligations under the Disclosure Rules and the Listing Rules. The full Board
also received briefing from the Company's external legal advisers, Baker
& McKenzie LLP on the Code on Takeovers and Mergers. A continuous
programme of development will occur as needs require.

A formal appraisal of the individual directors, the Board and its Committees
did not occur during the period under review. The Company was listed on

17 November 2006, and the appointments made to the Board between
luly and September 2006. The Board believes “hat it is not possible o
meaningfully evaluate the effectiveness of the individual directors, the
Board as a whole and the Board Committees at this stage. In addition, it
believes that because all the appointments to thi: Board are fairy recent,
there would be mare benefit in allowing the Board to operate for a longer
period prior to carrying out its first evaluation. Thz Board intends to carry
out a full evaluation of its effectiveness in 2007.

Board Committees

The terms of reference of the principal Commttees of the Board; the
Remuneration, Audit and Nomination Cornmittees are available on request
and on the Company's websile.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commitiee consists of all the independent non
executive directors and is chaired by Richard Stiliwelt. Its other members
are Peter Hickman and Brian Taylorson.

The Committee will meet no less than three times a year and has
responsibility for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy on the remuneration of execuitive directors and other
senior executives and for determining, within the agreed terms of
reference, specific remuneration packages for each of the executive
directors including pension rights, any compensation payments and the
implementation of executive incentive schermes. During the period under
review, the Remuneration Committee met on one occasion. Further details
of the work of the Remuneration Committee appear in the Directors’
Remuneration Report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of all the independent non executive
directors and is chaired by Peter Hickman. Its oth=r members are Richard
Stilwell and Brian Taylorson,

Both Peter Hickman and Brian Tayiorson have signilicant, recerit and relevant
financial experience in line with the Code. The Chzirman has a professional
accounting qualification as required by the Smith Cuidance. Richard Stillwell
is considered to have the appropriate commercial experience and financial
literacy to 1ulfil his role.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include all matters indicated
by the Combined Cade. The terms of reference vall be reviewed annually
by the Audit Committee and referred to the Boare for formal approval and
adoption.

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendations ta the
Board on the appointment of extemal auditors and their remuneration. The
Committee reviews the extemal auditors’ independence and considers the
nature, scope and resuits of the auditars’ work anc will review the provision
of non-audit services by the external auditors. “he Committee focuses
particularly on compliance with legal and other egulatory requirements,
accounting standards and ensuring that an effective system of internal
controls is maintained. The Committee may corcider any financial matter
that may have an impact on the Company. The ultimate responsibility far
reviewsng and approving the annual and interir finandial statements and
biannual trading statements remains with the Bozrd.
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The Committee will meet not less than three times a year at dates 1o
coincide with the annual finandal reporting cycle. The Committee will meet
privately with the extemal auditors at least twice a year and with the Head
of intemal Audit once. The Chairman may call a meeting at the request of
the executive directors or that of the external auditors.

During the period since demerger, the Committee met on one occasion.
The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Group Financial
Controller and the transitional Head of Interal Audit attended this meeting
at the invitation of the Chairman. The meeting was also attended by the
external auditors. The Company Secretary attended this meeting as the
Secretary of the Committee. The Audit Committee has also had separate
briefing sessions with the external auditors and the executive directors.

from the date of listing up to the date of this report, the Audit Committee
considered the following matters and took the following actions in the
discharge of its duties:

¢ reviewed and advised the Board on the financial statements in the
2006 report and accounts;

* reviewed the control and mitigation of the Group's financial and
business risks;

¢ discussed and agreed the nature and the scope of work to be
performed by the external auditors;

e reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's intemnal control systems
established by management and reviewed the Board's sign-off
procedure on the system of interal controls, which are set out in
more detail below;

* reviewed the scope of the work of the intemal audit function and the
manner in which Intemal audit senices will be provided in 2067;

* received and reviewed reporis from the internal audit function on the
work undertaken during the year;

® considered and adopted an annual schedule of agenda items to
coincde with the Group's finandal calendar;

*  considered, reviewed and adopted a palicy on the provision of non-
audit services by the external auditors and assessed the
independence of the auditors;

* reviewed the management procedures to enable the directors to
provide the confirmation regarding audit inforrmation required under
Section 234ZA of Companmies Act 1985; and

* reviewed the proposed amangements by which concems can be
raised by staff in respect of possible matters of finandal impropriety
or other matters.

Auditor Independence and Effectiveness

One of the key responsibilities of the Committee is to ensure the
independence and objectivity of the extemal auditors is safeguarded. During
the year, the Committee considered and adopted a policy on the provision
of non-audit senices that is in fine with the Accounting Practice Board's
Ethical Standards. This policy will be reviewed annually. It prevents the
extemal auditors from providing certain additional senvices to the Group
such as book-keeping, internal audit, valuations, actuarial services and
finandal systems design and implementation. The extemal auditors are
pennitted to provide assurance services such as reporting accountant work
and tax services.
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As a matter of principle, the Group's policy is not to use the external
auditors for acquisition and due diligence work. However, where the Group
considers it appropriate or conflicts arise, suppliers other than the prefered
supplier may be asked to tender and this may include the external
auditors.

In accordance with the policy, the Chairman of the Committee or in his
absence, another designated member of the Committee is required to pre-
approve certain permitted services that exceed the financial limits set out
in the policy. A summary of the overall level of non-audit fees paid to the
external auditors will be presented at each Audit Commiitee meeting.

During the period between listing and the date of this report, no significant
non-audit senvices were provided by the extemal auditors, Deloitte & Touche
LLP. The Audit Commmittee is satisfied that neither the non-audit services by,
or the level of fees paid to, Deloitte & Touche LLP in respect of those
senvices impairs their abjectivity or independence.

The Audit Committee intends to camy out its assessment of the effectiveness
of the audit process in 2007.

Internal Audit

Post demerger, the BBA Aviation plc internal audit function continues to
provide intemal audit services on a transitionat basis. The level of coverage
and scope provided by the BBA Aviation plc intemal audit function is and
will be at a similar level to that provided to the Fiberweb companies while
they were part of the BBA Group.

The intemal audit requirements of the Group are currently being reviewed
and consideration is being given to a number of options, including
outsourcing the internal audit function to a third party provider. The
comprehensive review process will include the identification of an
assurance framework, mapping out the key stakeholders of the internal
audit function and the level of assurance that each set of stakeholders
requires. Additionally, an Intemal Audit Charter will be developed for the
post-transition period, which will set out the functions of intemal audit
and the level of assurance it will provide. A resource plan will be developed
to take into account factors such as level of coverage, audit scope,
geography and grades of staff and finally determine the method of
procuring intemal audit services for the Group. It is anticipated that the
review will be completed in March 2007 and the Audit Committee
Chairman will be briefed throughout the process and provide input where
necessary.

Against this background, a separate and formal assessment of the
effectiveness of the intemal audit function did not occur during the period
under review.

Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system of internal
control and will review its effectiveness, including a review of financial,
operational, compliance and risk management controls on an annual basis.

The implementation and maintenance of the risk management is the
responsibility of the executive directors and other senior management
and a system has been established to identify, evaluate and manage
the significant risks that the Group faces. The system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve business objectives
and can only provide reasonable assurance against matenal misstatement
or loss.




The main elements of the Group's intemal control system are as follows:

1. The Board - The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's
system of intemal control. As mentioned above in this report, the
Board meets regularly and has a schedule of matters reserved for its
approval and the Board Committees operate within delegated terms
of reference. This structure includes the Audit Committee which,
with the Chief Financial Officer, reviews the effectiveness of the
internal financial and operating control environment of the Group. All
acquisibons and disposals of comparnies or businesses are approved
by the Board.

2. Strategic and Business Planning — The Group and each business
unit produce and agree a business plan each year against which the
performance of the business is regularly monitored.

3. Monthly Management Accounts — Detailed monthly management
accounts are submitted to management that measure actual
performance against budget. A monthly report is provided to the Board,
highlighting key issues and summarising the detailed financial
information provided by the operation units. Forecasts of sales, profits
and operating cash are reviewed quarterly and presented to the Board.

4. Intemal Audit — Undertakes a programme of reviews aligned 1o the
business risks. The Audit Commitiee receives a report from intemal
audit at each meeting that indludes opinions on the adequacy and
effectiveness of conirols by site, a summary of key 1ssues, work issues
and foliow up actions. The Head of Intemal Audit has direct access to
the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviews
the effectiveness of the intemal audit activities, including the scope of
work, authonty and resources of the intemal audit function. A review of
the intemal audit requirements for the Group following the transition
period described above is ongoing.

5. System of Control Procedures and Delegated Authorities -
There are clearly defined guidelines and approval limits for capital
operating expenditure and other key business transactions and
decisions that have been approved by the Board. A detailed matrix
defines the levels of authonty for the Group's senior management and
their direct reports in relation to acquisitions, capital expenditure,
commercial and employee contracts and treasury matters.

6. Treasury Policies and Procedures — Detailed procedures exist for
the investments, currency and commodity hedging, granting of
guarantees and the use of Treasury products.

7. Risk Identification, Monitoring and Management Procedures
— A process is in place to collate schedules of nsks for each key site,
which are then reviewed by the Divisional Presidents and consolidated
into a schedule of the significant divisional level risks. Similarly, key
functional heads wili produce risk schedules for their own areas. Risks
identified will cover business, financial, compliance, aperational as well
as environmental, social and governance risks. These risk schedules,
which include an assessment of their hkelihood and impact, will be
presented at a minimum of two Fiberweb Executive Team meetings
each year for review. The Fiberweb Executive Team is responsible for
confimming that the plans to mitigate those risks are satisfactory and for
improving internal controls and processes. The Chief Financial Officer
is responsible for reporting the work of the Fiberweb Executive Team
on nsk management to the Audit Committee.

8. Organisational Structure - Structures are in place at Head Ofiice
and divisional level that dearly define responsibilities for operational,
accounting, taxation, treasury, legal, company secretanal and insurance
functions.

9. Group Finance Manual - The Group has adopted the policies
that were appropniate 10 it that were previously utilised under the BBA
Group. As such, it has & full set of accounting polices and procedures
in force.

10. Group Policies - Policies covering shae dealing and market
communications have been adopted and processes are in place to
adopt ather policies that will govern responsible behaviour within the
Group. A biannual review of compliance with such policies by Group
companies will be introduced and results communicated to the
Fiberweb Executive Tearn and the Board. Sen or Management will also
be required to confim compliance with certzin policies on a biannual
basis. These polides will be supplermented by 1 Disdosure of Unethical-
Conduct policy and supporting processes for investigation and follow
up. The proposed draft policy was considered and discussed at the
Audit Committee February 2007 meeting. Work is ongoing to
implement the policy in the various jurisdictions in which it will operate
within the Group.,

11. Health, Safety and Environmental Manual (HS&E} — A Group
Health, Safety and Environmental Manual details policies, standards
and procedures that are applicable throughout the Group. Further
details are set out on page 28 under the Bus.ness Review. A monthly
report is prepared and drculated to the Fibeiweb Executive Team on
environmental and safety matters and the Board receives a report on
HS&E rmatters at each Board meeting.

At its meeting held on 23 February 2007, the Audit Committee carried out

a review and evatuation of the Group's system of internal conirols and

reported to the full Board on the outcome of its assessment.

The Board confirms that there is an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Company and
that it has been in place for the period under review up to the date of
approval of the annual report and accounts.

The Group's sysiem is reviewed regulary by the 3oard and accords with
the Turnbull guidance. Steps are being taken to embed internal control
and risk management further into the operations of the business and to
deal with areas of improvement that come to management’s and the
Board's attention.

Nominations Committee
The Nominations Committee is chaired by Malcclm Coster and its other
members are Daniel Dayan, Richard Stiltwell and Peter Hickman.

The Committee will meet as required and have responsibility for identifying
and nominating candidates for Board vacandes and making recommendations
to the Board in relation to the appointment of the Company's executive
and nan executive directors.

Before making an appointment, the Committee wil evaluate the balance of
skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and, in light of this evaluation,
prepare a description of the role and capabilities required for a particular
appointment. Use will be made of extemal recruitmient consultants and the
final dedsion regarding appointment rests with the: Board.
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The Chairman will not participate in any discussion relating to the
appeintment of his successor.

No Nomination Commitiee meetings occurred during the year,

Shareholder Relations

The Board as a whole is kept up to date on corporate governance
developments and the views of Fiberweb's major shareholders. This is
achieved through regular meetings during the year between the Chief
Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and majar shareholders to
discuss matters of mutual interest that are reported to the Board.

1n addition, prior to listing, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer embarked on a series of meetings with shareholders. A
programme of meetings with institutional shareholders, fund managers
and analysts took place during the period under review and will continue
on an ongoing basis. Broker reports are routinely dirculated to the Board.

While the Chairman, Senior Independent and other non executive directors
are available to meet with major shareholders, the Senior Independent
Director and other non executive directors did not meet with shareholders
during the period under review. Nevertheless, the Board considers that its
Senior tndependent Director has an understanding and awareness of the
issues and concems of major shareholders. Prior to listing, detailed briefings
and consultations were carried out with major shareholders in respect of
the Cormpany's remuneration arrangements.

The Company's first Annual General Meeting will be held in May 2007 and
the Board intends that the meeting is used as an opportunity to
communicate with private investors. !t is intended that the notice of Annual
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General Meeting and related papers are sent to shareholders at least 20
working days before the meeting. The Chairman of the Board and the
Chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Commitiees will be
available to answer questions at the meeting.

Shareholders will be given the opportunity of voting separately on each
resolution and proxy forms will provide the option of voting for or against
resolutions or to abstain from voting. The Company will count all praxy
votes cast in respect of the Annual General Meeting and make available
the proxy voting figures on each resolution. The voting results where
resolutions are passed on a show of hands and details of all proxy votes
cast prior to the meeting will be available on the Company's website.
The results of the meeting will also be announced to the market via a
Regulatory Information Service.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Preparation of Financial
Statements

Directors’ responsibilities for the preparation of finandal statements have
been set out in the accompanying Staterment of Directors’ Responsibilities
on page 47.

Going Concern

After making enquiries, the directors have formed a judgement, at the time
of approving the finandial statements, that there is a reasonable expectation
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. For this reason the directors continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.




This Report to shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2006 has
been prepared in accordance with the Directors’ Remuneration Report
Regulations 2002 (“the Regulations™} contained in Schedule 7A to the
Companies Act 1985, It also meets the requirements of the Listing Rules
of the Finandal Senvices Authority and describes how the Board has applied
the principles relating io directors’ remuneration. As required by the
Regulations, a resolution to approve the Report will be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company at which the financial statements
will also be approved. The vote will have an advisory status in respect of the
remuneration policy and overall remuneration packages and wili not be
spedific to individuat levels of remuneration.

The Regulations require the auditors to report to the Company's members
on certain parts of the Directors’ Remuneration Report and to state whether,
in their opinion, those parts of the report have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985. Infarmation that is required to
be audited is stated as such in the relevant section.

The Remuneration Committee

The Board has delegated responsibility for the cost and framewaork of
executive remuneration to the Remuneration Cormmittee (“the Committee”).
The Commitiee consists solely of independent non executive directors,
detaits of which are set out on page 37. Nane of the Cormmitiee members
has any personal financial interest (other than as shareholders), conflicts of
interest arising from cross directorships or day-to-day involvement in the
running of the business. No director is involved in decisions relating o his
own remuneration. As stated in the Corporate Governance Report, the
Committee’s full terms of reference are available on the Company's website,
www.fiberweb.com and on request.

The Committee is responsible for:

& making recommendations 1o the Board on remuneration policy as applied
to the Company's executive directors and other senior management;

» determining total remuneration packages for the executive directors
and ather designated members of the executive management induding
base pay, perfformance-related bonus schemes, long-term incentives
and other share awards;

& overseeing major changes in emplayee benefit structures throughout
the Group;

e reviewing the design and operation of all share incentive plans for
Board and shareholder approval, including approving grants of share
awards to directors and senior managers; and

e reporting 10 the Board and external stakeholders on matters within its
responsibilities.

The appointment of New Bridge Street Consultants LLP, an independent
remuneration consultancy was approved by the Committee. New Bridge
Street Consultants has provided the Remuneration Committee with advice in
respect of certain aspects of main board and senior executive remuneration
(including advice in respect of the Chairman's fee structure described
below). New Bridge Street Consultants has provided no other senvices 1o the
Company.

in addition, prior to (and as part of) the demerger process, Slaughter and May
provided advice to Management on the stnuxcture and rules of the Company's
long-term share incentive plans in addition to also providing advice in respect
of the Chairman's fee structure (together with general legal advice).

The Cornmittee also consults with the Chairman, who is not a member of
the Remuneration Committee, the Chief Executive and the Head of HR and
Change, save in respect of matters directly relating to their own remuneration.

Remuneration Policy

Fiberweb's remuneration policy is that the remuneration of the Company's
executive directors and other senior management should be designed to
attract and retain executives of high calibre so that the Company can be
managed effectively to the benefit of its stakeholders. Remuneration levels
for senior execuitives are set taking into account the remuneration practices
found in other UK listed companies of similar size, secgraphical spread and
complexity while also taking account of the ecanomic realities of the
Company's circumstances together with pay and conditions elsewhere in
the Group. The Committee is very mindful of the need to remain competitive
in the different geographic areas in which the Company operates.

The policy is to pay base salanes and total remuneration around the mediar
level for ‘on-plan’ performance and to provide the oppertunity, via bonuses
and long-term incentive plans, for executives to be: rewarded at the upper
quartile for the delivery of cutstanding levels of performance.

in determining its remuneration policy, the Cormitee takes account of UK
corporate govemnance best practice and market practice, while being ever
mindful of Fiberweb's spedfic drcumstances (in particular, the current stage
of the Company's development and the intemational nature of its business
operations).

The Commistee is mindful of the ABI Guidelines on Socially Responsible
Investment. it has the discretion to cansider coraorate periormance on
environmenial, sodal and govemance issues when setting the remuneration
of executive directors. While the Committee has not specifically taken into
account the handiing of risks associated with these issues when setting
performance targets for 2007, the Committee believes that the incentive
structure for senior management does not raisz risks by inadvertently
encouraging imesponsible behaviour,

The Committee considers that the executive directors’ remuneration
packages contain a suitable balance of fixed and variable performance
related pay and that the targets set for performance-related pay are
appropnate and demanding in the context of mar<et practice, the Group’s
trading environment and the current challenges thet it faces. Bonus scheme
and long-temm incentive performance targets have been linked to achieving
the Board's strategy of achieving a finandal turnaround.

The main elernents of the remuneration package for the executive directors
and senior management are as follows:

e Base salary;

o Benefits-in-kind;

* Shortterm cash-based annual incentive pian ;

» Long-term share-based incentives; and

* Pension arrangements.

The various components of executive remuneration are discussed in
further detail below.

The remuneration of the executive directors, the Chairman and non
executive directors was agreed by the Board prinr to the demerger and
became effective from the date of demerger and listing. Remuneration in
respect of the executive directors prior 1o that date -eflected the policies and
practices of the former parent company, 8BA Group,
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Base Salary

Base salaries are reviewed in relation to median market data for comparable
companies in tems of size, market sector, complesity and geagraphic spread.
Reviews will occur annually (with reviews effective from 1 January each year)
and will be based on performance, assessment of personal objectives and
any changes in responsibilities,

Following a review in January 2007, the Committee approved a base salary
increase for Simon Bowles from £200,000 to £225,000 per annum with
effect from 1 January 2007, This increase was approved because his salary
on joining the Group was agreed on a provisional basis. The review is also
in line with the policy of offering median level packages to senior managers
according to relevant local benchmarks.

Daniel Dayan's 2007 base salary is £360,000 per annum.

Service Contracts

The contracts for Daniel Dayan and Simon Bowles (both dated 27 October
2006) are for an indefinite term providing for 12 months notice by either
party.

In the event of early termination by the Company other than for cause, the
Company may elect to either make a single payment in liew: of notice (which
will indude base salary, assessment of lost bonus opportunity and benefits
and to the extent prescribed by the relevant plan rules, share award
entitlements) or to make that payment in three instalments. If the payment
is made in instalments, the first instalment is payable on termination and will
comprise six months payment in lieu of notice (calculated to include the
remuneration elements described abpve). The second and third payments
will comprise three months notice each. The second payment will be made
six months after terminaticn, with the third payment due nine months after
termination and will be reduced to take into account the remuneration paid
pursuant to any altemative employment obtained by the executive director
prior 1o such payments becoming due.

Policy on Externa! Directorships

The Board believes that the experience gained by executive directors through
their involvernent with other companies could be of benefit to the individual
and the Company. Executive directors are, with the Board's permission,
afllowed to accept one such appointment, as long as there is no conflict of
interest and the time commitment involved does not undermine the
performance of their duties at the Company. The executive director may
keep the fees from his external appointment. Neither of the executive
directors has any such extemal directorship at present.

Benefits in Kind

Benefits in kind for the executive directors indude private medical insurance,
personal acddent insurance, permanent health insurance and life assurance,
The executive directors are not provided with company cars and do not
receive a car allowance.

2007 Senior Management Bonus Scheme

The executive directors are eligible to participate in the Senior Management
Annual Bonus Scheme under which payments may be made based on
the achievement of stretching financial targets. Appropriate financial targets
are set by the Remuneration Committee at the beginning of the financial
year for which the bonus is payable.

For 2007, the Bonus Scheme will provide an incentive oppertunity of
between 0% to 100% of base salary for executive directors. 70% of the
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bonus opportunity is measured against the achievement of group operating
profit targets, with 30% based on group working capital as a percentage of
sales targets. A borus of 50% of salary will be payable for achievement of
budgeted performance under both metrics (which, of themselves, constitute
challenging targets). In order not to reward underachievement, there will be
no payout for achievement of below budget performance.

in 2007, bonus payments will be made on a biannual basis. Up to 40%
of bonus opportunity is based on performance in the first half of the year,
with the remaining 60% based on performance in the second half of the
year. To the extent that the performance measures are met, payments will
be made following the publication of the half and full year results. The
Committee is satisfied that this approach to bonus payments is appropnate
in the Company’s particular circumstances and that there is no likelihood
of this approach resulting in the aggregate size of bonuses payable in any
year not reflecting overall group performance for that year.

Individual personal objectives will not be used to determine bonus payments
in 2007 in order to focus attention on the Board's strategic objective to achieve
4 financial tumaround. Instead, as mentioned above, the achievement of
pre-determined personal objectives in 2007 will be used to assess and
determine appropriate base salary reviews for the following year.

2006 Bonuses

Bonus payouts to the executive directors in respect of the year under review
were made under the former parent company's incentive amangements
under which a maximum of 100% of salary could be received by directors,
As referred to in the BBA circular produced in connection with the demerger,
one element of the bonus was dependent on the success of the demerger
as determined by the BBA Remuneration Committee, with the other
element requiring the achievement of pre-determined finandal targets.

For both Daniel Dayan and Simon Bowdes, the demerger element comprised
approximately 66% of the total bonus achievable, with the remainder
relating to the achievement of financial targets.

Under the terms of the scheme, each participating director was required
to defer 50% of the bonus due on demerger into Fiberweb ordinary
shares and could voluntarily defer the remaining 50%. The number of
shares deferred, whether compulsorily or voluntanly, would be increased
by 10% (as described in the shareholder documentation produced in
connection with the demerger). Any shares acquired by a participant
pursuant to the bonus are subjed to a six-month sale restriction. The BBA
Remuneration Committee dedided to make full payment of the demerger
element of the bonus to the executive directors in accordance with the
scheme, with payment made in December 2006. Daniel Dayan decided
that, in addition to the compulsory deferral of 509% of his bonus into
Fiberweb shares, he would request the deferral of the remaining 50% into
shares. Simon Bowles chose to defer an additional 25% in shares and took
the remaining 25% in cash. All such shares were increased by 10% in
accordance with the scheme rules, As described above, all such deferred
shares are subject to restrictions on sale or transfer until 1 June 2007,
Fibenweb did nat meet the financial targets for 2006 based on global
operating profit and operating cash flow performance. No bonus payments
were made to executive directors for financial performance under the
2006 bonus arangements,

Bonus payments made to the executive directors under the 2006 BBA annual
borus scheme were settted by the former parent company. Details of bonus
payouts for the peried under review are set out in Tables 1 and 2.




Executive Long Term Incentives

Deferred Share Matching Plan {"DSMP")

Shareholders approved the DSMP inn Novermnber 2006 under which a
maximum of 50% of an executive’s net bonus may be voluntarily deferred
into shares for three years. The deferred shares will then be matched at
a rate of one 1o one (on a gross basis).

No matching awards have so far been made under the DSMP. if any matching
awards are made in 2007 following the payment and related share
investrment of up to 50% of 2007 first half bonuses, the Committee intends
that they will be subject 10 a performance condition based on a skiding scale
of Return On Invested Capital ("ROIC") targets. Measurernent will be over
a three-year period from the date of grant. ROIC has been chosen by the
Committee for this purpose as it is a key indicater of the Company's
underlying financiat performance.

The matching awards will vest three years after grant if and to the extent
that the performance targets attached to the awards are satisfied. The
detaited targets will be discussed and communicated to shareholders in
advance of such awards being made.

Long Term Incentive Plan {“LTIP"}

Shareholders also approved the LTIP in November 2006. In summary, under
the LTIP, annual awards over shares with a face value of up to 100% of salary
per annum (200% in exceptional drcumstances) can be made to executives
each year. Awards may take the form of a conditional award, a restricted
award or a phantom award.

Following demerger, “normal” LTIP awards with a face value of up 10 809
of salary were made to certain senior executives including the executive
directors. In additon, to reflect the fact that no long-term incentive award had
been made to Fiberweb executives in 2006 under the former parent
company's share incentive plans due to the demerger process, a one-off

Propaortion of award
subject to relevant

Performance condition performance condition

*demerger” award was made to the same selected Fiberweb executives who
received “normal” LTIP awards plus an additional group of around 70 senior
managers. These additional demerger awards ranged from between 40%
10 80% of salary and were made to provide an incentive to deliver strong
performance during the critical period immediately post-demerger.

“Normal” awards will vest no earlier than three yeers after grant, subject to
the achievemnent of the performance conditions described below. The
demerger awards will vest following the announcerrent of Fiberweb's results
for the year ending 31 December 2008, subject to the achievement of the
performance conditions described below.

“Normal” and “demerger” awards are subject to Total Shareholder Retumn
{(“TSR") and eamings per share targets. More partizularly, one half of each
award will be based on Fiberweb's TSR performance: against the constituents
of the FTSE SmallCap Index (excluding investment Trusts). The FTSE
SmallCap has been chosen for the TSR elerment of the awards in the absence
of a sufficient number of listed companies that are direct business
competitors 1o Fiberweb. The remaining half of ea:h award will be subject
to a sliding scale of real eamings per share growth targets, The Eamings per
share (“EPS") targets for bath awards will measure PS for the finandial year
ended 31 December 2006 against EPS for the year ended 31 December
2008 or 2009 as appropriate. The base EPS for 2006 which has been
adjusted to reflect on-going capital, debt, taxation and listed company
struciure as if Fiberweb had existed as an independent group since 1 January
2006 is 4.47 pence. The primary purpose of the adjustments to the base
EPS is to give comparability over the performance period.

These performance conditions have been choser to provide a balanced
long-term incentive for senior executives to generate both above-market
retums to shareholders and stwong levels of eamings per share growth.

Awards will vest as per the chart below.

How award vests

Uil WorreP (P A J

Total Shareholder Retum 50% 300 of this portion of the award vests at the median versus the FTSE SmallCap (exduding
Investrnent Trusts) over a three-year performance period commending on the date of grant *,

with full vesting at upper quartile.

Eamings Per Share 50% 30% of this portion of the award vests for annual average-adjusted EPS growth over a

three-year performance period of RP! plus 25%, with full vesting fo* RPI plus 35% t.

r

RioprupldemercerdilipfAward 1

.

Total Shareholder Retumn 50% 309% of this portion of the award vests at the median versus the FTSE SmallCap (exduding
Investrnens Trusts) over a two-year performance perod commencing on the date of grant *,

with full vesting at the upper quartile.

Eamings Per Share 50% 30% of this portion of the award vests for annual average-adjusted EP5 growth over the wo
year performance period of RPL plus 30%, with full vesting for RPI plus 5% (thereby reflecting

the more pronounced EPS growth that is expected in the first two yezrs post-demerger) 1.

* Fiberweb's “base” TSR will be calculated over the first 30 days post-demerger.
t *base year” EPS for these purposes is Fiberweb's adjusted EPS for the financial year ending 31 Decerber 2006 as described above.
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Sliding scale straight-ine vesting will occur for perfornance between the
relevant threshold and maximum targets.

Neither awards (nor DSMP awards) will have a ‘re-testing’ fadlity. If the
perfomnance conditions are not met at the end of the relevant performance
period, the awards will lapse.

The relevant TSR calculations will be undertaken by independent advisers.
The Company's extemal auditors will verify the Committee’s calculation of
the extent to which the EPS targets have been met.

The Committee’s current intention is that any LTIP awards made in the future
will be subject to a combination of TSR and EPS-based performance
conditions structured in a similar manner as desaribed above.

The Committee will regulardy review the operation of the Company’s share
based incentive amangements in light of (i) the drcumstances and prospedts
of the Company as they develop and (i) emerging trends in market and best
practice.

Details of awards made to Executive Directors under the LTIP are set out in
Table 3.

Fiberweb Executive Share Option Plan ("ESOP"}

The Company established the ESOP following approval by BBA Croup
shareholders in November 2006. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for administesing the ESOP and the grant of options under its
terms. Under the ESOP, the normal maximum grant limit will be 150% of
salary per annum (200% in exceptional circumstances).

Options will vest after three years, subject to the achievernent of performance
conditions that are deemed appropriate at the time of grant and that will
be communicated to shareholders before grants are made. It is not currenty
intended that grants will be made under the £50P and no grants were
made during the vear,

Performance Graph

The following graph shows the Company's performance, measured by
total shareholder retum from the date of listing until 31 December 2006,
compared with the equivalent information for the FTSE SmallCap Index
excluding investment trusts.

Table 1 Emoluments and fees

From date of appointment by Fiberweb plc to 31 December 2006 {audited)

This index has been selected because it is a broad-based equity market index
of which the Company is a constituent
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— FTSE Small Cap Index (exchuding investment trusts)
This graph shows the value, by 31 December 2006, of £100 invested in
Fiberweb plc on 17 November 2006 compared with value of £100 invested
in the FTSE Small Cap (exduding investment trusts) Index.
Pensions

Company pension contributions at a rate of 25% of satary for Mr Dayan
and 20% of salary for Mr Bowles are made to detined contribution
schemes nominated by the individuals. These contributions are within a
competitive range and are set by reference to the relevant market practice
for each role, In addition, both directors fulfil a contractual obligation to
contribute at least 7.5% of their salary to the Company defined contribution
scheme. Details of pension costs to the Company in respect of the directors
are set out in Tables 1 and 2.

Base salary Benefits Pension Annual Total

and fees in kind Contributions Bonus 2006

£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000

M Coster 37 - - - 37
D Dayan 145 3 46 694 890
S Bowles 89 i i7 115 22
R Stilbwelt 13 - - - 13
P Hickman 13 - - - 13
B Taylorson 9 - — - 9
Total 306 6 63 809 1,184
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Table 2 Emoluments and fees
From 1 January to 31 December 2006 (including amounts related to service with the Fiberweb business prior to the demerger (audited))

Base salary Benefits Pension Annual Total Total

and fees in kind Contributions Bonus 2006 2005

£000 £000 E'000 £000 E'000 £000

M Coster 57 - - - 57 -
D Dayan 317 13 53 654 1,077 198
S Bowles 100 § 17 115 233 -
R Stillwell 38 - - - 38 3B
P Hickman 13 - - - 13 -
B Taylorson 9 - - - 9 -
Total 534 14 70 809 1,427 236

Notes to Tables 1 and 2:

1.

Daniel Dayan and Simon Bowles were appointed direciors of the Company on 21 July 2006. Emoluments and fees set out in Table 1 are pro-rated from their date of
appointment to 31 Decernber 2006.

Malcolm Coster and Richard Stillwell were appointed directors of the Company on 30 August 2006. Peter Hickman was appointed a director on 31 August 2006 and Brian
Taylorson was appointed on 25 September 2006. Their fees as set out in Table 1 are pro-rated from their sespective dates of appointment to the 31 December 2006.

Daniel Dayan received a bonus of £465,000 in December 2006 associated with the successful demerger of the Company from BBA Croup. This payment was agreed
by the former parent company at the commencement of Mr Dayan's employment in June 2005 and was paid by BBA. it is nat the Commitee's intention in the future
to pay any such other bonus outside the normal operation of the Cormpany's annual bonus plan.

£228,495 is the total gross bonus amount paid to Daniel Dayan under the BBA 2006 annual bonus scheme and includes £20,460 representing the gross value of 11,242
additiona; shares awarded under that schemme, The nurmber of shares allocated to him including the enhancement following the deferrat of his borus is shown in Table 3.

£115,107 is the total gross bonus amount paid to Simon Bewles under the BBA 2006 annual bonus scheme and includes £7.907 representing the gross value of 4,345
additional shares awarded under that scheme. The number of shares allocated to him induding the enhancement following the deferal of his banus is shown in Table 3.

Directors’ shareholdings
The interests (both beneficial and family interests) of the directors in office at 31 December 2006 in the ordinary share capital of the Company were

as foflows:
Table 3
Ordinary 5p shares

At date of 31 December
Director appointment 2006
M Coster - . 132,285
D Dayan - 78,961
S Bowles - 28,198
R Stillwell - 6,000
P Hickman - -
B Taylorson - -
Notes:

N

There were no changes in directors’ interests in the share capital between 31 Decernber 2008 and 27 February 2007.

2. Daniel Dayan's shareholding at 31 December 2006 includes 72,961 shares aliocated to him on 1 December 2006 under the BBA 2006 annual bonus scheme,

The shares are curmently held in the Fiberweb Employee Benefit Trust. Simon Bowles” shareholding at 31 December 2006 includes 28,198 shares allocated to him on
1 Decemnber 2006 under the BBA 2006 annual borus scheme and are currently held in the Fiberweb Fmployee Benefit Trust. The shares allocated under the BBA 2006
annual bonus scheme are subject to restmctions on sale or transfer and are subject to forfeiture in certain circumstances until 1 June 2007 The number of Fiberweb
ordinary shares held in the Fiberweb Employee Benefit Trust as at 31 December 2007 is 150,262 including 1,217 unallocated shares.
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Table 4 Awards under Long Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP") - (audited)

Awards during Award Exercise Release 31 December
the year Date Price Date 2006
D Dayan Demerger Award 155,634 2711086 Nil-cost After the publication of 155,634
results for the year ended
31 Decemnber 2008
Normal Award 155,634  27.11.06  Nil-cost After the publication of 155,634
results for the year ended
31 December 2009
311,268 311,268
S Bowles Demerger Award 86,463  27.11.06  Nil<cost After the publication of 86,463
results for the year ended
31 December 2008
Normal Award 86463 271106  Nil-cost After the publication of 86,463
results for the year ended
31 December 2009
172,926 172,926

Notes:

1. Atotal of 3,235,188 shate awards comprising Nil-cost or Conditional Awards or Share Apprediation Rights were granted to the executive directors and senior executives during

ihe year under the LTIP.

2. The mid-market price of a Fiberweb plc ordinary 5p share on 29 December 2006 was 208p. The range from the date of listing to 29 Decermber was between 176p 1o 210p.
The average middle market guotation for the five-day period immediately preceding the date of award was 185.05p. In accordance with the Plan Rules, ths was the price
used to determine the number of Nil-cost awards made to the executive directors on 27 November 2006.

Non Executive Directors Remuneration

The appointment of each of the non executive directors is for a fixed term
of three years. The curent fetters of appointment for all the non executive
directors, dated 19 October 2006 and effective from the date of the
demerges, are available for inspection on request. The non executive directors
do not partidpate in any Company pension amangements or long-term
incentive plans. Appaintments can be temminated by either party on thee
months’ notice or compensation, and six months' notice or compensation
in the case of the Chairman.

The level of fees for the non executive directors is determined by the Board
as a whole on the recommendation of the Chaiman and the executive
directors. The Chairman's fees are determined by the Board on the
recormmendation of the Chief Executive. Fees are in line with cusrent market
practice of comparable organisations and are set taking account of the time
commitment and responsibility of each non-executive director. For example,
the Chairmen of the Audit and Remuneration Committees each receive an
annual supplement of £6,000 on top of the base annual fee of £32,000
in recognition of the increased commitment placed upon them in
performing their roles, Richard Stillwell does not receive an additional
supplement far his role as Senior Independent Director.

The Chairman's base cash fee is £110,000 per annum. At appointment,
and as described in the shareholder documentation preduced in connection
with the demerger, he agreed to invest up to £250,000 in the acquisition of
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the Company’s shares on the open market within 30 days of the date of the
demerger. His fee structure allows him to receive a fee enhancement in the
form of ordinary shares equal to one-sixth of the shares he acquires. The fee
enhancement will be paid to him at each six-month anniversary of his
appointment until November 2003, provided he continues to hold the office
as Chaimman and retains his crginal investment and any additional shares
awarded to him (apart from those sold to fund any tax or national insurance
liabilities arising on the award). Mr Coster acquired 132,285 shares in
December 2006 and his first fee enhancement is due to him in May 2007,

The Committee believes that this structure is entirely appropriate and takes
full account of the Chairman's expected time commitment, responsibility
and importance to the Company in this important stage in the Company's
development.

Non executive director fees will be reviewed every two years.

Details of non executive directors’ fees for 2006 are set out in Tables 1
and 2 on pages 44 and 45.

Approved by the Board on 26 February 2007 and signed on its behalf by:

Richard Stillwell
Chairman, Remuneration Committee




The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the finandal
staternents, The directors are responsible te prepare the financial staterments
for the Group in accordance with Intemational Finandal Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and have elected to prepare financial statements for the Group in
accordance with IFRS. Company law requires the directors to prepare such
financial staterments in accordance with IFRS, the Companies Act 1985 and
Anticle 4 of the |AS Regulations.

The directors are required to prepare financial staterments for each financial
year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and the Group as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss
of the Group for that period.

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in prepading the financial statements. In preparing
the Finandal Statements the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

s make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and

s state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed.

The directors are respensible for keeping proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the finandial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure that the fina cial statements comply
with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation. They
are also responsible for the system of internal control and for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence for taking seasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other inegularities, and for the
preparation of the directors’ report and directors’ remuneration report
which comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 1985.

The directors are responsible for the maintenanice and integrity of the
company website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financiai statements differs from legislation
in other jurisdicticns.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the members of Fiberweb plc

We have audited the group finandial statements of fiberweb ple for the
year ended 31 December 2006 which comprise the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated balance sheet, the consaolidated cash flow
staternent, the statement of recognised income and expense and the related
notes 1 to 32. These group finandial statements have been prepared under
the accounting policies set out therein. We have also audited the information
in the Directars’ Remuneration Report that is described as having been
audited.

We have reported separately an the parent company financal statements
of Fiberweb plc for the year ended 31 December 2006,

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in
accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985, Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and
the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this repart, or for

. the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report, the directors’
remuneration report and the group financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and Intemational Finandal Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union are set cut in the statement of directors’
responsibilities,

Qur responsibility is to audit the group financial staternents in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and Intemational Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the group financial statements
give a true and fair view, whether the group financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and
Ariicle 4 of the 1AS Regulation and whether the part of the directors’
remuneration report desaribed as having been audited has been propery
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to
you whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report
is consistent with the group financial statements.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information
spedified by law regarding director's remuneration and other ransactions
is not disdosed.

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the
company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the 2003 Combined
Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authority, and we report if it does not We are not required to consider
whether the Board's statements on internal control cover all risks and
controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s corporate
govemnance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read the other information coritained in the annual report as described
in the contents section and consigder whether it is consistent with the audited
group finandal statements. We consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatemenits or material inconsistendes
with the group finandal statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any
further information outside the annual report.
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Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the group financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report to be audited. It also indudes an assessment
of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the
preparation of the group finandal statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the group’s drcumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit 5o as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the group finandal
statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited
are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
imegularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the group finandal statements
and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited.,

Opinion
In our opinion:

s  the group finandial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of the
group's affairs as at 31 December 2006 and of its loss for the year
then ended;

e  the group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Artide 4 of the (AS
Regulation;

# the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having
been audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985; and

¢ the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the
group financal statements.

Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs

As explained in Note 2 to the group finandial staternenits, the group in addition
to complying with its legal cbligation to comply with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union, has also complied with the IFRSs as issued by the
Intemational Accounting Standards Board.

In our opinian the group finandal statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with IFRSs, of the state of the group's affairs as at 31 December
2006 and its loss for the year then ended.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London, England

26 February 2007




Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31st Decemnber 2006

2006 2006 2006 2005 2005 2005
Underlying* Note i Total Underlying* Note i Total
Note £€m £m £'m £'m £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 4 584.7 - 584.7 603.3 - 603.3
Cost of sales 5 (476.6) (35.3) (511.9) (478.4) (11.5) (489.9)
Grass profit 108.1 {35.3} 72.8 124.9 (11.5) 113.4
Distribution costs {45.9) - {45.9) (44.5) - (44.5)
Administrative expenses (36.5) (14.8) {51.1) (34.8) - (34.8)
Other operating income 1.2 - 1.2 1.6 26 4.2
Share of profit of associated undertakings 06 - 0.6 0.7 - 0.7
Loss on disposal of associated
undertakings 5 - {1.6) (1.6) - - -
Restructuring costs 5 - (45.6) {45.6) - (4.2) (4.2)
Operating (loss)/profit
from continuing operations 4,5 275 (97.1) (69.6) 479 (13.1 348
Investment income 6 0.4 - 0.4 1.5 - 1.5
Finance costs 6 {15.1) - {15.1) (16.1}) - (16.1)
(Loss)/profit before tax 12.8 (97.1) (Ba.3) 333 (13.1) 202
Income tax 7 (6.2) 21.2 15.0 (3.7 48 (4.9}
(Loss)/profit for the year 5 6.6 (75.9) (69.3) 2386 (8.3) 15.3
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 6.6 (75.9) (69.3) 236 (8.3) 153

* Undertying trading results before items described in note i below.

Note i: Restructuring costs and non-recurring items as set out in note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Earnings per share, attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent

From continuing operations:

Basic 9 (56.5)p 12.5p
Diluted 9 (56.5)p 12.5p
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31st December 2006

2006 2005
Note £'m £'m
Non-current assets
Intangible assets:
Goodwill n 93.0 112.0
Licences n 34 43
Property, plant and equipment 12 330.6 406.2
Investments in associaies 13 1.4 7.9
Trade and other receivables 15 0.3 0.5
428.7 530.9
Current assets
tnventories 14 811 849
Trade and other receivables 15 97.4 111.3
Cash and cash equivalents 15 35.2 258
Corporation tax recoverable 20 09
216.7 2229
TOTAL ASSETS 645.4 753.8
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 (77.3) (95.0)
Tax liabilities {3.4) (6.4)
Obligations under finance leases 7 {2.3) 24
Bank overdrafts and loans 19 {10.3) {12.1)
Loans from former parent company 19 - (2377}
Provisions 21 (2.6} (2.4}
{95.9) (356.0)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 120.8 (133.1)
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans 19 {183.5) (9.4)
Other payables due after one year (2.5) 2.9
Retirement benefit obligations 2 (23.2) (275)
Obligations under finance leases 17 (4.4) (6.5)
Deferred tax liabilites 23 (35.3) (55.0)
Provisions 21 (3.6) -
{252.5) (101.3)
TOTAL LIABILITIES {348.4) (457.3)
NET ASSETS 297.0 296.5
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Share capital 25 6.1 6.1
Share premiurn account 26 B4.5 845
Merger reserve 26 93.5 835
Other reserve 26 93.1 86.3
Capital reserve 24,26 0.1 -
Translation resetve 26 {1.3) 18.7
Hedging reserve 26 0.5 -
Retained eamnings 26 20.5 74
TOTAL EQUITY 27 297.0 296.5

These financia! statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 26th February 2007 and signed on its behalf by:

D Dayan S Bowles
Chief Executive Chief Finandial Officer
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31st December 2006

2006 2005

Note £'m £m
Operating activities
Net cash flows from operating activities 28 44.0 740
Investing activities
Interest received 0.4 03
Purchase of property plant and equipment (47.8) (31.9)
Purchase of intangible assets {0.6) (0.1)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.8 -
Delerred consideration from prior year activities - (0.4)
Dividends received from associated undertakings 02 -
Proceeds on sale of associate 5.4 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 29 (2.3) -
Net cash outflow from investing activities (43.9) (31.5)
Financing activities
Interest paid (1.8) (1.0)
Interest paid to related parties (net) 6 (5.9) (13.9)
Interest element of finance leases paid 0.3) (0.3}
Bank facility fees paid (1.2) -
Dividends paid to related parties (5.5} (9.9)
(Repayment)/drawdown of related party loans 1150.7) 13
Drawdown/(repayment) of external loans 177.7 (5.2)
Decrease in finance leases (2.3) (2.3)
Increase/(decrease) in overdrafts 0.4 (11.8)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 10.4 {42.7)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 10.5 (0.2)
Foreign exchange differences (1.1) (0.3
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January 25.8 263
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December 15 35.2 25.8
Net debt at beginning of year (242.3) (255.5)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 105 {0.2)
(Incraase)/decrease in external loans (177.3) 5.2
Bank loans acquired 29 (0.4) -
Facility fees paid 1.2 -
Facility fees amortised (0.1) -
Decrease in finance leases 23 23
Decrease/(increase) in loans from former parent company 150.7 {1.3)
(Increase)/decrease in overdrafts (0.9) 11.8
Loans waived by former parent company 26 90.0 -
Loans capitalised by former parent company 26 B7.4 -
Non-cash transfer of subsidiary investments {101.5) -
Foreign exchange differences 14.6 (4.6}
Net debt at end of year (165.3) {242.3)
Compnising:
Overdrafts {0.5) (0.2)
Bank loans (194.3) (21.3)
Less: unamortised prepaid facility fees 1.1 -
Loans from former parent company ~ (2377
Bank overdrafts and loans 1] (193.8) (259.2)
Finance leases 17 (6.7) (8.9}
Cash and cash equivalents 15 35.2 25.8
Net debt at end of year (165.3) {242.3)
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Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income

d ﬂd EXpense For the year ended 31st December 2006

2006 2005

Note £m £€m

Exchange (losses)/gains on translation of foreign operations 26 (20.0) 18.7
Gain on interest rate swap 26 0.5 -
Capital contribution through waiver of net debt by former parent company 25 90.0 -
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes 22,26 (0.3} {75)
Tax an items recognised directly in equity 7 - 2.8
Net income recognised directly in equity 70.2 14.0
(Loss)/profit for the year {69.3) 153
Total recognised incorme for the year 27 0.9 293
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem

1. General information

Fiberweb ple is a company incorporated in the United Kingdorn on 22nd January 2006 under the Companies Act 1985. The address of the registered
office is given on page 88. The nature of the Group's operations and its principal activities are set out in the Directors’ Report on pages 33 and 34 and
in the Business Review on pages 12 to 29.

These financial statements are presented in pounds stering because that is the currency of the ultimate parent company. Foreign operations are induded
in accordance with the pelicies set out in nate 2.

2. Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation
The consalidated financial staternents are prepared on an historical cost basis, adjusted for centain derivative finandial instruments wtich are stated at fair value.

The Company has elected to prepare its parent company finandial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Polidies
| ("UK GAAP"); the parent company balance sheet as at 31st December 2006 is presented on page 81.

| The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs”}. The financial statements
have alsc been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopted by the European Union ("EU") and therefore the Group financial staterments comply with Article
4 of the EU IAS Regulation.

At the date of authonisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations, which have not been applied in these financial
statements, were in issue but not yet effective:

IFRS7:  Financial Instruments: Disclosures

IFRS8:  Operating Segmenis

IFRICS:  Right to Interests Arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

IFRICB:  Scope of IFRS2

IFRIC9:  Reassessment of Embedded Dervatives

IFRIC1O:  Interim Reporting and Impairments

IFRIC11; IFRSZ — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future periods will have no material impact on t1e finanqal staternents of
the Group, except for additional disclosures on capital and finandia! instruments, when the relevant Standards come into effect for pericds commencing on
or after 1st January 2007.

On 17th November 2006, the Fiberweb businesses were demerged from BBA Group plc (*BBA" or "former parent company”) end the ordinary shares of
Fiberwet: pic (“Fiberwet” or “the Company”) were listed on the London Steck Exchange. As part of the demerger process, the F benweb businesses were
recrganised under Fiberweb ple, still under the common control of BBA and therefare outside the scope of IFRS 3: “Business Combinations”. In accordance
with the guidance of FRS & "Acquisitions and Mergers”, these consolidated finandal statements have been presented as if the Fibarweb Group had existed
independently from 1st January 2005.

As part of the demerger process, Listing Particulars were issued which induded financial information for the Fiberweb businesses for the years ended 315t
December 2004 and 3 1st December 2005, and the six months ended 30th June 2006 as if the reorganisation had taken plece on 1st January 2004,
including certain allocations of costs/losses and income/gains incurred by BBA on behalf of the Fiberweb businesses. This financial information was
prepared by aggregating the income, expenses, assets and liabilities of the companies and businesses of the Materials Technalogy Division of BBA that now
form the Fibenweb Group, as if they had been part of the Fiberweb Group for ali periods presented. Transactions and balances between companies and
businesses forming part of the Fiberweb Group were eliminated.

Invested capital represented al! capital and reserves movements with BBA, and funding to and from BBA. invested capital also included long term group
funding and investments held by companies and businesses forming part of the Fiberweb Group in companies and businesses which were retained by
BBA. When the demerger became effective, invested capital was teplaced by share capital, a profit and loss account and other reserves. The comparative
information presented here excludes certain charges and gains allocated to Fiberweb by BBA and certain legal entities included ir the financial information
presented in the Listing Particulars, but not legally incurred by or transferred to an entity of Fiberweb.

Transactions and balances between the companies and businesses forming part of the Fiberweb Group and those companies ar d businesses retained by
BBA are disclosed in note 31, Related Party Transactions.

The principal accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are detailed below. These policies have bezn consistently applied to
all periods presented.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidianes are entities controlled by Fiberweb. Contrel exists when Fiberweb has the power, directly or indirectly, to govem the financial and operating policies
of an entity to cbtain economic benefit from its activities. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the Group’s financial staterments from the
date that control comimences until the date that control ceases in accordance with the acquisition method of accounting. Wher= necessary, adjustments
are made to the finandal statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements cninues

2. Accounting Policies continued

Basis of consolidation continued
For the purposes of these accounts, the subsidiaries transferred to Fiberweb as part of the demerger restructuring process have not been accounted for as
acquired during the period, but have been presented as if they had been controlled by Fiberweb throughout the period.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Assodated undertakings are those investments other than subsidiary undentakings where the Group is in a position to exercise a significant influence, typicalty
through the partidpation in the financial and operating decisions of the investee. Investments in associated undertakings are stated at cost, plus the Group's
share of post-acquisition reserves, less provision for impairment.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabiiities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any
costs directly attibutable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under IFRS 3 are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the
Graup's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabiliies and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised
immediatefy in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority's proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions, being the excess of fair value of the consideration paid aver the fair value of the net assets acquired, is capitalised and tested for
impairment on an annual basis, or more frequently when there is an indication that there may be an impaimment. For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. If the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the camrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of the goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the umt. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary, assodate or jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwilt is induded in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Gaoodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRSs has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts, subject to being tested for
impairment at that date. Goodwill written off to reserves under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has not been reinstated and is not induded in determining any
subsequent profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair vatue of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied and services provided
by the Group in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes and excluding intercormpany transactions and sales by
assodiated undertakings.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effedtive interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ sights to receive payment have been established.

Research and development expenditure

Research expenditure is charged against income in the year in which it is incurred. An internally-generated intangible asset arising frorm the Group's
development expenditure is recognised only if the asset can be separately identified, it is probable that the asset will generate future economic benefits
and the development costs of the asset can be measured reliably.

Share-based payments

Fiberweb operates two share-based compensation plans which are detailed in the report on Directors’ Remuneration on pages 41 to 46 and in note 24,
The equity-settled share-based payments under these schemes are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date
is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest

No expense is recognised (and any previously recognised expense is reversed) for awards that do not ultimately vest, except where vesting is conditional
upon a measure linked to Fibenweb plc’s share price (“a market condition”} or other market conditions. The likefihood of achieving the market candition is
taken into account in the fair value and, therefore, the award is treated as vesting irespective of whether or nat the market condition is satisfied, provided
that any other performance condition is met.

When an award is cancelled, it 1s treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

The cost of share-based compensation schemes is recognised as an expense within staff costs in the incorme staternent.
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2. Accounting Policies continued

Leases

Where assets are financed by lease agreements that give rights similar to ownership (finance leases), the assets are treated as if *hey had been purchased
and the leasing commitrnents are shown as obligations to the lessors. The capitalisation values of the assets are written off on a straight line basis over the
shorter of the periods of the leases or the useful lives of the assets concermed. The capital elements of future ieases are recorded as liabilities, while the interes:
elements are charged to the incorme staternent aver the period of the leases to produce a constant rate of charge on the balance of capital payments outstanding,

for all other leases (operating leases), the rental payments are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the: lives of the leases,

Post-retirement benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

For defined benefit retirement benefit schemes, the cost is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out
annually on 31st Decermber. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they occur. They are recognised outside profit or loss
and presented in the statement of recognised income and expense.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amoriised on a <traight-line basis over the
average period until the benefits become vested.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised
past service costs, and reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past senice cost, plus the present
value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Retirernent benefit scheme contribution levels are determined by valuations undentaken by independent qualified actuaries.

Treasury

Transactions in foreign cumencies are translated into Stering at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Any gain or loss arising from a change in exchange
rates subsequent to the date of transaction is recognised in the income statement. Where monetary assets and liabilities have been designated effective
hedges against net investments in foreign operations, the exchange gains and losses arising on those assets and liabilities are tacen directly to reserves.

The income statements of overseas operations are translated into Stering at the average exchange rates for the year and their balince sheets are translated
into Sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. All exchange differences anising on consolidation are taken to reserves, subject 1o the
requirements of [AS 21 “The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”. All ather translation differences are taken to the inco me statement.

Derivative finandal instruments have been accounied for and presented under IAS 39 “Finandal Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. Derivative
financal instruments wtilised by the Group comprise foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and commadity denvatives. All such instruments are
used for hedging purposes to manage the risk profile of an underying exposure of the Group in line with the Group's risk nanagement polices. All
derivative instruments are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. Recognition of gains or losses on derivative instruments depends on whether the
instrument is designated as a hedge and the type of exposure it is designed to hedge.

The effective portion of gains or losses on hedges is deferred in the hedging resenve until the impact from the hedged item is ecognised in the income
statement. The ineffective portion of such gains and lesses is recognised in the income statement immediately.

Changes in the fair value of the derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the incorme staternent as they arise.

Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after charging restructuring costs and after the share of results of associates but before investment income and finance costs.

Taxation
The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred due to temporary differences setween the treatment of
certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the canying amounts of assets and liabilities n the finandal statements
and the corresponding tax bases in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability mettod.

No provision is made for temporary differences on unremitted eamings of foreign subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates where the Group has control
and the reversal of the temporary difference is not foreseeable.

The carrying amoun? of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer prabable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available 1o allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is seitled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacied at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates
to items charged or credited 1o equity, in which case the defermed tax is also dealt with in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

2. Accounting Paolicies continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment. Depreciation is provided
on the cost or valuation of property, plant and equipment less estimated residual value and is calculated on a straight line basis over the following estimated
useful lives of the assets:

Land not deprediated
Building 40 years maximum
Plant and Machinery (including essential commissioning costs) 318 years

Tooling, vehicles, computer and office equipment are categorised within Plant and Machinery.

Finance costs which are directly attributable to the construction of major items of property, plant and equipment are capitalised as part of those assets. The
commencement of capitalisation begins when both finance costs and expenditures for the asset are being incured and activities that are necessary to get
the asset ready for use are in progress. Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities that are necessary to get the asset ready for use are complete,

Intangible assets excluding goodwill
Licenses are shown at amortised cost. Amortisation provided on the cost of licenses is calculated on a straight line basis over the useful life of the licenses.

Where computer software is not an integral part of a related itemn of computer hardware, the software is treated as an intangible asset. Computer software
is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the spedfic software. Amortisation is provided on the cost of software and is
calculated on a straight line basis over the useful life of the software.

The Group makes an assessment of the fair vatue of intangible assets anising on acquisitions. An intangible asset will be recognised as long as the asset is
separable or arises from contractual or other legal rights, and its fair value can be measured reliably. Amortisation is provided on the fair value of the asset,
exduding goodwill, and is catculated on a straight fine basis over its useful life.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the camying value of its tangible and intangible assets ta determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impaiment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An intangible asset with an indefinite life is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is
an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cument market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks spedfic to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than iis canying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately.

Where an impainnent loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no irmpairment
loss been recogrised for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises the cost of raw materials and an appropriate proportion of labour and overheads
in the case of work in progress and finished goods. Cost is calculated on a first in, first out basis. Provision is made for slow moving or obsolete inventory
as appropnate.

Financial instruments
Finandal assets and finandal liabilities are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrurment

Trade receivables
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated imecoverable amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a
known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial liabifities and equity
Finandal liabilites and equity instrumients are dassified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is
any coniract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
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2. Accounting Policies continued

Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdralts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of diredt issue costs. Finance charges, inc uding premiums payable
on settlement or redemption and direct issue cosls, are accourtad for on an accrual basis to the profit and loss account using the effective interest method
and are added to the camying amount of the instrurment to the extent that they are not settied in the peniod in which they arise.

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

Equity instruments
Equity instrurments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received net of direct issue costs.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions conceming the fulure, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have i significant nsk of causing
a materal adjustment to the canying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below,

The judgements used by management in the application of the Group's accounting policies in respect of these key areas of est mation are considered to
be the most significant.

impairment of goodwill and tangible fixed assets

Deterrmining whether goodwill or tangible fixed assets are impaired requires an estimation of the value ir: use of the cash-genzrating units to which the
goodwill has been allocated or the individual assets. The value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit or asset and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. The carrying 2mount of goodwili and tangible fixed assets
at the balance sheet date was ES3.0 million (2005; £112.0 millicn) and £330.6 million (2005: £406.2 million) respectively. Details regarding the goodwill
and tangible fixed asset canying value and assumptions used in carying out the impairment reviews are provided in notes 11 and 12.

Pensions and other post-retirernent benefits

Determining the present value of future obligations af pension and ether pest-retirement benefit schemes requires an estimation of future mortality rates,
future changes in employee benefits and length of service. These assumptions are determined in assodiation with qualified actuarie:s. The net pension liability
related to defined benefit type schemes at the balance sheet date was £23.2 million (2005: £27.5 million). Details regarding the canying value and
assumptions used in amiving at the carrying value are provided in note 22.

3. Group results post incorporation

Fiberweb ple was incorporated on 22nd january 2006, During 2006, the Group generated underlying profit before tax of £1.7 million in the period prior
to incorporation and £11.1 million in the period post incorporation. All restructuring cests and non-recurring ftems occurred in the perod after the
incorporation of Fiberweb ple. (see note 5). ‘

4. Segmental information

The Group's primary segments are geographic on the basis of the underlying operational managerent structure and reporting hierarchy. The geographic
segments then comprise businesses supphying the hygiene and industrial nonwovens markets. All segments include operations consisting of the manufacture
and sale of nonwoven materials.

Geographical segments

North Rest of
Europe America World Eliminations Total
2006 £m £'m E'm £'m £m
Extemnal sales by origin 2701 275.4 392 - 584.7
External sales by destination 245.6 2779 572 - 584.7
Inter-segment sales g1 12.5 0.5 (22.1) -
Underlying cperating profit 16.2 74 39 - 27.5
Restructuring costs and other non-recurring items (31.2) {64.2) (.7 - (97.1)
Segment result * {(15.0) (56.8) 2.2 - (69.6)
Investment income 0.4
Finance costs (15.1)
Loss before tax (84.3)
Tax 15.0
Loss for the year (69.3)

* Segment result includes £0.1 million profit of associates within Eurape (2005: £0.2 million) and £0.5 millian within Rest of V/orld (2005: £0.5 million)
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements coninued

4. Segmental information continued

Other information

North Rest of
Eurape America World Total
£'m £'m £m £m
Capital additions 262 23.4 41 53.7
Depreciation and amortisation 17.2 18.0 32 384
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss 4.4 278 - 322
Asset write downs recognised in profit or loss 11.4 256 0.5 315
Balance sheet
Assets:
Segment assets, excluding corporation tax recoverable 3079 281.6 525 642.0
Interests in associates 1.4 - - 14
Consolidated total assets, excluding corporation tax recoverable 3093 281.6 52.5 643.4
Unallocated corporate assets 2.0
Total consolidated assets 645.4
Liabilities;
Segment liabilities, excluding tax liabilities and debt 542 50.8 42 109.2
Unallocated corporate liabilities 2392
Consolidated total liabilities 348.4
Geographical segments
North Rest of
Europe America World Eliminations Total
2005 £m £m £'m £m £'m
External sales by origin 276.9 2908 35.6 - 603.3
External sales by destination 2587 2975 47.1 - 603.3
Inter-segment sales 11.3 6.0 31 (20.4) -
Underlying operating profit 266 16.7 46 - 479
Restructuring costs and other non-recurring items {1.8) (11.2) (0.1) — {13.1)
Segment result from continuing opesations* 248 5.5 45 - a8
Investment income 1.5
Finance costs (16.1)
Profit before tax 20.2
Tax (2.9)
Profit for the year 15.3

* Segment result indudes £0.2 million profit of associates within Europe and £0.5 million within Rest of World respectively.
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4, Segmental information continued

Other information

North Rest of
Europe America World Total
E'm £m E£'m £m
Capital additions 11.9 170 3.5 324
Depreciation and amortisation 18.8 216 3.3 43.7
Impairment lasses recognised in profit or foss 0.3 1.2 - 1.5
Asset write downs recognised in prefit or loss 04 1.4 1.2 3.0
Balance sheet
Assets:
Segment assets, excluding corporation tax recoverable 3080 3753 61.7 745.0
Interests in associates 1.4 - 6.5 79
Consolidated 1o1al assets, excluding corporation tax recoverable 309.4 3753 68.2 752.9
Unallocated corporate assets 0.9
Consolidated total assets 753.8
Liabilities:
Segment liabilities, excluding corporation tax and debt 473 67.3 13.2 127.8
Unallocated corporate liabilities 329.5
Consolidated total liabilities 4513
Business segments
Unallocated
Hygiene Industrial Corporate Total
2006 £'m £m £'m £m
External sales by origin 3815 203.2 - 584.7
Underlying operating profit 14.5 14.7 N 215
Restructuring costs and other non-recursing items {82.8) {14.3) - (97.1)
Segment result from continuing opesations* {68.3) 0.4 (1.7} (69.6)
Capital additions 39.0 14.2 0.5 53.7
Asseis 4438 178.6 210 643.4
Depreciation and amortisation 29.0 9.4 - 38.4
* Segment result incdudes £0.6 millian profit of associates within hygiene and £nil within industrial respectively.
2005
External sales by ongin 409.8 1935 - 603.3
Underlying operating profit 288 21.2 (2.2) 419
Restructuring costs and other non-recurring items (12.6) (0.5) - (13.1}
Segment result from continuing operations* 16.3 207 (2.2) 348
Capital additions 22.5 95 - 32.4
Assets 541.1 205.7 6.1 752.9
Depreciation and amortisation 34.6 9.1 - 43.7

* Segment result includes £0.7 million profit of associates within hygiene and Enil within industrial respectively.

All sales arise from the sale of goods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements cnined

5. Profit/(loss) for the year
Profit/(loss) for the year is stated after charging/(crediting):

2006 2005
Note £'m £m
Net foreign exchange gains (0.2) {0.5)
Research and development costs 8.8 7.1
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12 37.2 426
Impairment and write downs of property, plant and equiprment 12 69.7 14.5
Amortisation of intangible assets (induded in administration expenses) 11 12 1.1
Irnpaimmnent of goodwall 1) 14.6 -
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 122.7 58.2
Total emplayee costs 10 101.1 97.1
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 474.8 478.3
Write downs of inventories recognised as an expense:
~ underlying 18 0.1
— NON-TECUTTng 0.4 -
Total write downs of inventories recognised as an expense 2.2 0.1

Restructuring costs and other non-recurring items included within statutory operating profit amounted to £97.1 million (2005: £13.1 million). The main
iterns induded within this are:

®  Non-recurring cost of sales £35.3 million (2005: £11.5 million). This includes a £21,0 million impairment charge in relation to a small number of
Fiberweb wipes lines, arising as a result of pressure on margins due to overcapacity and increased competition in the wipes market in Europe and
North Amesica, W also includes £3.2 million of impaimment in relation to the cotton bleadhing business at Griswoldville, which reflects the impact
of increased competitive pressures, principally arising from cheaper imports. The Group has also recognised a charge of £6.1 million in respect of
surplus capacity in the Fiberweb North America industrial business in the face of a softening in the US construction market and £5.0 million charge
in respect of some European hygiene lines written down, as the cost effectiveness of the older technology adversely affects the price competitiveness,
and therefare the future sales potential, of the products. The 2005 charge relates to the impairment of production lines within the Fiberweb North
America hygiene business; these impairments arose as a result of the negative impact on margins of increased energy costs and polypropylene
prices, and due to changes in customer demands for spedalist products.

*  Norecurring ather operating incorme £nil (2005: £2.6 million). The 2005 income primarily relates to a curtailment gain on a post-retirement medical
benefit scheme, following the amendment of member benefits.

*  Norn-recurring administrative expenses £14.6 million (2005: £nil). This represents the impaiment of goodwill relating to Tecnofibra. This impairment
arises as a result of pressure on margins due to overcapacity and increased competition in the wipes market in Europe.

*  Restructuring costs £45.6 million (2005: £4.2 million). This indudes line and asset write downs of £26.7 million and severance and other closure
costs of £11.0 million assodated primarily with the rationalisation of the North American hygiene business. It also indudes a charge of £7.9 million in
refation to line and asset impaimment and redundancy costs at Terram, where restructuring is underway 1o close ane of the company's two produdtion
lines in response to increased utility and polymer costs and price pressure caused by new capacity commissioned by two competitors, The 2005 charge
of £4.2 million principally comprises rationalisation costs in Fiberweb LSA and Sweden.

*  |ossof £1.6 million (2005: £nil) on disposal of assodate CNC Thailand (see note 13).

The analysis of auditors’ remuneration is as follows:

2006 2005
£m £m

Audit services
Fees payable to the company’s auditors for the audit of the company’s annual accounts 1.0 07
Total 1.0 0.7

The Cormpany audit fee is included within the Group audit fee in the current year and cannet be separately identified.
Fees payable to Deloitte & Touche LLP for non-audit services were £50,000 (2005: £10,000) in respect of taxation services,




6. Investment income and finance costs

2006 2005

£m £m

Interest on bank deposits 0.4 1.1
Changes in fair value of derivatives held for trading - 0.4

Total investment income 0.4 1.5
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts (2.4} (1.2)
Interest on obligations under finance leases {0.3) (0.3)
Interest on loans from the former parent company {12.1) (13.9)
Net finance expense from pension schemes (note 22) (1.0) (0.9)
Other finance costs (0.1) -
(15.9) (16.3)

Less: amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets 0.8 0.2
Total finance costs {15.1) (i6.1}

Bomowing costs induded in the cost of qualifying assets dunng the year arose on the general borrowing pocl and are calculated by applying a capitalisation
rate to expenditure on such assets in the range of 2.7% ta 4.5%, according to the interest :ates applicable to the refevant coutries incurring the costs.

Interest payable of £12.1 million (2005: £13.9 million) on loans from the former parent cormpany indludes an amount of £6.2 million {2005 Enil) which
was capitalised as part of the pre-demerger restructuring of these loans, leaving an amount of £5.9 million (2005: £13.9 million) that was paid pricr to

the demerger.

7. Taxation

2006 2005
Current tax £m €m
Current income tax charge on underlying activities 43 76
Current income tax credit on non-recurmng activities (0.3) -
Adjustments in respect of previous penods (1.0) (0.4)
Deferred tax
Qrigination and reversal of temporary differences on underlying activities 3.0 28
Origination and reversal of temporary differences on non-recurring activities (20.9) (4.8)
Adjustments in respect of previous periods (0.1) (0.3)
Income tax {credit)/expense for the year (15.0) 49

Current tax all relates to overseas operations. All of the income tax relates to continuing operations. Domestic income tax is calculated at 30% (2005:
30%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year, Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevafling in the relevant jurisdictions.

The total income tax (credit)/expense for the year can be reconciled to the total accounting profit as follows:

2006 2005
{Loss)/profit before tax: £m E'm
Continuing operations (84.3) 20.2
Blended tax rate 39.8% 28.2%
(Loss)/profit before tax multiplied by the blended rate {33.6) 57
Share of resulis of associates 0.3 e.n
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7.0 1.9
ltems on which deferred tax has not been recognised 3.0 (1.1}
Adjustments in respect of previous periods (r.1) (0.7}
Surrender of losses to former parent company 9.4 07
Tax rate changes - (1.5}
Tax (credit)/expense for the year (15.0) 49
Overall effective tax rate 17.8% 24.3%
Effective tax rate on undeslying losses/profits 48.4% 29.1%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

7. Taxation continued

The applicable tax rate of 39.8% (2005: 28.2%) represents a blend of the tax rates of the jurisdictions in which taxable profits have arisen. The change
on prior year is due 1o a change in the proportion of taxable profits that have arisen in each jurisdiction.

In addition to the income tax expense charged to profit or loss, a net £nil million (2005: £2.8 million) has been charged to equity in the period,
comprising an offsetiing £0.2 million credit to equity in the period in respect of actuarial losses on pensions and a £0.2 million charge to equity in
the period in respect of {air value adjustments on financial instruments.

The underlying effective tax rate of 48.4% is high as a result of certain deferred tax assets not having been recognised because their ultimate recoverability
is not sufficiently assured.

8. Dividends
2006 2005
£'m £m
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the pericd:
Dividends paid to former parent company prior to demerger 5.5 9.5
Proposed final dividend for the period ended 3 1st December 2006 of 3.95 pence (2005: nil) per share 4.8 -

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a liability in these finandal
staterments,

9. Earnings per share
Continuing operations

2006 2005
Earnings £m Em
Basic and diluted:
(Loss)/profit for the period - basic eamings attributable to ordinary shareholders (69.3) 15.3
Restructuring costs and non-recurring items 97.1 13.1
Tax on restructuring costs and non-recurring items {(21.2) (4.8)
Adjusted eamings 6.6 23.6
Number of shares
Weighted average number of 5p ordinary shares:
For basic earmings per share 122,430,375 122,440,375
For diluted eamings per share 122,430,375 122,440,375
Earnings per share
Basic:
Adjusted 5.3p 19.3p
Unadjusted {56.5)p 12.5p
Dilsted:
Adjusted 5.4p 19.3p
Unadjusted {56.5)p 12.5p

Adjusted eamings per share are shown calculated on eamings before restructuring costs and non-recurring items because the directars consider this gives
a better indication of underlying performance.

The number of ordinary shares in issue immediately after the demerger has been used as the weighted average number for the period prior to demerger.
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10. Employees

2006 2005
Avetage monthly number {including executive directors) Rumber Number
By region
Europe 1,311 1,269
North America 1,327 1,355
Rest of World 310 255
2,948 2,918
By market
Hygiene 1,936 2,086
Industrial 1,012 833
2,948 2,919
Employment costs £m Em
Wages and salaries 81.2 80.4
Social security costs 16.5 15.8
Pension costs (note 22) 33 09
Expense of share-based payments (note 24) 0.1 -
101.1 97.1
11. Intangible assets
Goadwill Licences Total
£'m £m £m
Cost .
At Tst January 2005 106.6 59 112.5
Exchange adjustments 4.7 04 5.1
Acquisitions in prior years 07 - 0.7
Additions - 01 0.1
At 1st January 2006 112.0 6.4 118.4
Exchange adjustments 74 (0.7) (8.1)
Acquisiticns (see note 29) 26 0.2 28
Additions - 0.6 0.6
At 31st December 2006 1072 6.5 113.7
Amortisation and impairment
At 1st January 2005 - (1.0) (1.0)
Exchange adjustments - - -
Charge for the year - {.1) (1.1}
At 1st lanuary 2006 - .1 (2.3)
Exchange adjustments 0.4 02 06
Charge for the year (14.6) (1.2) (15.8)
At 31st December 2006 (14.2) {3.1) (17.3)
Carrying amount:
31st December 2006 93.0 3.4 96.4
31st December 2005 112.0 4.3 116.3

Licences are amortised over the period to which they relate, which is on average five years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements cntinued

11. Intangible assets continued

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating units {*CGUs") that are expected to benefit from the business
combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

2006 2005

£m E'm

Veratec ) 48.2 52.5
Tecnofibra - 145
Tenotex 223 227
US Industrial (Reemay and Superior) 13.9 15.9
AQF 5.0 5.7
Other - several CGUs 3.6 0.7
93.0 1120

The £0.7 million goodwill arising in the year ended 315t Decemnber 2005 in respect of acquisitions in prior years results from the finalisation of fair value exerdses.
The business tests goodwill for impairment annually or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding
the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes 1o selling prices and direct costs during the period. Management estimates discount rates using pre-
tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks spedfic to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on industry
growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market

The business prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the maost recent finandial budgets approved by management and extrapolates cash flows for
the following years based on an estimated growth rate of up to 2.5%. This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
markets. The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows is 109%.

12. Property, plant and equipment

Land & Fixtures &
Buildings Equipment Total
£m Em £€m
Cost or valuation
At 1st January 2005 112.3 528.7 641.0
Exchange adjustments 4.7 229 276
Additions 48 275 323
Disposals - (.n (1.1
Other asset write downs - (6.2) (6.2)
At 1st January 2006 1218 5718 693.6
Exchange adjustments (8.2) (33.1) (41.3)
Acquisition of businesses (see note 29) 0.7 0.8 1.5
Additions 74 45.7 53.1
Disposals 0.0 (0.9) (.0)
Transfers between categories 23 (2.3) ) -
Asset wiite downs in respect of non-recuring items (6.2) (94.8) 0n.0)
Other asset write downs - (0.8) {0.8)
At 31st December 2006 1127 486.4 604.1




12. Property, plant and equipment continued

Land & Fixtures &
Buildings Equ pment Total
Accumulated depreciation and impairment £m £'m £m
At 1st fanuary 2005 (26.9) 1200.3) {227.2)
Exchange adjustments (1.9) (8.5) (10.4)
Depreciation charge for the year (3.8) (38.8) (42.6)
Disposals - 11 1.1
Impairments - {11.5) (11.5)
Other asset write downs 0.1 31 3.2
At 1st January 2006 (32.5) 1254.9) (287.4)
Exchange adjustments 28 15,7 185
Depreciation charge for the year 40 (33.2) (372)
Disposals - 0.5 0.5
Impairments (5.6} {26.6) (32.2)
Transfers between categories (0.6} 0.6 -
Asset write downs in respect of non-recurring items 3.1 61.0 64.1
Other asset write downs - 0.2 0.2
At 31st December 2006 (36.8) (236.7) (273.5)
Carrying amount:
31st December 2006 80.9 249.7 330.6
31st December 2005 89.3 3169 406.2
1006 2005
Capital commitments £'m £m
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided 3.6 6.9

The camying amount of the Group's fixtures and equipment indudes an armourt of £8.9 million (2005: £8.9 miflion} in respect of assets held under finance leases.
Where assets have been impaired the recoverable amount has been determined by reference to its value in use, estimated using ¢ discount rate of 10.00%.
Asset write downs of £36.5 million (2005: £nil) in respect of non-recurning items relating to the restructuring and non-recurning items are discussed in detail
in note 5.

13. Interests in associates

2006 2005
£m Em
Cost of investment in associaies 25 78
Share of post acquisition profit, net of dividends received (1.1) 0.1
1.4 79

In November 2006, the Group sold its 50% undertaking in CNC Intemational Co. Ltd for £5.4 million/US$10.2 millicn. The Group recognised a book loss
of £1.6 million on the transaction. Proceeds from the sale were used to repay part of the revolving credit facility drawn down by liberweb on demerger.

The names and interests in major associated undertakings and joint ventures are shown in note 32.

Aggregated amounts relating o assodiates:

2006 2005

£m E'm

Total assets 45 243
Total liabilities (1.1) (10.4)
Net assets 3.4 13.9
Revenue 2.0 226
Prcfit for the year 1.6 1.5
Business share of profit for the year 0.6 0.7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continved

14. Inventories

2006 2005
£'m £'m
Raw materials 29.7 31.7
Work-in-progress 12.} B7
Finished goods 40.3 44.5
82.1 84.9
15. Other financial assets
Trade and other receivables
2006 2005
£'m Em
Trade receivables 75.8 92.6
Amounts owed by former parent company 4.5 4.1
Other receivables, prepayments and accrued income 17.1 14.6
Trade and other receivables due within one year 97.4 111.3
Trade and other receivables due after one year 03 0.5
917 111.8

The average credit penod taken on sales of goods is 48 days (2005: 57 days). No interest is charged on the receivables paid within their due date.
Thereafter, the seller reserves the right to charge inierest on the overdue outstanding balance at rates ranging from 1.5% to 4% above the bank base
interest rate of the relevart junsdiction. An allowance has been made for estimated irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods of £1.3 million
{2005: £2.2 million). This allowance has been determined by reference to past default experience.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates ther fair value.
Amounts owed by the former parent company include £3.5 million (2005: £3.5 million) in respect of indemnities against corporation tax liabilities in
accordance with the terms of the Demerger Agreement.

Cash and cash equivalents

20086 2005

E€m £m

Bank balances 34.6 258
Short term bank deposits not repayable on demand 0.6 -
Cash and cash equivalents 35.2 258

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the business and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. The carrying
amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

Credit risk
The Group's principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables and investments.

The credit risk on fiquid funds and denvative finandal instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
intemational credit-rating agendes.

The Group's credit nisk is primanly attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables.
An allowance for impairment is made where there is an identified loss event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a redudtion of the cash flows.

The Group has some concentration of credit nisk. However the Group's major customers have high credit ratings, and therefore the directors do not befieve
that this creates a significant risk exposure.
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16. Trade and other payables

2006 2005

E'm £'m

Trade payables 48.6 576
Other taxation and social security 32 24
Amounts owed to former parent company - 14.9
Other payables 17.5 1.4
Accruals and deferred income 8.0 8.7
713 S50

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their fair value.

17. Obligations under finance leases

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
2006 2005 2006 2005
£'m £m £m £'m
Amounts payable under finance leases:
Within one year 26 27 23 24
in the second to fifth years inclusive 4.6 7.0 4.4 6.5
72 9.7 6.7 89
Less: future finance charges {0.5) (0.8) n/a n/a
Present value of lease obligations 6.7 89 6.7 85
Less: amounts due for settlement within one year (shown under current liabilities) (2.3) (2.4)
4.4 6.5

it s the Group's policy to lease certain of its fixtures and equipment under finance leases. The average lease term ts seven years. For the year ended 3 I st December
2006, the average effective borrowing rate was 4.0% (2005: 2.7%). Interest sates are fixed at the contract date or vary based en prevailing interest rates.

Finance lease abligations are denominated in the following currencies: euros £2.0 million (2005: £3.0 miltion) and Swedish krona £4.7 million (2005:

£5.9 million).
The fair value of the Group's lease obligations approximates their carrying amaount.

Obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets.

18. Operating lease arrangements

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments under operating Jeases recognised as an expense in the year

2006 2005
E'm £'m
3.4 37

At the balance sheet date, the business has outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall duz as follows:

2006 2005

£'m £'m

Within one year 25 32
In the second to fifth years inclusive 6.1 9.8
After five years 5.2 10.2
13.8 232

Operating lease payments represent ameunts payable by the Group for centain of its office properties, plant and equipment. Leases are negotiated for an
average term of one year for office properties, twelve years for plants and warehouses and four years for equipment. Rentals are zererally fixed or adiusted

for based on inflation.
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19. Bank overdrafts and loans

006 2005

£'m £m

Bank overdrafts 0.6 0.2
Bank loans 192.9 209
Former parent corpany financing - 2377
Loans other than from banks 0.3 0.4
193.8 259.2

The borowings are repayable as follows:

2006 2005

£'m £'m

On demand or within one year 10.3 2498
In the second year 2.7 5.9
In the third to fifth years inclusive . 180.8 3.5
1938 2582
Less: Amount due for settlement within one year (shown under current liabilities) {10.3) (249.8)
Amounts due for settlement after more than one year 183.5 9.4

The fair value of the Group’s borrowings is not matenally different from their carrying values.

The former parent company financing did not have defined repayment terms but was repaid during the year on demerger; accordingly these loans have
been classified as repayable within one year as at 31st December 2005.

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

US dollar eurc  Swedish krona Sterling Other Total
31st December 2006 £m £'m £m £m £m £m
Bank overdrafts - 06 - - - 06
Bark loans 934 85.4 141 - - 1929
Loans other than from banks - 0.3 - - - 0.3

93.4 B6.3 14.1 - - 193.8
31st December 2005
Bank overdrafts .- 02 - - - 02
Bank loans 13.9 70 - - - 209
Former parent company financing 114.0 773 38.1 11.0 2.7) 2377
Loans other than from banks - 0.4 - - - 04
1279 84.9 38.1 11.0 2.7) 2582
The average interest rates on borrowings from urrelated third parties are as follows:
. 2006 2005
US doltar 6.65% 4.5%
eura 5.05% 3.0%
Swedish krona 4.41% -

Since demerger, the Group borrows mainly under 2 $439.5 miflion multi currency, revolving credit facility (RCF) provided by a syndicate of several
intemational banks, maturing in 201 1. Borrowings under this facility are in euro, US Dollars and Swedish krona for rmaturities up to six months. All amounts
drawn down are at floating interest rateskAmounts owed under the RCF are shown as maturing between 3 and 5 years.

The majority of borrowings are armanged at floating rates, thus exposing the group to interest rate risk. The effective rates on bormowings are not materially
different from their nominal interest rates.

Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand. The business has secured loans of £2.5 million (2005: £3.9 million). The RCF is secured by way of a series
of guarantees from overseas businesses in respect of the parent's liabilities. Afl other bank loans are unsecured, although there are some cases where
parent guarantees have been issued in respect of bank loans to overseas subsidiaries.

At year end the Group had available $84.0 million of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.
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20. Derivative financial instruments

Fair Values
2006 2006 2005 2005
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Cash flow hedges: £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swaps 0.5 - - -
Analysed as maturing in:
— two 1o five years 0.5 - - -

The fair values of alt derivative financial instruments shown in the: table above are based on market values of equivalent instrurr ents at the balance sheet
date and are held as assets and liabilities within other receivables and payables.

Currency Risks

The overall policy of Fiberweb is to use borrowings in currency to manage the currency risk arising from overseas subsidiaries. The currency profile of
borrowings under the RCF broadly mirrors the currency profile of the Group’s net assets. Foreign currency-denominated borrowings are designated as net
investment hedges. No derivatives are used to manage currency risk arising from investments. It is the Group's policy not to undertake speculative
currency transactions.

Fiberweb's business is characterised by a relatively low level of cross border activity, and therefore the Group has little transactional currency exposure. Qverall,
the volume of transactions with a currency impact is below 10% of tumover. However, the Group's policy is that, where significant transactional exposures
exist, these exposures shouk! be hedged with maturities not to exceed tweive months.

Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange contracts taken out to hedge transactional risk are taken ta the income statement. As at 31st December
2006, the Group had committed to a notional amount of £5.7 million (2005; Enil) of forward contracts to buy or sell foreign currency. The fair value of
such transactions was Enil,

Interest Rate Risks

The Group's policy is to use a combination of debt and derivative instruments to hedge portions of its interest rate exposure for varying periods, up to the
maturnity of its undedying borrowing facilities. The Group entered into a sefies of interest rate swaps for a total of $100,0 million, whereby it pays a fixed rate
of 4.80% and receives floating rate. The swaps mature in 2011 and have been designated interest risk hedges. The fair market value of the swaps was
£1.0 million (£0.5 million} at year end and the gain has been credited to the hedging reserve (note 26).

Commaodity Risks

The Group has commodity raw matenial price exposure to a nurmber of raw matenials, mainly polypropylene and, to a lesser extent, polyester and polyethytene.
The Group manages its exposure to polypropylene and others through a combination of business amangemenits with suppliers and ¢ stormers, which neutralise
part of the exposure, and denvative instruments including fixed price swaps and futures contradts.

At 3 1st December 2006, no commodity derivatives were outstanding,

Treasury transactions in respect of managing commodity risk in the period prior to demerger and flotation were managed by BEA at Croup tevel, and the
impact of this activity was not transferred to Fiberweb entities on demerger.

21. Provisions
Restructuring provisions

E'm
As at st January 2006 2.4
Exchange rate adjustments (0.5}
Charged in the year 89
Utilised in the year (4.6)
As at 31st December 2006 6.2

Restructuring provisions represent costs provided in relation to obligations existing at the balance sheet date for reorganisation in re spect of the rationalisation
of Terram and the further restructuring of the US hygiene business. The provision brought forward relates to the initial restructuring of the US hygiene business.
Amounts payable after more than one year comprise rent obligations in respect of an onerous lease provision in North America.

2006 2005

Analysed as: £m Em
Current liabiliies 2.6 24
Non-current liabilities 3.6 -
6.2 2.4
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22. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

The Group operates a number of pension plans worldwide, The majonty of these are defined contribution in nature. The nomal pension cost for the Group,
induding early retirement costs, was £3.3 million (2005: £0.9 rnillion) of which £3.1 million (2005: €0.6 million) was in respect of foreign schemes. This indudes
£2.1 million (2005: £2.3 million} relating o defined contribution schernes. The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent
qualified actuaries, where practicable, using a variety of methods and assurnptions and otherwise, in respect of certain foreign schemes, in accordance with
locat regulations.

The Group's foreign pension schemes mainly relate to defined contribution plans. There are also a number of funded final salary defined benefit pension
arrangements principally in North America. Pension costs have been calculated by independent qualified actuaries, using the projected unit method and
assumptions appropnate to the amangements in place.

The Group also operates a number of plans in North America which principally cover healthcare and life assurance benefits for its retirees. The costs of
these other post-retirement benefits are assessed by independent qualified actuaries.

In accordance with IAS 19 the latest actuarial valuations of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes and healthcare plan have been reviewed and
updated as at 31st December 2006. The following weighted average financial assumptions have been adopted:

North America Rest of World
p-a. (9) 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Discount rate 5.8 55 6.0 4.6 45 51
Rate of increase to pensionable salaries 3.0 30 38 30 34 2.4
Price inflation 28 28 28 2.1 2.1 1.5
Rate of increase to pensions in payment - - - 19 1.8 10
Rate of healthcare cost increases % reducing to 5% over the next 4 years - — -

The fair value of the assets and liabilities of the schemes at each balance sheet date were:

North America Rest of World Total

2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Assets £m E'm £'m £m £'m E'm £'m £m £m
Equities 14.2 14.2 122 0.5 05 03 14.7 14.7 12.5
Govemment bonds 1.8 1.9 1.5 0.1 0.1 0.1 19 20 1.6
Corporate bonds 1.7 13.5 - - - - 1.7 13.5 -
Other 1.1 0.3 11.2 - - - 1.1 03 11.2
Total fair value of scheme assets 28.8 29.9 249 0.6 0.6 04 29.4 305 253
Obligations
Present value of funded defined
benefit obligations (387) (437) (353) (0.4) (05 (04 (391) (442) (357)
Present value of unfunded defined
benefit obligations (13) (7.4) (8.8) {6.2) (6.4) (3.8) {13.5) (138) (126}
Total value of scheme obligations (46.0) (51.1) (441) (66) (69) (42) (52.6) (580) (48.3)
Liability recognised on the balance sheet date (172) (21.2) (19.2) (6.0} (6.3) (3.8) (23.2) (273) (230}

The funding policy for the schemes is reviewed on a systematic basis in consultation with the independent scheme actuary in order to ensure that the
funding contributions from sponsoring employers are appropriate to meet the liabilities of the schemes over the long term.

The expected rates of retum reflect the Group's best estimate of the investment returns (net of tax and expenses) that will be eamed on each asset
dass over the long term. The expected return on assets in the analysis of the income statement is based on weighted average retums using these rates,
and taking into account the asset allecation of each plan.
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22. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits continued

North America

% 2006 2005 2004
Long term expected return on assets
Equities 8.8 83 8.5 !
Govemment bonds 48 47 55 ‘
Corporate bends 5.8 5.1 5.5 :
Other 3.0 40 30 ‘
Total 73 6.6 58
North America Rest of World Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Analysis of income statement charge £'m £m £'m £m £m Em
Current service cost 0.3 0.2 08 0.8 1.1 1.0
Interest cost 2.7 26 0.2 0.1 29 27
Expected return on assets (1.9 (1.8) - - (1.9) (1.8}
Immediate recognition of gains arising over the year - - (0.1) - (0.1) -
{Cains)/losses due 1o settlements, curtailments and
termination benefits 0.2 (2.5) - - 0z (2.5)
Expense recognised in income statement 13 (1.5) 09 05 2.2 (0.6)

Current service costs, curtaifment gains/losses and termination benefits in respect of underlying trading operations have been r2cognised in the income
statemnent within adminisirative expenses. Curtailment gains/losses in respect of non-recurring restructuring activity have been racognised in the income

statement in restructuning costs. Net interest payable has been recognised within finance costs (see note 6).

North America Rest of World Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 1006 2005
Changes to the fair value of scheme €'m £'m £'m £m €'m £m
assets during the year
Fair value of scheme assets at beginning of year 29.9 249 0.6 0.4 30.5 253
Expected return on assets 19 1.8 - - 1.9 1.8
Actual employer contributions 3.2 32 1.0 0.5 4.2 37 i
Contributions by plan participants 0.1 0.1 - - 0.1 0.1 \
Net benefits paid out (3.1) 2N (1.0) (0.5) (a.1) (3.2) \
Actuarial gains/(losses) on assets 0.5 (0.4) 0.1 0.1 0.6 (0.3) i
Foreign currency exchange rate changes (3.7) 30 (0.1) 0.1 (3.8) 34
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 28.8 29.9 0.6 0.6 29.4 305

North America Rest of World Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Changes to the defined benefit £'m £m £'m £m £'m £'m
obligation during the year
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 51.1 44.1 6.9 42 58.0 483
Current senvice cost 0.3 0.2 0.8 0.8 1.1 1.0
Interest cost 2.7 26 0.2 o1 29 27
Contributions by plan participants 0.1 0.1 - - 0.1 0.1
Actuarial (gains)/losses on scheme liabilities * 1.0 4.1 (0.1) 31 0.9 7.2
Net benefits paid out (3.1) @7 (1.0) {0.5) (4.1) (3.2)
Gains due to settlements and curtailments (0.1) (2.5) - - 0.1) (2.5}
Jermination benefits 0.3 - - - 0.3 -
Foreign currency exchange rate changes (6.3) 5.2 (0.2) {0.8) (6.5) 4.4
Defined benefit obligation at end of year 46.0 51.1 6.6 6.9 52.6 58.0
* Includes changes to the actuarial assumptions
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements cwntinued

22. Pensions and other past-retirement benefits continued

North America Rest of World Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £'m £m £m €m

Actual return on scheme assets 24 1.4 0.1 - 2.5 1.4
Analysis of amounts recognised in the Statement
of Recognised Income and Expense
Total actuarial (losses)/gains recognised in the year (0.5) (4.5) 0.2 (3.0) (0.3) (7.5)
Total losses in the Statement of Recognised
Income and Expense (0.5) (4.5) 0.2 (3.0) {0.3) (7.5)
Cumulative armount of losses recognised in the
Statement of Recognised Income and Expense (6.2) (5.7) (1.5} (3.0) (2.7 (8.7)

A 1% increase in assumed medical cost trend rates would increase the aggregate charge in the income statement by £0.1 million and increase the net
liability by £0.8 million. A 18 decrease in assumed medical cost trend rates would reduce the aggregate charge in the income statement by £0.1 million
and reduce the net liability by £0.7 million.

North America Rest of World Total
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004

History of Asset Values, Em £m £m £m £'m £m £m £ffm E'm

Defined Benefit Obligations

Fair value of assets 28.8 299 249 0.6 0.6 04 29.4 305 25.3

Defined benefit obligations 46.0 51.1 44.1 6.6 6.9 42 52.6 580 483

Deficit {(122) {(21.2) (9.2 (6.0) (6.3) (38) (23.2) (275) (23.0)
Experience {losses)/gains on scheme assets 0.5 (0.4) 0.8 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.6 (0.3) 09

Experience losses on scheme liabilities (1.4) (0.6) (0.8) - (1.8) (0.1) (1.4) 24 (0.9)

North America Rest of Waorld Total
T Em £m £m
Ermployer contributions in 2007 are estimated to be as follows: 33 03 3.6

BBA Income and Protection Plan

The employees of the Group's UK operations participated in the BBA Income and Protection Plan, a funded defined benefit final salary pension plan in the
periad prior to demerger. The BBA Income and Protection Plan shared risks between entities in the BBA Group and the Rbenweb Group. No apportionment
of the assets and liabilities of this schermne has been made to the Group in these finandal statements on the basis that there is no contractuat agreement
or stated policy for allocating the plan between the companies or businesses, and under 1AS 19, the assets, liabilities, income and expenses would be
recognised in the finandial staternents of the spansaring employer of the plan, BBA Group plc

The contnbution payable by Group entities to the BBA Income and Protection Plan is determined with reference to the salaries of the employees of Group
entities who participate in the scheme. The charge recognised in the period was £0.2 million (2005: £0.3 million). As from the demerger, the Group has
no obligation to make further contributions 10 this scherre,

The following information has been presented in respect of the BBA Income and Protection Plan as a whole:

2006 2005 2004
o . £m £'m £'m
Changes to the present value of the defined benefit obligation during the year

Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 452.2 4153 388.0
Current service cost 4.7 47 5.7
Interest cost 21.2 218 21.0

. Contributions by plan participants 0.9 09 1.1
Actuarial losses on scheme liabilities* 6.8 25.4 206
Net benefits paid out {20.0) (16.0) (21.2)
Past service cost ' - 0.1 0.1
Gain due to setilement and curtailments {1.6) - -
Defined benefit obligation at end of year 464.2 452.2 415.3

* Includes changes to actuarial assumptions.
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22. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits continued
United Kingdom

2006 2005 2004
Changes te the fair value of scheme assets during the year £m £m £m
Fair value of scheme assets at beginning of year 436.8 3819 368.9
Expected return on assets 24.6 238 23.2
Actual employer contributions 92 87 45
Centributions by plan participants 09 09 1.1
Actuarial gains on assets 1.4 375 5.4
Net benefits paid out (20.0) (16.0) (21.2)
Defined benefit obligation at end of year 452.9 4368 3819

The fair value of the assets and liabilities of the scheme at each balance sheet date were:
United Kingd>m

2006 2005 2004 2003
Assets £m £m Em £m
Equities 118.8 123.4 1182 130.6
Government bonds 159.0 162.4 205.9 192.1
Corporate bonds 87.2 78.1 - -
Other 719 729 56.8 46.2
Total fair value of scheme assets 452.9 436.8 3819 3689
Present value of defined benefit obligations 464.2 452.2 4153 388.0
Liability recognised on BBA's balance sheet {11.3) (15.4) (33.4) (19.1)

I accordance wath 1AS 19, and subject to materiality, the latest actuarial valuation of the scheme has been reviewed and updated as at 31st December
2006. The following weighted average finandiat assumptions have been acdopted:

United Kingdum

2006 2005 2004 2003
pa.% p-a. % p.a. % p.a. %
Discount rate 5.1 48 53 5.5
Rate of increase to pensionable salaries 44 4.4 4.4 43
Price inflation 29 29 29 28
Rate of increase to pensions in payment 2.9 28 2.7 27
Long term expected return on assets
Equities 8.8 8.8 88 ¥:)
Govemiment bonds 4.5 4.0 50 5.0
Corporate bonds 5.0 45 - -
Other 7.0 6.5 5.6 5.6

The BBA Income and Pratection Plan does not provide for post retirement medical benefits. Therefore, a 1% increase or decrez se in assumed medical
cost trend rates would have no effect on the aggregate charge in the income statement or the net liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

23. Deferred tax

Fixed Other  Goodwilland  Tax losses and Retirement
assets assets intangibles tax credits benefits Total
£'m £m £'m £m £'m £m

At 1st January 2006 (62.8) 0.9 (4.4) 20 93 (55.0)
Charged in year 19.5 27 (1.7) (0.6) (1.9) 18.0
Recognised directly in equity - (0.2} - - 02 -
Exchange adjustments 24 (0.3} 03 0.1 (0.5) 1.7
At 31st December 2006 (40.9) 3.1 (5.8) 1.3 70 (35.3)

In accordance with IAS 12, certain deferred tax assets and fiabilities have been offset The following is the analysis of the defered tax balances (after offset)
for finandal reporting purposes:

2006 2005
£m £m
Deferred tax liabilities {35.3) (55.0)
Deferred tax assets - -
{35.3) (55.0)

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets relating to tax losses and other temporary differences of £10.0 million (2005:
£8.3 million) available for offset against future profits. These assets have not been recognised as the predise inddence of future profits in the relevant countries
and legal entities cannot be predicted accurately at this time, The Group's tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of ternporary differences assodiated with undistributed eamings of subsidiaries for which defemred tax liabilities
have not been recognised was £7.6 million (2005: £6.3 million). No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences because the Group is in
a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in associates and joint ventures are insignificant.

24. Share based payments

Up to the date of demerger, centain directors and employees of Fiberweb were entitled to participate in the share option schemes of the former parent company.
A credit of £0.8 million (2005: an expense of £1.6 million} was taken by BBA Group plc in respect of these schemes in accordance with IFRS 2.

Since demerger, Riberweb has issued its own share-based payment compensation plans. The Group recognised a total expense, within staff costs, in relation
10 share-based payments under equity settled schemnes of £0.1 milfion (2005: nil).

The schernes in operaticn during the year are as follows:
Demerger Share Plan (“DSP")
The DSP provides for the grant of free shares in the form of contingent shares. The award of shares under the DSP was made on 27th November 2006.

Shares in relation to the award will be released to particpants at the end of an expected two year performance period, dependent on the extent to which the
performance conditions have been satisfied. Subject to good leaver provisions, awards are forferted if the employee leaves before the end of the vesting period.

Fifty per cent of the shares awarded under the grant are govemed by a Total Shareholder Retum (*TSR”) market based performance condition. The remaining
fifty per cent are govemed by an Eamings per Share (*EPS™) performance condition.

DSP awards of 2,091,250 shares were granted during the year. The Group recognised a total expense in refation to DSP awards of £72,000 (2005: nil).
Awards outstanding at the end of the year were 2,091,250 (2005: nil). The weighted average fair value of the DSP awards during the period is 148.2 pence
per share or £3.1 million total.

Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP™}
The LTIP provides for the grant of free shares in the form of contingent shares. The award of shares under the LTIP was made on 27th November 2006.

Shares in relation to the award will be released to partidpants at the end of an expected three year performance period, dependent on the extent to which the
performance conditions have been satisfied. Subject to good leaver provisions, awards are forfeited if the employee leaves before the end of the vesting peniod.

Fifty per cent of the shares awarded under the grant are govemed by a TSR market based performance condition. The remaining fifty per cent is govemned
by an EPS performance condition.

LTIP awards of 1,143,938 were granted during the year. The Group recognised a total expense in relation to LTIP awards of £27,000 (2005: nil). Awards
outstanding at the end of the year were 1,143,938 (2005: nil). The weighted average fair value of the LTIP awards during the period is 150.9 pence per
share or £1.7 million total.
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24. Share based payments continued

Fair value assumptions

The fair value of shares awarded under the plans has been calculated using the market value of shares adjusted to take into acco unt the TSR market based
performance condition where applicable. The calculation has been performed using the Stochastic pricing model. The assumpions made in performing
the calculation for each award are listed befow:

2006 Dsp LTip
Grant date 27th November 2006 27th Novernber 2006
Number of participants 100 28
Performance period 2 years 3 years
Stochastic model assumptions:

~ Share price at grant date (pence) 188.75 188.75

— Exercise price {pence) - -

- Volatility 28.0% 28.0%

— Expected dividend yield 2.5% 2.5%
Fair value of shares:

— TSR element (pence) 107.59 113.06

— EPS element (pence) 188.75 188.75

Expected volatility for the grants is based on the historical volatility taking into account the expected vesting term for each grant. Awards of shares with
no exercise price are not affected by the risk free rate of interest, In calculating the income statement charge in refation to the EPS element of the plans,
an expected vesting percentage of 30% has been applied to the fair values. This vesting percentage has been calculated after taking into account expected
staff retention rates and the probabilities attached to attainment of the performance condition.

The total charge for the vear relating to employee share-based payment plans was £0.1 million (2005: nil}, all of which refated to equity-settled share-
based payment transactions. After deferred tax, the total charge to the income statement was £45,000 (2005: nil).

25. Share capital

2006 2005

Em £m

Authorised: 200 million (2005: 200 million) ordinary shares of Sp (2005: 5p) each 10.0 10.0

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 5p 6.1 6.1
Number of shares in issue

Beginning and end of year 122,440,375 122,440,375

The Company has one dass of ordinary shares which camy no right to fixed income.

Fiberweb plc issued two £1 shares to former parent company BBA plc (“BBA"} on 3rd Apnl 2006. The £1 shares were converted to ordinary 5p shares
on 7th September 2006 and 3 further 100 shares were issued at par to BBA, bringing their total holding to 140 shares. 5,588,944 shares were issued
at £2.00 on 7th September 2006 in exchange for shares in Terram Limited. 57,778,925 shares were issued at £1.48 in exchange for shares in Fiberweb's
US operations on 15th November 2006, A further 59,072,366 shares were issued on demerger on 16th November 2006 &t £1.48 in relation to the
debt converted by the former parent cormpany.

In accordance with the requirements of merger accounting, the Group has recorded the premiums on the shares issued in satisfaction of the acquisition
of Terram and the US businesses, of £10.9 million and £82.6 million respectively, as a total credit of £93.5 million to the merger reserve (see note 26).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements cwntinues

26. Movements on reserves

Share Merger Other Capital Hedging Translation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Ea rnings
£m £m £'m £m £'m £m £'m
As at 1st January 2005 845 93.5 86.3 - - - 6.3
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations - - - - - 18.7 -
Actuarial losses - - - - - - (75)
Deferred tax on itemns taken
directly to reserves - - - - - - 28
Profit for the year - - - - - - 153
Dividends paid to former
parent company - - - - - - (9.5)
As at 1st January 2006 84.5 935 86.3 - - 18.7 74
Exchange differences on
transtation of foreign operations - - - - - (20.0) -
Actuarial losses - - - - - - 0.3
Loss for the year - - - - - - (69.3)
Dividends paid to former
parent company - - - - - - (5.5)
Increase in fair value of
cash flow hedging derivatives - - - - 05 - -
Share option costs - - - 0.1 - - -
Adjustments on demerger - - 6.8 - - - (.8
Capital contribution by
former parent company - - - - - - 90.0
As at 31st December 2006 84.5 93.5 93.1 0.1 . 0.5 {1.3) 205

On demerger, BBA waived loans owed to it by Fiberweb entities totalling £90.0 million and created distributable reserves in Fiberweb ple. BBA alsa converted
£87.4 million of debt to eguity in Fiberweb plc

The merger reserve comprises the excess between the nominal value of the shares issued in consideration of the transfer of subsidiaries and the book value

of those subsidiary investments transferred (see note 25).

The other reserve comprises adjustments in respect of the Group reorganisation which took place as part of the demerger. This reserve primarily represents
the difference between the capital structure of the Fiberweb entities that were owned directly by BBA prior to the demerger and the capital structure of
Fiberweb plc and its subsidiaries after completion of the demerger restructuring. This reserve is not distributable.

The capital reserve represents amounts accrued in respect of the cost of equity-settled share options in accordance with (FRS 2 “Share-based Payments”

(see note 24).

The hedging reserve represents unrealised gains or losses on hedge instruments.

The translation reserve represents the gains or losses on translation of the Group's overseas subsidiaries.
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27. Reconciliation of movements in total shareholders’ equity

2006 2005

£'m €m

Total recognised income for the period 0.9 233
Equity dividends paid to former parent company (5.5) (9.5)
Movermnent on reserve for share option costs 0.1 -
Other 5.0 -
Net movement in total shareholders’ equity for the period 0.5 19.8
Total shareholders’ equity at beginning of period 296.5 276.7
Total shareholders’ equity at end of period 197.0 296.5

Other movements during the period principally comprise the capitalisation of loans from the former parent company to Fibenveb subsidiaries in 2006.

28. Cash flow from operating activities

2006 2005
£'m £'m
Operating {loss)/profit from continuing operations {69.6) 348
Share of profit from associates {(0.6) (0.7)
(Loss)/profit from operations (70.2) 34.1
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 37.2 426
Amoirtisation of intangible assets 1.2 1.1
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (0.3) 0.2)
Increase in provisions 4.3 1.6
Additional pension scheme contributions (3.1) 27N
Share-based payments 0.1 -
Loss an disposal of CNC (see note 13) 1.6 -
Goodwill impairment (see note 11) 14.6 -
Nen-recurring impairment and asset write downs (see note 12} 69.1 115
Other non-cash items (0.6) 0.4
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital 53.9 88.4
Increase in working capital (3.1) (7.8)
Cash generaied by operations 50.8 806
Income taxes paid (6.8) (6.6)
Net cash from operating activities 44.0 74.0

29. Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings

The Group acquired the entire issued share capital of Blowitex Viiesstoffe Intemational GmbH (“Blowitex™) on 15t April 2006. The Directors have perforrmed an
exerdse to establish the provisional fair value of the assets and Yabilities of this acquisition. The goodwill arising on the acquisiion was £2.6 million (note 11).

Book and prowvisional
fair value to the Group

£m
Intangible assets 0.2
Property, plant and equipment 1.5
Inventories 0.7
Receivables 1.0
Payables (2.6)
Taxaton (0.2)
Nei borrowings (0.9)
Net assets 0.2
Goodwill 26
Cash consideration (including deferred consideration) 28
Deferred consideration (0.5)
Net cash consideration in the year 2.3

The fair values set out above are provisional and may be subject to amendment on finalisation of the fair value exercise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements cntnued

29. Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings continued
There were no acquisitions during the year ended 3 1st December 2005.

The acquisition of Blowitex contributed £1.0 million to the Group profit before tax, £0.2 million to net operating cash flows, paid £0.2 million in respect
of taxation, paid £0.1 million in respect of capital expenditure and utilised Enil million for other investing activities,

If the acquisition had been completed an 1st January 2006, total revenue for the year from acquisitions would have been £14.4 million and the loss
for the year would have been lower by £0.2 million.
30. Contingent liabilities

The Fiberweb business is party to legal proceedings and daims which arise in the normal course of business, including specific product liability and
environmental claims in Fiberweb North America. Any liabilities are likely to be mitigated by legal defences, insurance, reserves and third party indemnities.

The Directors do not currently anticipate that the autcome of the proceedings and daims set out above either individually, or in aggregate, will have a material
adverse effect upon Fiberweb's finandial position.

31. Related party transactions

Transactions between Fiberweb plc and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this

note. Details of transactions between Fiberweb and other related parties are detailed below.

Compensation of key management personne!
The remuneration of directors and ather members of key management personnel of the Graup is set out below in aggregate. Further information about
the remuneration of individual directors is provided in the audited part of the Directors” Remuneration Report on pages 41 to 46.

2006 2005
£m £m
Short-term benefits 2.9 1.8
Post-employment benefits 0.1 0.1
Termination benefits 0.4 06
Share-based payments - 0.8
3.4 3.3
Other related party transactions
2006 2005
£m £m
Dividends to BBA Group (see note 8) 5.5 9.5
Costs recharged to Group entities by BBA Group 0.6 0.5
Insurance prermiums recharged to Group entities by BBA Group 3.7 43
Net interest payable to BBA Group (see note &) {12.1) (13.9)
Net amounts owed by/(due to) BBA Group
— debt (see note 19) - (237.7)
— other payables (see note 16) - (14.9)
— tax indemnity (see note 15) 35 35
— cther (see note 15) 1.0 0.6

As part of the demerger transaction, £90.0 million of debt owed by Fiberweb to BBA was waived by BBA and £87.4 million of debt owed by Fiberweb
to BBA was capitalised. Further information with respect to these transactions is detailed in note 26.

Contributions made during the period to the BBA income and protection plan amounted to £0.2 million (2005: £0.3 million) — see note 22,

During the year, an entity in the Group rented office accommadation from a company controlled by Robert Rufli, a member of the management of that
entity until his retirement in Septernber 2006, The rentat agreement was entered into in the ordinary course of business and on an am's length basis.
Rental payments for the period amounted to £0.1 million (2005: £0.1 million).

On the 17th November 2006, the Fiberweb plc Group was listed on the London Stock Exchange. Fiberweb plc is the parent and controlling entity of
the Group. Prior to this date, the ultimate parent and controlling entity of the Group was BBA Aviation plc (formerly BBA Group ple).
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32. Subsidiary and associated undertakings

The following is a list of the principal subsidiary and associated undertakings of the Group as at 315t December 2006, each of which is wholly-owned unless

otherwise stated.

Name
Subsidiaries

Fiberweb Bidim Industria € Comedio de Nao-Tecidos Ltda

Fiberweb China Airlaid Company Limited
Fiberweb France SAS

Fiberweb Holdings France SAS
Fiberweb Holdings Deutschland GmbH
Fiberweb Berfin GmbH

Fiberweb Corovin GmbH

Fiberweb Linctec Developments GmbH
Terram Geotextitien GrmbH

Fiberweb Industrial Nonwovens GmbH
Fiberweb Joint Venture Holdings GrmbH
Fiberweb Blowitex GmbH

Fiberweb Asia Pacific Limited

Fiberweb Italia SpA

Fiberweb Korma SpA

Fiberweb Tecnofibra Srl

Tenotex SpA

Fiberweb de Mexico SA de Cv
Fiberweb Non Wovens Mexico SA de CV
Fiberweb Veratec SA de Cv

Fiberweb Tenotex SAU

Fiberweb Holdings SLU

Fiberweb Holdings AB

Fiberweb Industnal Hokiings Sweden AB
Fiberweb Sweden AB

Fiberweb Switzerland AG

Fiberweb Holdings Limited *

Fiberweb US Holdings Limited *

Terram Limited *

Fiberweb Simpsonwville Incorporated
Fiberweb Washougal Incorporated
Fiberweb Incorporated

Fiberweb Industrial Textiles Incorporated
Fiberweb USA Heldings Incorporated
Fiberweb China Holdings BV

Fiberweb Holdings Netherlands BV

Joint ventures and other investments

Coratech GmbH

Coroner Compaosites GmbH

Advanced Design Concepts CmbH
Saudi German Nonwovens Products Co.
Cordustex (Pty) Limited

* Shares owned directly by Fiberweb plc.

Former name

Bidim Industria e Comecio Ltda
BBA (China) Airlaid Company Limited

BBA France SAS

BBA Nonwovens Berlin GmbH
Corovin GmbH
Linotec Developments GmbH

BBA Industrial Nonwovens GmbH
BBA JV Holdings 2 GrmbH

Blowitex GmbH

BBA Nonwovens Asia Pacific Limited
BBA Fiberweb Halia SpA

Korma SpA

BBA Fiberweb Tecnofibra Sil

Veratec de Mexico SA de CV

BBA Non Wovens Mexico SA de CV
Setvicios Veratec SA de QV

BBA Fiberweb Tenctex SAU

BBA Fiberweb Holdings SLU

BBA Fiberweb Holdings AB

BBA Industrial Holdings Sweden AB
BBA Fiberweb Sweden AB

BBA Nonwovens Asia Pacific AG

BBA Nonwovens Simpsonville incorporated
BBA Nonwovens Washougal Incorporated
Reemay Incorporated

BBA Industrial Textiles Incorporated

BBA China Holdings BY
BBA Hoeldings Netherlands BY

% owned

251
50
50
15
10

Country of incorporation
and principal operation

Brazil
China
France
France
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
GCermany
Cermany
Cermany
Hong Kang
ftaly

italy

ftaly

italy
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Spain
Spain
Sweden
Sweden
Sweden
Switzerland
UK

UK

UK

USA

USA

USA

USA

Usa
Netherands
Netherlands

Cermany
Germany
Germany
Saudi Arabia
South Africa
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the members of Fiberweb plc

We have sudited the parent company financial statements of Fiberweb plc
for the year ended 31 December 2006 which comprise the balance sheet
and the related notes 1 to 12. These parent company financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

We have reported separately on the group finandal statements of Fibenweb
ple for the year ended 31 December 2006 and on the information in the
directors’ remuneration report that is described as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report, the directors’
remuneration report and the parent company financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in
the statement of directors’ responsibilities.

QOur responsibility is to audit the parent company financial statements and
the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requitements and Intemational Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company finandial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the parent company
financial statements have been propery prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985. We also report to you whether in our opinion the
Ditectors’ Report is consistent with the parent company finandal statements.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the company has not kept
proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law
regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the annual report as described
in the contents section and consider whether it is consistent with the
audited parent cormpany finandal statements. We consider the implications
for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
material inconsistencies with the parent company financial statements.
Cur responsibilities do not extend to any further information outside the
annual report,

80

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the parent company finandal statements. It also includes
an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the
directors in the preparation of the parent company finandial statements, and
of whether the accounting policies are apprapriate to the company's
circumnstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent
company finandal statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or other imegularity or error. In forming cur opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
parent company financial statements.

Opinion

In cur opinion:

*  the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice, of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December
2006;

e the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and

o the information given in the directors’ report is.consistent with the
parent company financial statements.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditars
London, England

26 February 2007




Company Balance Sheet

as at 31st December 2006

2006
Note £m
Fixed assets
Investments in subsidiaries 353.5
Property, plant and equipment 4 3.9
3574
Current assets .
Debtors 5 5.1
Cash at bank and in hand 0.5
5.6
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Trade and other creditors & (2.9)
Net current assets 2.7
Total assets less current liabilities 360.1
Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year
Bank loans 7 (180.2)
NET ASSETS 179.9
EQUITY
Calted-up share capital 9 6.1
Share premium account 10 84.5
Profit and loss account 11 89.3
12 179.9

The financial statements were approved by the Board of directors and authorised for issue on 26th February 2007. They were signed on its behalf by:

Simon Bowles
Director

As permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 the Company has elected not to present its own profit and loss account for the year. Fiberweb

plc reported a loss for its first financial peried ended 315t December 2006 of £0.7 million.

The Company audit fee is included within the Group audit fee in the cumrent year and cannot be separately identified.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this balance sheet.
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Notes to the \Compa_ny’ Balance Sheet

1. Basis of accounting

The finandal statements have been prepared using the historical cost conventtion and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and acoounting standards.
The principal accounting policies are set out below. They have all been applied consistently threughout the period.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRS1 “Cash Flow Statements” and has not produced a cash flow statement

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRS8 “Related Party Transactions” and has not reported transactions with fellow Group
undertakings.

Investments

Investments in subsidiary and associated underakings are stated at cost less provision for impairment, Given that Group Reconstruction Relief is available
under section 132 of the Companies Act 1985 (“the Act”), the Company has taken advantage of the related option under section 133 (1) of the Act to
record the cost of the investments in Temam and Fiberweb US Holdings Limited, at the nominal value of the shares issued in satisfaction of the acquisition.

Treasury

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction. Meonetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Any gain ar loss arising from
a change in exchange rates subsequent to the date of transaction is recognised in the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments are accounted for and presented under FRS26 (Revised) “Financial Instruments — Measurement” and FRS25 "Financial
Instrurments — Disclosure and Presentation”. Derivative finandial instruments utilised by the company comprise foreign exchange contracts, interest rate
swaps and commadity denvatives. All such instruments are used for hedging purposes to manage the risk profile of an underlying exposure of the Group
in line with the Group's risk management palicies. All derivative instruments are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. Recognition of gains or
losses on derivative instruments depends on whether the instrument is designated as a hedge and the type of exposure it is designed to hedge.

The effective portion of gains or losses on hedges is deferred in reserves until the impact from the hedged itemn is recognised in the income statement.
The ineffective portion of such gains and losses is recognised in the income statement immediately.

Changes in the fair value of the derivative finandial instruments that da not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the income staterment as they arise.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Company’s balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables do nat camy any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated imecoverable amounts.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arangements entered into. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Bank borrowings

interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue ¢osts. Finance charges, including premiums payable
on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for an an accrual basis te the profit and loss account using the effective interest methad
and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received net of direct issue costs.

Share-based payments

Fibetweb plc operates two share-based compensation plans which are detailed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 41 to 46 and in note 8 to
the Company Balance Sheet. The equity-settled share-based payments under these schemes are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest

No expense is recognised (and any previously recognised expense is reversed) for awards that do not ultimately vest, except where vesting is conditional
upon a measure linked to Fiberweb pic's share price ("a market condition”) or other market conditions. The likelinood of achieving the market condition
is taken into account in the fair value and, therefore, the award is treated as vesting imespective of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided
that any other performance condition is met.
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1. Basis of accounting continued

Share-based payments continued
When an award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

The cost of share-based compensation schemes is recognised as an expense within siaff costs in the income statement.
Tangible fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment is stated in the balance sheet at cost Depreciation is provided on the cost or valuation of property, plant and equipment
less estimated residual value and is calculated on a straight line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Leasehold improvements over the term of the lease
Office fixtures and equipment 3-5 years

Plant and equipment 10 years

Leases

Where assets are financed by lease agreements that give rights similar to ownership {finance leases), the assets are treated as if they had been purchased
and the leasing commitments are shown as obligations 10 the lessors. The capitalisation values of the assets are written off on a straight line basis over
the shonter of the periods of the leases or the useful lives of the assets concemned. The capital elements of future leases are recarded as liabilities, while
the interest elements are charged to the income statement over the period of the leases to produce a constant rate of charge on the balance of capital
payments outstanding,

For alt ather leases (operating leases), the rental payments are charged to the income staternent on a straight line basis over the lives of the leases.

Pension and post-retirement benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Taxation

The charge for 1asation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred due to timing differences butween the treatment of
certain items for taxation and accounting purposes. Deferred tax is provided in full on all liabilities. In accordance with FRS 19, deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent it is regarded that it is more likely than nat that they will be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities hzve not been discounted.

2. Dividends

In respect of the currens year, the directors propose that a final dividend of 3.95 pence per share will be paid to shaseholders an 29th May 2007. This
dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and in accordance with FRS 21 “Evenis after the Balance Sheet Date”
has not been recorded as a liability in these financial statements. The proposed dividend is payable to all shareholders on the egister of Members on
27th April 2007. The total estimated dividend payable is £4.8 million.

3. Investments

Investment in Loans to
subsidiaries subs-diaries Total
£'m £m £m
Cost
Additions in the period 3.2 - 32
Loans advanced in the period - 3537 3537
Exchange gains/(losses) - (3.4) (3.4)
As at 31st December 2006 3.2 350.3 353.5
Carrying value at 31st December 2006 3.2 350.3 353.3
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Notes to the Company Balance Sheet wnine

3. Investments continued

The following is a list of the principal subsidiary and assodated undertakings of the Group as at 3 1st December 2006, each of which is wholly-owned unless
otherwise stated. Subsidiaries marked + are owned directly by the company.

Name
Subsidiaries

Fiberweb Bidim Industria & Comecio de Nao-Tecidos Ltda

Fiberweb China Airlaid Company Limited
Fiberweb France SAS

Fiberweb Holdings France SAS
Fiberweb Holdings Deustschland GrmbH
Fiberweb Berlin GmbH

Fiberweb Corovin GmbH

Fiberweb Linotec Developments GmbH
Terram Geotextilien GmbH

Fiberweb Industrial Nonwovens GmbH
Fiberweb Joint Venture Holdings GmbH
Fiberweb Blowitex GmbH

Fiberweb Asia Pacific Limited

Fiberweb Italia SpA

Fiberweb Korma SpA

Fiberweb Tecnofibra 51

Tenotex SpA

Fiberweb de Mexico SA de OV
Fiberweb Non Wovens Mexico SA de OV
Fiberweb Veratec 5A de CV

Fiberweb Tenotex SAU

Fiberweb Holdings SLU

Fiberweb Holdings AB

Fiberweb Industrial Holdings Sweden AB
Fiberweb Sweden AB

Fiberweb Switzerland AG

Fiberweb Holdings Limited +

Fiberweb US Holdings Limited +
Terram Limited+

Fiberweb Simpsonville Incorporated
Fiberweb Washougal Incorporated
Fiberweb Incorporated

Fiberweb Industrial Textiles Incorporated
Fiberweb USA Holdings Incorporated
Fiberweb China Holdings BV

Fiberweb Holdings Netherdands BV

Joint ventures and other investments

Coratech GmbH

Caronor Composites GmbH

Advanced Design Concepts GmbH
Saudi German Nonwovens Products Co,
Cordustex (Pty) Limited

Former name

Bidim Industria e Comecio Ltda
BBA (China) Airaid Company Limited

BBA France SAS

BBA Nonwovens Berlin GmbH
Corovin GmbH
Linotec Developments GrmbH

BBA Industrial Nonwovens GmbH
BBA JV Holdings 2 GrmbH

Blowitex GmbH

BBA Nonwovens Asia Pacific Limited
BBA Fiberweb Italia SpA

Korma SpA

BBA Fiberweb Tecnofibra S

Veratec de Mexico SA de CV

BBA Non Wovens Mexico SA de CV
Servicios Veratec SA de CV

BBA Fiberweb Tenotex SAU

BBA Fiberweb Holdings SLU

BBA Fiberweb Holdings AB

BBA industrial Holdings Sweden AB
BBA Fiberweb Sweden AB

BBA Nonwovens Asia Padific AG

BBA Nonwovens Simpsenille Incorporated
BBA Nonwovens Washougal Incorporated
Reemay Incorporated

BBA Industrial Textiles Incorporated

BBA China Holdings BV
BBA Holdings Netherlands BV

% owned

25.1
50
30
15
10

Country of incorporation
and principal operation

Brazil
China
France
France
Germany
Germany
CGermany
Germany
Cermany
Germany
Germany
Germmany
Hong Kong
Italy

taly
ltaly

Italy

Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Spain

Spain
Sweden
Sweden
Sweden
Switzerland
UK

UK

UK

USA

USA

UsA

USA

UsA
Nethedands
Netherlands

Germany
Germany
Germany
Saudi

South Afnca




4. Property, plant and equipment )
Leasehold Fixtures & Plant &

improvements fittings machinery Total
£m £m £m Em
Cost
Additions in the period - 03 - 0.3
Transferred from former parent company 0.2 - 35 37
As at 31st December 2006 0.2 03 35 40
Depreciation
Charged in the period - - 0.1 0.1
As at 31st December 2006 - - 0.1 0.1
Net book value at 31st December 2006 0.2 03 3.4 39

Assets transferred from the former parent company were charged through the loan from the former parent

5. Debtors
2006
£'m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 0.5
Amounts owed by former parent company 1.0
Other debiars 0.1
Prepayments 2.7
VAT recoverable 0.8
5.1
6. Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
2006
£'m
Trade creditors 0.8
Accruals and deferred income 1.5
Other taxes and social security 0.6
29
7. Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year
2006
£m
Bank loans — repayable between two and five years 181.3
Less: unamertised prepaid facility fees (r.1)
180.2

Since demerger, the Group horows mainly under 2 $439.5 million multi currency, revolving credit facility (RCF) provided by a syndicate of several
intemationat banks, maturing in 204 1. Borowings under that facility are: in euro, US Dollars and Swedish Krona for maturities up to six months. All drawdowns
are on floating interest rates. The effective rates on borrowings are not materially different from their nominal interest rates.

The RCF is secured by way of a series of guarantees from overseas businesses in respect of the parent's liabilities. All other £ ank loans are unsecured,
although there are some cases where parent guarantees have been issued in respect of bank loans to overseas subsidiaries

At year end the group had available $84.0 miliion of undrawn cornmitted borrowing facilities.
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Notes to the Company Balance Sheet cntiued

8. Share-based payments

Up to the date of dernerger, centain directors and employees of Fiberweb were entitied to participate in the share option schemes of the former parent company.
A aedit of £0.8 million (2005: an expense of £1.6 million) was taken by BBA Group ple in respect of these schemes in accordance with IFRS 2,

Since demerger, Fiberweb has issued its own share-based payment compensation plans. The Company recognised a iotal expense, within staff costs, in
relation to share-based payments under equity settled schemes of £0.1 million (2005: nil).

The schemes in operation during the year are as follows.

Demerger Share Plan (“DSP”")
The DSP provides for the grant of free shares in the form of contingent shares. The award of shares under the DSP was made on 27th November 2006.

Shares in relation to the award will be released to participants at the end of an expected two year performance peniod, dependent on the extent to
which the performance conditions have been satisfied. Subject to good leaver provisions, awards are forfeited if the employee Ieaves before the end
of the vesting period.

Fifty per cent of the shares awarded under the grant are govemed by a Total Shareholder Retum (*TSR") market based performance condition. The remaining
fifty per cent are govemed by an Eamings per Share (“EPS™) performance condition.

DSP awards of 2,091,250 shares were granted during the year. The Company recognised a total expense in relation to DSP awards of £72,000 (2005:
nil). Awards outstanding at the end of the year were 2,091,250 (2005: nil). The weighted average fair value of the DSP awards during the period is
148.2 pence per share or £3.1 million total,

Long Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP7)
The LTIP provides for the grant of free shares in the form of contingent shares. The award of shares under the ITIP was rnade on 27th November 2006.

Shares in relation to the award will be released to participants at the end of an expected three year performance period, dependent on the extent to which the
performance conditions have been satisfied. Subject to good leaver provisions, awards are forfeited if the employee leaves before the end of the vesting period.

Fifty per cent of the shares awarded under the grant are govemed by a TSR market based performance condition. The remaining fifty per cent is governed
by an EPS performance condition.

TP awards of 1,143,938 were granted during the year. The Company recognised a total expense in relation to LTIP awards of £27,000 (2005: nil). Awards
outstanding at the end of the year were 1,143,938 (2005: nil). The weighted average fair value of the LTIP awards during the period is 150.9 pence per
share or £1.7 million in total.

Fair value assumptions

The fair value of shares awarded under the plans has been calculated using the market value of shares adjusted to take into account the TSR market based
performance condition where applicable, The caleulation has been performed using the Stochastic pricding model. The assumptions made in performing
the calculation for each award are listed below:

2006 DsSP np
Grant date 27th November 2006 27th November 2006
Number of participants 100 28
Performance period 2 years 3 years
Stochastic model assumptions: :

— Share price at grant date (pence) 188.75 188.75

~ Exercise price {pence) - -

- Volatility 28.0% 28.0%

- Expected dividend yield 2.50% 2.50
Fair value of shares:

- TSR element (pence} 107.59 113.06

— EPS element (pence) 188.75 188.75

Expected volatility for the grants is based on the historical volatility taking into account the expected vesting term for each grant. Awards of shares with no
exercise price are not affected by the risk free rate of interest. in calculating the income staternent charge in relation to the EPS element of the plans, an
expected vesting percentage of 30% has been applied to the fair values. This vesting percentage has been calculated after taking into account expected
staff retention rates and the probabilities attached to attainment of the performance condition.

The total charge for the year relating to employee share-based payment plans was £0.1 million (2005 nil), all of which related to equity-settled share-
based payment transactions. After deferred tax, the total charge to the income stateent was £45,000 (2005: nil).
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9. Called-up share capital

2006

£'m

Authorised: 200 million ordinary shares of 5p each 10.0

lesued and fully paid erdinary shares of 5p 6.1
Number of shares in issue

Beginning and end of year 122,440,375

Fiberweb plc was incorporated on 22nd January 2006.

Fiberweb plc issued two £1 shares to former parent company BBA pic {(*BBA") on 3rd April 2006. The £1 shares were converted to ordinary 5p shares on
7th Septernber 2006 and a further 100 shares were issued at par to BBA, bringing their total holding to 140 shares. 5,588,944 shares were issued at £2.00
on 7th September 2006 in exchange for shares in Temam Limited. 57,778,925 shares were issued at £1.48 in exchange for shares in Fibenweb's US operations
on 15th November 2006. A further 59,072,366 shares were issued on demerger on 16th November 2006 at £1.48 in relation to the debt converted by
the former parent company.

Given that Group Reconstruction Relief is available under section 132 of the Companies Act 1985 ("the Adt™), the Company has taken edvantage of the related
option under section 133 (1) of the Act to record the cost of the invesiments in Terram and Fiberweb US Holdings Limited, at the nomrinal value of the shares
issued in satisfaction of the acquisition.

10. Share premium account

2006
£m
Premium arising on issue of equity shares 84.5
As at 31st December 2006 84.5
11. Profit and loss account
2006
£m
Capital contribution from former parent company 90.0
Loss for the period {0.7)
As at 31st December 2006 89.3
12. Reconciliation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds
2006
£m
Net loss for the period {0.7)
Capital contribution from former parent company 90.0
lssue of share capital 90.6
As at 31st December 2006 179.9

Equity comprises share capital, share premiurn and retained earnings.
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Shareholder Information

Analysis of Shareholdings

Number of Number % of share
shareholders % of total of shares capital
Size of holding
Ordinary shareholdings at 31 December 2006
1 - 1,000 3,883 79.50 1,186,802 Q.97
1,001 — 5,000 605 12.39 1,183,087 0.97
5,001 - 10,000 79 1.62 524,338 0.43
10,001 - 50,000 154 3.15 3,541,864 2.89
50,001 — 100,000 32 .66 2,233,823 1.82
100,001 upwards 131 268 113,770,461 92.92
4,884 10000 122,440,375 100.00
Holders
Individuals 3,629 74.30 7.101,094 5.80
Insurance Companies 1 0.02 875 0.00
Pension funds 18 037 73,289 0.06
Nominee and :
other Companies 1,212 2482 109315812 £89.28
Other 24 0.4 5,949,305 4.86
4,884 100.00 122,440,375 100.00

Dividend Re-investment Plan

A scheme which aflows you to use your dividend to buy further
shares in Fiberweb plc.

Capita IRG Trustees Limited are offering shareholders in Fiberweb plc the
opportunity to participate in a Dividend Re-investment Plan (DRIF).

What is a Dividend Re-investrnent Plan (DRIP)

This is a plan that allows private shareholders to reinvest cash dividends
from their investments cheaply and easily back into Fiberweb plc shares
and so obtain the benefits of compounding.

How is the plan managed?
The plan is managed by admirdstrator, Capita IRG Trustees Limited (CIRGT).
They are authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority.

On the dividend date, shareholders who join the plan are still paid the
cash dividend, but CIRGT then uses the cash to buy shares in Fiberweb on
behalf of the shareholder. Please note that CIRGT may not offer a DRIP for
every dividend paid. If @ DRIP is not made available, the shareholder will
receive the cash dividend.

What are the benefits to shareholders?

& You can increase your shareholding over the long term at lower dealing
commission rates that are generally available through retail brokers;

e Compounding effect of increasing shareholding and dividend payments;

¢ Offers the protection of a regulated service;

* An alternative for overseas shareholders in qualifying countries who
may have difficulty cashing sterling dividend cheques due to high
bank charges.

What price will the shares be bought at?

CIRGT instructs its broker to buy shares on the dividend payment at the
current market price. Deals are aggregated for all Shareholders. Shareholders
will not be aware of the share price when they sign up for the DRIP.
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What happens to any cash dividend left over?
Any cash dividend left over which is insufficient to purchase a whole share
will be carried forward and held, without interest, in a Client Money bank
account.

How much does the Plan cost?

The DRIP commission charged to the Shareholders is one per cent of the
purchase price of the shares, with a minimum charge of £2.50. Full details
of all costs wili be sent to you by CIRGT.

How do Shareholders apply?

Enclosed with this annual report is a reply paid post card which you should
complete and return to Capita Registrars to enable them to send you
further information together with a Form of Election. Alternatively you can
contact the Registrars by telephone on 0870 162 3181 {if calling from
overseas +44 (0) 208 639 3402) or e mail shares@capitaregisrars.com
to request documentation. Please note that to participate in the Plan in
respect of the 2006 final dividend payable on 29 May 2007, you must
return your Form of Election to Capita Registrars by 27 April 2007. Forms
of Election received after this date will be registered, but will not take
effect untit the next dividend payable.

Share Dealing Services

A quick and easy share dealing senvice is available to either buy or sell
Fiberweb plc shares. An ondine and telephone dealing fadility is available
providing shareholders with an easy to access and simple 1o use service.

For further information on this service, or to buy and sell shares,
please contact www.capitadeal.com (on-line dealing) or 0870 458 4577
{(telephone dealing).

Key Dates

Financial Calendar

Dividend and interest payments:;

Final 2006 29 May 2007
Interim 2007 November 2007

Announcement of Group Results
Half year results August 2007

Share price information
The price of the Company's shares is available from the Investaor Relations
section of the website at www.fiberweb.com and also pubiished in the
Financial Times newspaper.

Registered office
1 Victoria Villas, Richmond on Thames, London TW9 2GW.

Company number: 05683352

Company Registrar
Capita Registrars, Northern House, Woodsome Park, Fenay Bridge,
Huddersfield HD8 OLA.

Telephone: 0870 162 3131
Email: shareholderservices@capitaregistrars.com
Web site: www.capitaregisrars.com

Please contact the registrars directly if you wish to advise a change of name,
address, or dividend mandate. Alternatively, you can view up to date
information and manage your shareholding through our Registrars’ Share
Portal where you will be able to access and maintain your holding at your
own convenience. You will require your unique investor code, which can be
found on your share certificate or dividend tax voucher. The URL for the
portal is www.capitashareportal com, .
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FIBERWEB PLC

Announcements made via a Regulatory Information Service/U.S. Securities and

Exchange Commission

28 June 2007 Notification of Major Interest
22 June 2007 Notification of Major Interest
14 June 2007 Notification of Major Interest
12 June 2007 Notification of Major Interest
12 June 2007 Notification of Major Interest
8 June 2007 Directors Sharehclding

8 June 2007 Notification of Major Interests
7 June 2007 Director/PDMR Interests

5 June 2007 Directors Sharehclding

1 June 2007 Notification of Major Interests
25 May 2007 Disposal

23 May 2007 Notification of Major Interests
17 May 2007 Director/PDMR Interests

2 May 2007 AGM Statement

1 May 2007 Notification of Major Interests

Details of all regulatory announcements for Fiberweb plc can be found on the London Stock
Exchange website at www.Jondonstockexchange.com

and on the Fiberweb plc website at www.fiberweb.com

1. Documents filed with Companies House/U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission

Date Document Type Description

16.5.07 Report and Accounts for Fiberweb plc

16.5.07 Reslolution DISAPP PRE-EMPT RIGHTS 02/05/07

AUTHALLOT OF SECURITY 02/05/07

211631/10260 Document L1 ARYB 2B0607:1218




Date Document Type Description

Copies of documents filed at Companies House can be obtained from Companies House,
Crown Way, Cardiff CF14 3UZ or through Companies House Direct at

www.direct.companieshouse.gov. uk

Copies of all the above documents may be obtained from the Company Secrefary at the
Company's Registered Office;

Fiberweb plc

1 Victoria Villas
Richmond on Thames
London TW9 2GW

21163110260 Document L1 ARYB 280607:1218
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Go to market news section
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Company Fiberweb Plc o - B 2
TiDM FWEB T T
Headline Holding(s) in Company merEBOR Ay E’;,‘i_}_"_“fj; e
Released 10:32 28-Jun-07 SRLE
Number 20222

RNS Number:20222
Fiberweb Plc
28 June 2007

Financial Services Authority

TR~-1 i : NOTIFICATION OF MAJOR INTERESTS IN SHARES

1. Identity of the issuer or the underlying issuer of existing shares to

which voting rights are attached : Fiberweb Plc ii

2. Reascn for the notification (please tick the appropriate box or boxes):

An acquisition or disposal of voting rights

yes

An acquisition or disposal of financial instruments which may result in the

acquisition of shares already issued to which voting rights are attached

An event changing the breakdown of voting rights
Other {(please specify):

Full name of person(s) subject to the notification Barclays PLC
obligation : 3. iii

4, Full name of shareholder(s) (if different from 3.}
Barclays Capital Inc

Barclays Capital Securities Ltd

Barclays Glokbal Investors Ltd

Barclays Life Assurance Co Ltd

Barclays Stockbrokers Ltd

Gerrard Investment Management Ltd

5. Date of the transaction and date on which the

threshold is crossed or reached : 26 June 2007
6. Date on which issuer notified: 27 June 2007

7. Threshold{s) that is/are crossed or reached: 5% to 4%

8. Notified details:

A. Voting Rights attached to shares

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i...

28/06/2007




Class/type of shares Situation triggering
the transaction
Shares Voting Rights

GBOOB1FMHO67 6,210,594 6,210,594

Resulting situation after the triggering transaction

No of shares No of Voting Rights % of Voting Rights
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
5,918,027 G 5,918,027 0 4.83%

B. Financial Instruments
Total A + B

Number of Voting rights $ Voting rights

5,918,027 4.83
9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/or the

financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable

Barclays Capital Inc

Barclays Capital Securities Ltd

Barclays Global Investors

Ltd Barclays Life Assurance Co Ltd

Barclays Stockbrokers Ltd

Gerrard Investment Management Ltd

Proxy Voting:

10 Name of the proxy holder:

11 Number of voting rights proxy holder will cease to hold:

12 Date on which proxy holder will cease to hold wvoting
rights:

13.Additional Information
14. Contact name: Geoff Smith
15. Contact telephone number 02C 7116 2313
This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 28/06/2007




London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed sclely to the persons
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countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.
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Number 8433Y

RNS Number:8433Y
Fiberweb Plc
22 June 2007

TR-1: notification of major interests in shares

1. Identity of the issuer or Fiberweb Plc
the underlying issuer of

existing shares to which voting

rights are attached:

2. Reason for notification (yes/no)

An acquisition or disposal of voting rights Yes

An acquisition or disposal of financial instruments which may result

in the acquisition of shares already issued to which voting rights a:re
attached

An event changing the breakdown of voting rights

Other (please specify):

3. Full name of person({(s) Legal & General Group Plc (L&G)
subject to the notification
obligation:

4. Full name of shareholder(s) Legal & General Assurance {Pensions Management) L
{if different from 3.):

5. Date of the transaction (and 20/06/07
date on which the threshold is
crossed or reached if

different}:

6. Date on which issuer 21/06/07
notified:

7. Thresheld(s) that is/are From 4% - 3% (L&G)

crossed or reached:

8. Notified details:

A: Voting rights attached to shares

Class/ Situation previous to the Resulting situation after the triggering
type of Triggering transaction transaction

shares

if
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possible

using Number of Number of Number of Number of voting % of voting
the ISIN Shares Voting shares rights rights
CODE Rights

Direct Direct Indirect Direct 1Ind
Ord 0.05 4,983,781 4,983,781 4,716,283 4m716,283 3.85

B: Financial Instruments
Resulting situation after the triggering transaction

Type of Expiration Exercise/ Number of voting rights that may % of
financial date Conversion be acquired if the instrument is voting
instrument Period/ Date exercised/ converted. rights
Total (A+B)
Number of voting rights % of voting rights

4,716,283 3.85

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/or the fi:
instruments are effectively held, if applicable:

Legal & General Group Plec (Direct and Indirect) (Group}

Legal & General Investment Management {Holdings) Limited

{LGIMH) (Direct and Indirect)

Legal & General Investment Management Limited (Indirect)

{LGIM)

Legal & General Group Plc (Direct) {(L&G) (4,716,283- 3.85% = LGAS, LGPL &
Legal & General Investment Management Legal & General Insurance Holding
{Holdings) Limited (Direct) (LGIMHD) (Direct) (LGIH)

{4,142,634- 3.38 % = PMC)
Legal & General Assurance (Pensions Management) Legal & General Assurance Society
Limited (PMC) (4,142,634~ 3.38 % = PMC) (LGAS & LGPL)
Legal & General Pensions Limited
(LGPL)

Proxy Voting:

10. Name cof the proxy holder: N/A
11. Number of voting rights proxy holder will cease to hold: N/B
12. Date on which proxy holder will cease to hold voting rights: N/A

13. Additional Notification using the total voting rights figure of 122,440,375
information:

14, Ceontact Helen Lewis (LGIM)
name:

15. Contact

telephone
number: 020 7528 6742
This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange
END
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Headline Holding(s) in Company

Released 09:12 14-Jun-07

Number 3412Y

RNS Number:3412Y
Fiberweb Plc
14 June 2007

TR-1: notification of major interests in shares
1. Identity of the issuer or the underlying FIBERWEB PLC
issuer of existing shares to which voting rights

are attached:

2. Reason for the notification {(please tick the appropriate box or
boxes)

An acquisition or disposal of voting rights X

An acquisition or disposal of financial instruments which may result in
the acquisition of shares already issued to which voting rights are
attached

An event changing the breakdown of voting rights

Other {please specify):

3. Full name of person(s) subject to the The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
notification obligation:

4, Full name of shareholder(s) (if different Goldman, Sachs & Co.,
from 3.):
Goldman Sachs International

5. Date of the transaction {and date on which 11 JUNE 2007
the threshold is crossed or reached if

different):

6. Date on which issuer notified: 13 JUNE 2007
7. Threshold{s) that is/are crossed or reached: 12%

8. Notified details:

A: Voting rights attached to shares
Class/type Situation previcus to Resulting situation after the triggering

of shares the Triggering transaction
transaction

if possible

using the Number of Number Number Number of voting rights ix % of voting

ISIN CODE Shares of of rights
Voting shares
Rights
viii Direct Direct x Indirect xi Direct in
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GBOOB1FMHO67 14,646,239 11.96% 12,450,234 2,300,207 10.17%

B: Financial Instruments
Resulting situation after the triggering transaction xii

Type of Expiraticon Exercise/ Number of voting rights that may % of
financial date xiii Conversion be acquired if the instrument is voting
instrument Period/ Date exercised/ converted. rights
Xiv
Total {(A+B)
Number of voting rights % of voting rights
14,750,441 12.05%

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/cr the
financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable xv:

The interest in 2,214,342 shares arose from a beneficial interest held by
Goldman, Sachs & Co. ("GS&Co."), a direct subsidiary of G5 Inc. These shares
are, or will be, registered in the name of Goldman Sachs Securities (Nominees),
Limited ("GSSN"}.T

The interest in 2,300,207 shares arose from an interest held by Goldman, Sachs &
Co., a wholly-owned direct subsidiary of GS Inc, acting as custodian for its
customers. These shares are, or will be, registered in the name of Goldman Sachs
Securities (Nominees), Limited.

The interest in 10,235,892 shares arose from a beneficial interest held by
Goldman Sachs International, a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of G$ Inc. These

shares are, or will be, registered at CREST in account CREPTEMP.

Proxy Voting:

10. Name of the proxy holder: N/A
11. Number of voting rights proxy holder will cease to hold: N/A
12. Date on which proxy holder will cease to hold voting rights: N/A
13. Additicnal information: General email contact:

shareholderdisclosuresfgs.com
14. Contact name: Joanne Wall / Sean Rogers

15. Contact telephone number: 44(20)7051-1704 / 44(20)7552-9205

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
rasponsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the parsons
and countries specified tharein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or outside the specified
countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.
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RNS Number:2371Y
Fiberweb Plc
12 June 2007

TR-1: NOTIFICATION OF MAJOR INTERESTS IN SHARES

1. Identity of the issuer or the underlying FIBERWEB PLC
issuer of existing shares to which voting rights
are attached:

2. Reason for the notification (please tick the appropriate box or
boxes)

An acquisition or disposal of voting rights X

An acquisition or disposal of financial instruments which may result in
the acquisition of shares already issued to which voting rights are

An event changing the breakdown of woting rights

Other (please specify):

3. Full name of person(s) subject to the The Goldman Sachs Group,
notification obligation:

4. Full name of shareholder{s) (if different Goldman, Sachs & Co.,
from 3.}):

o &

Inc.

Goldman Sachs International

5. Date of the transaction {and date on which 08 JUNE 2007
the threshold is crossed or reached if

different):

6. Date con which issuer notified: 12 JUNE 2007
7. Threshold(s) that is/are crossed or reached: 12%

8. Notified details:

A: Voting rights attached to shares

Class/type Situation previcus to Resulting situation after the triggering
of shares the Triggering transaction
transaction

if possible

using the Number of Number Number Number of voting rights ix % of voting

ISIN CODE Shares of of rights
Voting shares
Rights
viii Direct Direct x Indirect xi Direct In
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GBOOB1FMHO67 14,922,670 12.19% 12,346,032 2,300,207 10.08%

B: Financial Instruments

Resulting situation after the triggering transaction xii

Type of Expiration Exercise/ Number of voting rights that may % of

financial date xiii ’‘Conversion be acquired if the instrument is voting

instrument Period/ Date exercised/ converted. rights
xiv

Total (A+B)

Number of voting rights % of voting rights

14,646,239 11.96%

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/or the
financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable xv:

The interest in 2,214,342 shares arose from a beneficial interest held by
Goldman, Sachs & Co. {"GS5&Co."), a direct subsidiary of G5 Inc. These shares
are, or will be, registered in the name of Goldman Sachs Securities {Nominees),
Limited ("GSSN").

The interest in 2,300,207 shares arose from an interest held by Goldman, Sachs &
Co., a wholly-owned direct subsidiary of GS Inc, acting as custodian for its
customers. These shares are, or will be, registered in the name of Goldman Sachs
Securities (Nominees), Limited.

The interest in 10,131,690 shares arose from a beneficial interest held by

Goldman Sachs Internaticnal, a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of G5 Inc. These
shares are, or will be, registered at CREST in account CREPTEMP.

Proxy Voting:

10. Name of the proxy holder: N/A

11. Number of voting rights proxy holder will cease to hold: N/A

12. Date on which proxy holder will cease to hold voting rights: N/A

13. Additional information: General email contact:
sharehclderdisclosures@gs.com

14. Contact name: Joanne Wall / Sean Rogers

15. Contact telephone number: 44(20)7051-1704 / 44{20)7552-9205

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons
and countries specified therein should not be relied upen other than by such persons and/or outside the specified
countries. Terrms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

©2007 London Stock Exchange ple. All rights reserved
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Number 1969Y

RNS Number:1969Y
Fiberweb Plc
12 June 2007

Schroder Plc

31 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7QA
Telephone 020 7658 6000 Fax 020 7658 6965
wwiW.schroders.com

TR-1: Notifications of Major Interests in Shares

1. Identity of the issuer or the underlying issuer Fiberweb Pl:c
of existing shares to which voting rights are
attached:

2. Reason for notification (yes/no)

An acquisition or disposal of voting rights yes

An acquisition or disposal of financial instruments which may result in
the acquisition of shares already issued to which voting rights are
attached

Other (please specify}:

3. Full name of person(s) subject to Schroders plc
notification obligation:

4., Full name of shareholder{s) (if
different from 3):

5. Date of transaction (and date on which 08/06/07
the threshold is crossed or reached if

different):

6. Date on which issuer notified: 11/06/07
7. Threshold(s) that is/are crossed or 13% - 12%
reached:

B: Notified Details

A: Voting rights attached to share

Class/type of Situation previous to the Resulting situation after the triggeri

shares triggering transaction transaction
If possible
use ISIN code Number of Number of Number Number of voting Percentage
shares voting rights of rights voting rig
shares Direct Indirect Direct Ind
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Crdinary 14,713,087 14,713,087 N/& N/A 15,913,121 N/A 12
GBOOB1FMHO67

B: Financial Instruments
Resulting situation after the triggering transaction

Type of Expiration Exercise/ No. of voting rights that may Percentage
financial date conversion be acquired (if the instrument of voting
instrument period/date exercised/converted) rights

Total {(A+B)
Number of voting rights Percentage of voting rights
15,913,121 12.997%

9. Chain ©f controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and /or the
financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable:

Schroder Investment Management Limited 15,755,318 12.87%

Schroder &Co Limited 121,578 0.10%

Schroders ({CI) Limited 36,225 0.03%

Proxy Voting:

10. Name of proxy holder:

11. Number of voting rights proxy holder will cease to hold:

12. Date on which proxy holder will cease to hold voting rights:

13. Additional The shares referred to in section 9 are held in portfolios

information: managed by those firms on a discretionary basis for clients under
investment management agreements.

14 Contact name: Andrea Rowe

15. Contact telephone name: 020 7658 2521

Note: Annex should only be submitted to the FSA not the issuer

Annex: Notification of major interests in shares

A: Identity of the persons or legal entity subject to the notification
obligation

Full name Schroder Plc
(including legal form of legal entities)
Contact address 31 Gresham Street
(registered office for legal entities) London

ECZV 70A
Phone number & email 020 7658 2521
Other useful information Andrea Rowe

{at least legal representative for legal persons)
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B: Identity of the notifier, if applicable

Full name

Contact address

Phone number & email

Other useful information

(e.g. functional relationship with the person or legal entity subject to the
notification obligation)

C: Additional information

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

London Stack Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Websiite users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons
and countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or outside {he specified
countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

©2007 Lendon Stock Exchange ple. All rights reserved
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Number 0575Y

RNS Number:0575Y
Fiberweb Plc
08 June 2007

8 June 2007

FIBERWEB PLC {the "Company")
DIRECTCR'S SHAREHOLDINGS
The Company has today received notification that Daniel Dayan,
a director of the Company, acquired 15,000 ordinary Sp shares of the Company
at £1.5775 per share on 8 June 2007.

The registered shareholder is The Willow Bend Pension Scheme.

Mr Dayan's total beneficial holding following this notification
is 93,961 ordinary shares.

This notification is made pursuant to Disclosure and Transparency
Rule 3.1.4 R.

Person Responsible for making this notification:

Lucille Declor

Company Secretary
Telephone number: 0208 439 BS590

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

London Stock Exchange pic is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
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responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed sclely to the persons
and countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or outside the specified
countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

©2007 London Stock Exchange plc. All rights reserved
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Number 0337Y

RNS Number:0337Y
Fiberweb Plc
08 June 2007

TR-1: NOTIEFICATION OF MAJOR INTERESTS IN SHARES
1. Identity of the issuer or the underlying

issuer of existing shares to which voting rights
are attached: FIBERWEB PLC

2. Reason for the notification (please tick the appropriate box or
boxes)

An acquisition or disposal of voting rights X

An acquisition or disposal of financial instruments which may result in
the acquisition of shares already issued to which voting rights are
attached

An event changing the breakdown of voting rights

Other (please specify):

3. Full name of person(s) subject to the

notification okligation: The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
4. Full name of shareholder({s) (if different Goldman, Sachs & Cec.
from 3.):

Goldman Sachs International

5. Date of the transaction (and date on which 0% JUNE 2007
the threshold is crossed or reached if

different):

6. Date on which issuer notified: 07 JUNE 2007

7. Thresheold(s) that is/are crossed or reached: 12%
8. Notified details:

A: Voting rights attached to shares
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Class/type Situation previous Resulting situation after the triggering

of shares to the Triggering transaction
if possible transaction
using the
ISIN CODE Number of Number Number Number of voting rights ix % of voting
Shares of of rights
Voting shares
Rights
viii Direct Direct x Indirect =i Direct Indirect
GBOOB1FMHO67 14,607,790 11.93% 12,632,463 2,290,207 10.32% 1.87%

B: Financial Instruments
Resulting situation after the triggering transaction xii

Type of Expiration Exercise/ Number of voting rights that may % of

financial date xiii Conversion be acquired if the instrument is voting

ingtrument Period/ Date exercised/ converted. rights
xiv

Total {A+B)

Number of voting rights % of voting rights

14,922,670 12.19%

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/or the
financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable xv:

The interest in 2,214,342 shares arose from a beneficial interest held by
Goldman, Sachs & Co. ("GS&Co."}, a direct subsidiary of GS Inc. These shares
are, or will be, registered in the name of Goldman Sachs Securities (Nominees),
Limited ("GSSN").

The interest in 2,290,207 shares arose from an interest held by Goldman, Sachs &
Co., a wholly-owned direct subsidiary of GS Inc, acting as custodian for its
customers. These shares are, or will be, registered in the name of Goldman Sachs
Securities (Nominees), Limited.

The interest in 10,418,121 shares arose from a beneficial interest held by
Goldman Sachs International, a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of GS Inc.

These shares are, or will be, registered at CREST in account CREPTEMP.

Proxy Voting:

10. Name of the proxy holder: N/A

11. Number of voting rights proxy holder will cease to hold: N/A

12. Date on which proxy holder will cease to hold voting rights: N/A

13. Additional information: General email contact:
shareholderdisclosuresfgs.com

14. Contact name: Joanne Wall / Sean Rogers

15. Contact telephone number: 44(20)7051-1704 / 44(20)7552-9205
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RNS Number:7956X
Fiberweb Plc
05 June 2007

5 June 2007
FIBERWEB PLC (the "Company")

DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS

The Company has today received notification that Brian Taylorson,

a director of the Company, acquired 6,000 ordinary 5p shares of the Company at
£1.665 per share on 5 June 2007.

Mr Taylorson's total beneficial holding following this notification is
6,000 ordinary shares.

This notification is made pursuant to Disclosure and Transparency Rule 3.1.4 R.

Person Responsible for making this notification:

Lucille Dolor
Company Secretary
Telephone number: 0208 439 8590

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any naews item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons
and countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons andfor outside the specified
countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.
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RNS Number:2862X
Fiberweb Plc
25 May 2007

25 May 2007

FIBERWEB plc
('Fiberweb' or the 'Group')

Fiberweb completes sale of Hygiene Wipes business for
Euro 65 million (£44.2 million)

Fiberweb plc announces it has completed as planned the sale of its hygiene wipes
business to Ahlstrom, the Finnish glebal manufacturer of speciality papers and
nonwoven products for a total cash consideration of Euro 65 million (£44.2
million). The divestment was announced in March 2007 and includes op=rations in
US, Spain and Italy manufacturing wipes for baby care, personal care and
household applications. The business had 2006 revenues of around £83 million per
annum and employed approximately 400 people.

- Ends -
Contacts
Fiberweb plc 0208 439 8594
Daniel Dayan, Chief Executive
Simon Bowles, Chief Financial Officer
Weber Shandwick Financial 0207 087 Q700

Tan Bailey / Nick Dibden / James White
Notes to Editors:

Fiberweb plc is one of the largest groups by sales operating glokally in the
nonwovens industry. Fiberweb focuses on the preduction of nonwoven materials for
use in hygiene and industrial speciality products and it has been able to
establish and develop strong positions in several product categories.

In its hygiene division, Fiberweb produces a variety of nonwoven materials for
use in diapers, feminine hygiene protection, adult incontinence and other
consumer care products.

Within its industrial specialities division, Fiberweb has strong pos:tions in
selected niche markets including construction (for example, housewrap,
roof-lining and gectextiles), filtration media for water and air applications
and fabric softener sheets.
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This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange
END

London Stock Exchange ple is not responsible for and does not chack content on this Website. Website users are
rasponsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons
and countries specified therein should not be relied upen other than by such persons and/or outside the specified
countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

©2007 London Stock Exchange plc. All rights reserved
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Number 1176X

RNS Number:1176X
Fiberweb Plc
23 May 2007

TR-1(i): NOTIFICATION OF MAJOR INTERESTS IN SHARES

1. Identity of the issuer or the underlying issuer of existing shares to which
voting rights are attached (ii):

Fiberweb plc

2. Reason for the notification (please tick the appropriate box cor boxes):

An acquisition or dispeosal of voting rights: ( x }

An acquisition or disposal of financial instruments which may result in the
acquisition of shares already issued to which voting rights are attached: ( )

An event changing the breakdown of voting rights: ( )

Other (please specify) : ( }

3. Full name of person(s) subject to the notification obligation (iii):

Barclays PLC

4. Full name of sharehclder(s) {(if different from 3.} (iv):
Barclays Capital Inc

Barclays Capital Securities Ltd

Barclays Global Investors Ltd

Barclays Life Assurance Co Ltd

Barclays Stockbrokers Ltd

Gerrard Ltd

5. Date of the transaction (and date on which the threshold is crossed or
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reached if different) (v):

21 May 07

6. Date on which issuer notified:

22 May 07

7. Threshold{s) that is/are crossed or reached:

6% to 5%

8. Notified details:

A: Voting rights attached to shares

Class/type of shares if possible using Situation previous to the Triggering
the ISIN CODE transaction (vi)
Number of Number of voting Rights
shares (viii}
GBOOB1FMHOG67 7,222,417 1,222,417

Resulting situation after the triggering transaction (vii)

Class/type of shares if Number of Number of voting $ of voting
possible using the ISIN CODE shares rights (ix) rights
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
{x) (x1)
GBOOB1FMHO67 7,309,557 0 7,309,557 0.00 5.97

B: Financial Instruments

Resulting situation after the triggering transaction (xii)

Type of Expiration Exercise/ Number of voting rights that may % of
financial Date Conversion be acquired if the instrument is voting
instrument (xiii) Period/ Date exercised/ converted. rights
(xiv)
Total (A+B)
Number of voting rights % of voting rights
7,309,557 5.97

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/cr the
financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable (xv):
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Barclays Capital Inc

Barclays Capital Securities Ltd
Barclays Global Investors Ltd
Barclays Life Assurance Co Ltd
Barclays Stockbrokers Ltd

Gerrard Ltd
Proxy Voting:

10. Name of the proxy holder:

14. Contact name:

Geoff Smith

15. Contact telephcne number:

020 7116 28913

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END

London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons
and countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or outside the specified
countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

©2007 Londen Stock Exchange ple. All rights reserved
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17 May 2007

FIBERWEB PLC (the "Company")

DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS

The Company hereby notifies that it acquired and transferred 13,008 ordinary 5p
shares of the Company to Malcolm Coster on 17 May 2007, the sixth-month anniversa
of his date of appointment. The shares were acquired at the price of £1.81 per
share.

The acquisition and transfer of ordinary shares is in accordance witn the terms
of Mr Coster's appointment under which he acquired 132,285 ordinary shares of the
Company (the "Investment Shares") on 11 December 2006 and the Company agreed to
transfer to him one-sixth of the Investment Shares, at each six-monta anniversary
of his date of appointment until November 2009.

The number of shares transferred to Mr Coster on 17 May 2007 is equal to one-sixt
of the Investment Shares less the number of shares equivalent to the tax liabilit

due.

Mr Coster's total beneficial holding in the ordinary 5p shares of the Company
following this notification is 145,293.

This notification is made pursuant to the Disclosure and Transparency Rule
3.1.4(R){1}ta and 3.1.4(R) (1)b.

Person Responsible for making this notification:

Lucille Dolor

Company Secretary
Telephone number: 0208 439 8590

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Steock Exchange

END

London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Wabsite users are
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Fiberweb plc

Fiberweb plc announces that all resolutions proposed at its Annual General Meeting held earlier
today were duly passed on a show of hands including the resolution authorising the Company to
make market purchases of up to 10 per cent of its issued ordinary share capital.

Two copies of the resolutions relating to the special business of the Meeting have been submitted to
the UK Listing Authority and will shortly be available for inspection in the UK Listing authority’s

Document Viewing Facility, which is situated at:

The Financial Services Authority
25 The North Colonade
Canary Wharf

Lond

on

E14 SHS
Tel: 020 7676 1000

Details of the proxy voting instructions, lodged prior to the meeting are set out below:

RESOLUTION FOR % | DISCRETION % AGAINST % | WITHH
To receive and adopt the 2006

1 | Report and Accounts 80,988,838 | 99.88 35,314 | 0.04 60,292 | 0.07 32,
To approve the 2006

2 | Remuneration Report 74,211,770 | 91.49 34,596 | 0.04 | 6,864,856 | 8.46 5,
To declare the final dividend for

3| 2006 81,033,734 | 99.90 35,614 | 0.04 46 7493 | 0.08
To elect Mr Bowles as a director

4 | of the Company 79,340,729 | 89.72 38,702 | 0.05 183,418 | 0.23 | 1,553,
To elect Mr Coster as a director

5 | of the Company 81,074,055 | 99.95 38,375 | 0.05 3,112 1 0.00 1,
To elect Mr Dayan as a director

6 [ of the Company 79,163,775 | 99.48 38,805 | 0.05 373,448 | 047 | 1,550,
To elect Mr Hickman as a

7 | director of the Company 81,062,410 | 99.93 39,671 | 0.05 13,461 | 0.02 1,
To elect Mr Stillwell as a director

8 | of the Company 81,067,154 | 99.94 37651 | 0.05 10,737 | 0.01 1,
To elect Mr Taylorson as a

9 | director of the Company 81,063,812 | 99.94 40,658 | 0.05 11,072 | 0.01 1,
To re-appoint Deloitte & Touche

10 | LLP as the auditors 81,016,246 | 99.88 36,138 | 0.04 63,771 | 0.08
To authaorise the directors to
determine the auditors’

11 | remuneration 81,014,969 99 .88 37.512 | 0.05 61,646 0.08 2,
To grant the directors authority

12 | to allot relevant securities 80,983,229 | 99.84 37,767 | 0.05 90,470 | 0.11 5,
To approve the disapplication of

13 | pre-emption rights 81,061,731 | 99.94 38,756 | 0.05 12,817 | 0.02 3,
ke maret porchacee o C | 81,073,380 37,189 | 005 | 5390
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14 | ordinary shares 99.95 0.01
To approve the use of website
communication with

15 | shareholders

81,043,812 41,808 | 0.05 12,771

99.93 0.02 18,

An abstention is not a vote in law and is not counted in the calculation of proportion of votes “For” or
“Against” a resolution.

The total shares in issue at 30 April 2007 were 122,440,375, of these 81,116,844 including
abstentions (66.25%) were voted.

Total number of ordinary shareholders 4,379
Total number of proxy instructions lodged 624
Percentage of ordinary shareholders who lodged proxies 14.25%
END

London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons
and countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or outside the specified
countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.
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TR-1: Notification of major interests in shares
i, Identity of the issuer or the underlying FIBERWEB PLC
issuer of existing shares to which voting rights

are attached:

2. Reason for the notification (please tick the appropriate box or
boxes)

An acquisition or disposal of voting rights ®

An acquisition or disposal of financial instruments which may result in
the acquisition of shares already issued to which voting rights are
attached

An event changing the breakdown of voting rights

Other (please specify):

3. Full name of perscn{s) subject to the The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
notification obligation:

4. Full name of shareholder(s}) (if different Goldman, Sachs & Co.,
from 3.):
Goldman Sachs Interaational

5. Date of the transaction (and date on which 26 APRIL 2007
the threshold is crossed or reached if

different):

6. Date on which issuer notified: 30 APRIL 2007
7. Threshold(s) that is/are crossed or reached: 12%

8. Notified details:

A: Voting rights attached to shares
Class/type Situation previous te Resulting situation after the triggering

of shares the Triggering transaction
transaction
if possible
using the Number of Number Number Number of voting rights ix % of voting
ISIN CODE Shares of of rights
Voting shares
Rights
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viii Direct Direct x Indirect xi Direct In
GBOOB1FMHO67 13,602,540 11.11% 13,473,619 1,228,404 11.00%

B: Financial Instruments
Resulting situation after the triggering transaction xii

Type of Expiration Exercise/ Number of voting rights that may % of

financial date xiii Conversion be acquired if the instrument is voting

instrument Period/ Date exercised/ converted. rights
xiv

Total {A+B)
Number of voting rights % of voting rights

14,702,023 12.01%

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/or the
financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable xv:

The interest in 2,214,342 shares arose from a beneficial interest held by
Goldman, Sachs & Co. ("GS&Co."), a direct subsidiary of GS Inc. These shares
are, or will be, registered in the name of Goldman Sachs Securities (Nominees),
Limited ("GSSHN").

The interest in 1,228,404 shares arose from an interest held by Goldman, Sachs &
Co., a wholly-owned direct subsidiary of GS Inc, acting as custodian for its
customers. These shares are, or will be, registered in the name of Goldman Sachs
Securities (Nominees}, Limited.

The interest in 11,259,277 shares arose from a beneficial interest held by
Goldman Sachs International, a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of GS Inc. These
shares are, or will be, registered at CREST in account CREPTEMP.

Proxy Voting:

10. Name of the proxy holder: N/A
11. Number of voting rights proxy holder will cease to hold: N/A
12. Date on which proxy holder will cease to hold voting rights: N/A
13. Additional information: General email contact:

shareholderdisclosures@gs.com
14. Contact name: Joanne Wall / Sean Rogers

15. Contact telephone number: 44{20)7051-1704 / 44(20)7552-9205

This information is provided by RNS
The company news service from the London Stock Exchange

END
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Company Number 5683352

VUKPORATE FINANGE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS 378 & 380
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 1985

At the Annual General Meeting of Fiberweb plc, {the “Company"} duly convened and held at Baker &
McKenzie LLP, 100 New Bridge Street, London, EC4V 6JA on Wednesday 2 May 2007 at 11.30am,
the following resolutions were passed:

As an Ordinary Resolution:

THAT the directors be and are hereby generally and unconditionally authorisec pursuant to
section 80 of the Companies Act 1385 to exercise for the period ending on the date of the next
annual general meeting or on 30 June 2008, whichever is the earlier, all the powers of the
Company to allot relevant securities up to the aggregate nominal amount of £2,038,622
provided that the authority hereby conferred shall allow the directors to make an offer or
agreement before the expiry of such authority which would or might require relevant securities
to be allotted after such expiry as if the power conferred hereby had not expired.

As a Special Resolution:

THAT the directors be and are hereby empowered pursuant to section 85 of the Companies Act
1985 for the period commencing on and with effect from the date of adoption of this resolution
and expiring on the date of the next annual general meeting or on 30 June 2008, whichever is
the earlier, to allot equity securities (within the meaning of section 94 of the Companies Act
1985) for cash pursuant to the authority granted by the resclution above or as saie of treasury
shares as if section 89(1) of that Act did not apply to any such allotment provided that the power
hereby conferred shall be limited to:

(a) the allotment of equity securities in connection with or pursuant to an offar by way of
rights to the holders of ordinary shares and such other securities of the Cornpany as the
director may determine on the register on a fixed record date (excluding any holder
holding shares as treasury shares) and other persons entitled to participate therein in the
proportion (as nearly as may be) to such holders’ holdings of such shares (or, as
appropriate, to the number of shares which such other persons are for these purposes
deemed to hold) subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or legal or practical
problems under the laws or the requirements of any recegnised regutatory body or stock
exchange of any territory; and

(b) the allotment of equity securities (otherwise than pursuant to paragraph (a) hereof) up to
a maximum nominal value of £306,100.

The foregoing power shall allow and enable the directors to make an offer or agreement before
the expiry of that power which would or might require securities to be allotted after such expiry
as if the power conferred hereby had not expired.

Fiberweb plc,

Registered in England & Wales,

Registered Office; 1 Victoria Villas, Richmond on Thames, London, TW9 2GW
No. 5683352

Fiberweb is a registered trade mark in a number of countries




As a Special Resolution;

THAT the Company is hereby generally and unconditionally authorised for the purposes of
section 166 of the Companies Act 1985 to make market purchases (within the meaning of
section 163 of such Act) on The London Stock Exchange of ordinary shares of 5 pence each in
the capital of the Company (“ordinary shares”) provided that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(M

the maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares authorised to be purchased is
12,244,038 ordinary shares in the capital of the Company (representing app-oximately 10
per cent of the present issued ordinary share capital of the Company);

the minimum price (excluding stamp duty and expenses) which may be paid for an ordinary
share so purchased is 5 pence;

the maximum price (excluding stamp duty and expenses) which may be paid for an
ordinary share so purchased is an amount equal to the higher of 5 per cent above the
average of the middle market quotations shown for an ordinary share in the London Stock
Exchange Daily Official List on the five business days immediately preceding the day on
which that ordinary share is purchased and the amount stipulated by Article 5 (10 of the
Buy-back and Stabilisation Regulations 2003;

the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the conclusion of the annual generai meeting
to be held in 2008, unless such authority is renewed, varied or revoked prior to such time;

the Company may prior to the expiry of such authority make a contract to purchase
ordinary shares under the authority hereby conferred which will or may be ex:ecuted wholly
or partly after the expiry of such authority, and may make a purchase of ordirary shares in
pursuance of any such contract; and

all ordinary shares purchased pursuant to the said authority shall either:

{i) be cancelled immediately upon completion of the purchase; or

(i) be held, sold, transferred or otherwise dealt with as treasury shares in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985.

As a Special Resolution

THAT the Company may

(a)

(b}

send or supply any document or information that is required or authorised o be sent or
supplied to a member by the Company by a provision of the Companies Act (as defined in
section 2 of the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act")), or pursuant to the Company's Articles of
Association or any other rules or regulations to which the Company may be subject, by
making it available on a website, and the provisions of Schedule 5 of the Azt shall apply
whether or not any document or information is required or authorised to be sent by the Act;
and

use electronic means (within the meaning of the Disclosure Rules and Transparency
Sourcebook published by the Financial Services Authority) to convey information to
members.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

iy

L DOLOR

Zg@ COMPANY SECRETARY

Fiberweb plc,

Registered in England & Wales,

Registered Office: 1 Victoria Villas, Richmond on Thames, London, TW9 2GW
No. 5683352
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